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PART |

The statements contained in this annual report om¥10-K, including under the section titled "Maeagent's Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operationsitlaother sections of this annual report, includeviard-looking statements within the
meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act 08,188 amended, and Section 21E of the Securitielsafige Act of 1934, as amended,
including, without limitation, statements regardiogr or our management's expectations, hopes,fegli@entions or strategies regarding 1
future. The words "believe,” "may," "will," "estit@g" "continue," "anticipate,” "intend," "expect;plan” and similar expressions may iden
forward-looking statements, but the absence of these vdwrels not mean that a statement is not forward#apkl he forward-looking
statements contained in this annual report are dasm®e our current expectations and beliefs conceyiiiiiure developments and their
potential effects on us. There can be no assurtratefuture developments affecting us will be thibsé¢ we have anticipated. These forw-
looking statements involve a number of risks, uagaties (some of which are beyond our controlptiter assumptions that may cause ac
results or performance to be materially differenanfi those expressed or implied by these forwaré@Hapstatements. These risks and
uncertainties include, but are not limited to, tedactors described in the section titled "ManagetseDiscussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations-Important Fastihat May Affect Future Operating Results." Sdoahe or more of these risks or
uncertainties materialize, or should any of ourwaegtions prove incorrect, actual results may varynaterial respects from those projected
in these forward-looking statements. We undertakebiigation to update or revise any forward-loakistatements, whether as a result of
new information, future events or otherwise, exesptnay be required under applicable securitiesslaw

ITEM 1: BUSINESS
Our Business

We design, develop and sell proprietary ic@dievices used to diagnose neuropathies. Netim@saare diseases of the peripheral ne
and parts of the spine that frequently are caugeat hssociated with diabetes, low back pain amgatdaunnel syndrome, as well as other
clinical disorders. We believe that our neuropathkagnostic system, the N§at System, improves the quality and efficiencpatient care b
offering all physicians the ability to diagnoseipats with neuropathies at the point-of-servicef i, in the physician's office at the time the
patient is examined, resulting in earlier and naareurate detection, greater patient comfort andewience, and, in many cases, improved
clinical and economic outcomes.

Neuropathies traditionally have been evaldidy simple clinical examination by the primagye physician, and, in some cases,
subsequently diagnosed by a nerve conduction stadyneedle electromyography, or NCS/nEMG, procepartormed by a neurologist or
physician in a related specialty. We estimate tinvate are approximately two million traditional NBEMG procedures currently performed
each year in the United States. We believe thabtigaditional NCS/nEMG procedures is limited ¥) the need to obtain a referral to a
neurologist for the procedure and the resultingglé availability of diagnostic information; ()& inconvenience and discomfort of these
procedures for the patient; and (3) the expensieetpatient and third-party payer. We anticipatd the advantages and increased availability
of the NC-stat System will significantly increabe thumber of nerve conduction studies performede8a&n our analysis of current data, we
estimate that the potential market size for pofréarvice nerve conduction studies in the diabétes back pain and carpal tunnel syndrome
markets in the aggregate could be as great as>@apmily 9.5 million annual patient tests, or o$&r0 billion annually for our disposable
biosensors, in the United States.

Our goal is to become the leading provifeénnovative, proprietary, high margin medical t&s that provide comprehensive solutions
for the diagnosis and treatment of patients withrapathies. To date, our primary focus has beahemliagnosis of neuropathies. We also
believe that our core




technology can be adapted and extended to proviiienadly invasive approaches to treating neuropethiWe are in the early stages of
designing a drug delivery system for the minimatlyasive treatment of neuropathies by both printane and specialist physicians.

All of our current products have receivdd&) clearance by the FDA. The NC-stat Systembegn on the market since May 1999 and
is presently used in over 2,200 physician's officéinics and other health care facilities. We hiskled utility patents covering a number of
important aspects of our N&at System. In 2004, we increased our revenuestiie prior year by 95%, generating $17.9 milliomrévenues
compared with $9.2 million in 2003. Our gross mangércentage in 2004 was 72.9%, and 87.6% of eeniees were attributable to sales of
the disposable biosensors that physicians userforpetests with our NGtat System. We incurred net losses of approxim&I3 million in
2004 and $3.7 million in 2003. Since our inceptiomore than 300,000 patients have been tested meth€-stat System.

Disorders of the Peripheral Nerves and Spine
The Nervous System

The nervous system is a collection of itwenected specialized cells called neurons, supgdny other complementary cells. The basic
function of the nervous system is to convert phaisitimuli into neural signals, to process thesgralesignals, and to generate an appropriate
motor response. The classic reflex obtained byitappn the knee and eliciting a mild kick is a siempxample of this function.

The nervous system is divided into the @mtervous system, or CNS, and the peripheralouesrgystem, or PNS. The CNS is compr
of the neurons in the brain and spine, while th&RNnsists of neurons and related elements outsédepine and within the extremities, such
as the hands or feet. Neurons, which are the pyic@nponents of the nervous system, typically lthvee elements: (1) the dendrites, or
input region; (2) the cell body, where the cell leus resides; and (3) the axon, or output regitve. dendrites and the cell body of most
neurons reside within the CNS (e.g., in the spiwhjle the axons may reside within the CNS, the PIBoth. The axon carries information
from one neuron to another or to a muscle. Axomseo@eed one meter in length yet represent the sath& he term "nerve" generally refe
to a collection of axons encased within a commaratih Axons combine into nerves in the extremities are considered part of the PNS.

All neurons, and particularly their axoage highly susceptible to metabolic or mechanieahadge and have limited regenerative ability.
Disorders of the nervous system lead to symptomshadan range from numbness and weakness in thengities if confined to the PNS, to
changes in cognition, speech and personality ifdN& is involved.

Neuropathies

Disorders of the nerves are broadly deedrify the term neuropathies. There are two bapestgf neuropathies, those that are focal, or
localized in nature and those that are systemicalRteuropathies are typically caused by a comjmess one or more specific nerves.
Systemic neuropathies are typically caused by alodit disturbance that results in widespread danagerves throughout the body. The
most common clinical conditions associated withropathies include:

. Diabetes. Diabetes is a disease in which the body eithesdamt produce or does not properly use insulsulin is a hormon
that is needed to convert sugar, starches and fatbérinto energy needed for daily body functiomali®tes often results in a
high level of glucose in the blood, called hypeagimia. Chronic hyperglycemia is associated withgarations of diabetes
including nerve, eye and kidney disease. The mmsheon form of diabetes-related nerve disease ystemmic neuropathy
called diabetic peripheral neuropathy, or DPN. $jx@ptoms

2




of DPN include impaired sensation or pain in thet nd hands. The American Diabetes Associatioreotly estimates that
60% to 70% of people with diabetes are affecte®@BWN, although a majority of these individuals anaware of their nerve
disease because they have no symptoms. Clinidibesthave demonstrated that nerve conduction studie detect DPN in
cases where symptoms are not present. DPN, ifitefiagnosed and unmanaged, can result in the dawelut of lower
extremity ulcers and, in severe cases, amputation.

. Low back pain. Low back pain can have many causes. When low paitkhas a neurological source, it is often facalature
and associated with pain that radiates from theefdvack region into the leg, called sciatica. Imea@ases, the patient may ¢
experience loss of sensation and weakness in Wer leg. In advanced cases, these symptoms camieetigsabling. The
symptoms result from pressure on the nerve romésptecursors of the nerve, as they exit the sfine.source of the pressure
is usually part of an intervertebral disc thatigpthced from its normal location between the \mekbodies. These disorders
are often called herniated or ruptured discs.

. Carpal tunnel syndrome.Carpal tunnel syndrome, or CTS, is caused bylmgedf the tendons that traverse the wrist
alongside the median nerve. The swollen tendongpoesa the median nerve, resulting in damage toghee that leads to
numbness in the first three fingers of the handikmess in the thumb, and occasionally wrist andlfp@in. CTS is the most
common focal neuropathy.

. Other medical conditions associated with neuropeghiCommon chronic disorders such as obesity; rheaighatthritis; and
spinal stenosis, or narrowing of the spinal caasd;commonly associated with neuropathies. In thes®licated cases, it is
particularly important for the physician to confimnexclude neuropathies in order to develop effedteatment programs.

. Nerve damage caused by chemotheragynumber of widely used chemotherapeutic agemtsaxic to nerves. Unfortunately,
by the time patients report symptoms, significaatve damage has often already occurred.

Market Opportunity

The sensitivity of the nervous system tdahelic and mechanical damage, compounded byniigslil regenerative ability, creates a
market opportunity for a medical device that cagisisn point-of-service diagnoses of neuropatiries manner that is cost-effective for the
patient and third-party payer. We believe the edisese, accuracy and convenience provided by thestdCSystem position it to become a
standard of care for the assessment of neuropathtbe point-of-service. We believe that the allity of point-of-service nerve conductic
studies, through the NC-stat System, will resukanlier detection of neuropathies, leading toieatherapeutic intervention and, in many
cases, improved clinical and economic outcomesb®lieve that use of traditional NCS/nEMG procedisdsnited by the referral process
and the resulting delay in availability of diagnoshformation, the inconvenience and discomforttefse methods for the patient, and the
expense to the patient and third-party payer. @licyis to promote and support the utilizationnefve conduction studies in a manner
strictly consistent with prevailing guidelines dretmedically appropriate use of this diagnosticpdure. We estimate that there are
approximately two million traditional NCS/nEMG prdures currently performed each year in the Uriiades. Although the largest
indication for which the NC-stat System has beesdusstorically is carpal tunnel syndrome, we hsinee expanded our marketing efforts to
include DPN and low back pain, as well as otheicitibns. We anticipate that our future growth Wil generated mainly from this expanded
focus. Based on our analysis of current patierd,da¢ estimate that the potential for point-of-g@nnerve conduction studies in the diabetes,
low back pain and carpal tunnel syndrome marketegraggregate could be as great as approximateiyiflion annual patient tests, or over
$1.0 billion annually for our disposable




biosensors, in the United States. However, maiketis difficult to predict, and we cannot assuoe yhat our estimates will prove to be
correct. We believe that additional applications gfoint-of-service product offering such as the- &t System, including the clinical
assessment of patients with neuropathies causeddmsociated with other clinical disorders, cdulther increase this potential market size.
Additionally, although we have not yet quantifiéx tsize of the market, we believe a potential ird#onal market opportunity exists for the
NC-Stat System.

Assessment and Treatment Methods for Neuropathies
Traditional Methods for Detecting Neuropathies

Neuropathies traditionally have been evaldiaising clinical and diagnostic methods. Theiciihexamination of a patient with a
potential neuropathy focuses on the nature, logatiod duration of the symptoms. The physician alfb perform a physical examination of
the patient to corroborate and qualify the patesymptoms. In many cases, the physician will usgle instruments such as a reflex ham
or a tuning fork. Although the clinical examinati@nessential to the evaluation of the patient waifhotential neuropathy, it has a number of
important disadvantages, including the following:

. It is qualitative. A clinical examination provides qualitative rathiean quantitative information, and results cary\geatly
depending on the physician performing the exanmonatin this respect, it has limited use as an dbje@nd repeatable
measure of disease.

. It is subjective. Much of the clinical examination relies on theigat experiencing and reporting symptoms or pefoap. As
a result, it depends greatly on the investigatiferes of the physician in interviewing the patigeist highly variable because of
individual differences in recollection and discomfihresholds, and requires an alert, cooperatitiept. Because of the
subjective nature of the clinical examination, thgults must be interpreted cautiously.

. It often does not detect pre-clinical or early statjsease. Because the clinical examination relies on théepareporting
symptoms or physical signs of disease, the physigigically cannot detect early stage disease thithevaluation. The
progressive nature of neurological damage is suahgre-clinical or early detection creates thenoat opportunity for
intervention and successful clinical outcomes.

The limitations of the clinical examinationdetecting and monitoring neuropathies sugdedtdn objective and quantitative diagnostic
procedure would be of value for many patients. fidhe of an objective diagnostic procedure in agydtat risk for a neuropathy or
experiencing common symptoms of a neuropathy, asatumbness, unusual sensations, pain and wealsslewn in the diagram below.
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The cause of symptoms in many of theseptiwill not be disorders of the nervous systeméther arthritic pain, musculo-skeletal
disturbances, inflammatory conditions, psychiadisorders and others. The importance of an objediagnostic procedure in this type of
patient is to determine if the patient does in femte a neuropathy, and if so, of what type anérigv Only with this information can
appropriate therapy be determined.

The principal diagnostic method used toegssess patients with or at risk for neuropatisi@straditional nerve conduction study and a
needle electromyography, or NEMG. Traditional neserduction studies and nEMGs are distinct stuaiescan be performed independer
but are collectively described as traditional NEMG procedures. In a traditional nerve conductitidy, electrodes are placed on the
patient's skin surface and the physician perforntiegstudy electrically stimulates the nerve, engla neural impulse that travels along the
nerve, thereby enabling the physician to meassezias of nerve conduction parameters. In an nEME&rding needles are inserted through
the skin's surface into a muscle and the physig&forming the study reviews the electrical acyivif those muscles. From these data, the
physician can determine whether or not the patiasta neuropathy, and if so, its characteristidssawerity. The traditional nerve conduction
study, in some cases combined with an nEMG, isidersd by most physicians to be the "gold standardérms of diagnostic accuracy for
most neuropathies.

Limitations of Traditional Diagnostic Metho

Traditional NCS/nEMG procedures have a neinaf limitations, which have frequently resultedhese procedures not being performed
until late in the patients' care episodes. Thesgdtions include the following:

. Referral process. Traditional NCS/nEMG procedures typically arefpemed under a referral from a primary care phyasido
a neurologist. This process may lead to loss ofrobof the patient's care by the primary care jtigis, higher expense for the
patient and third-party payer, and the likely dedag inconvenience for the patient associated avgbparate office visit to a
new physician.




. Expense When the patient visits a new physician undesfarral for the purpose of a traditional NCS/nEM@qedure, tha
physician is less familiar with the patient's matlitistory and condition than the primary care ptiga. Therefore, these
physicians may need to perform more extensivertgsticorporating multiple nerves and muscles. Bseaf the breadth of
these studies, the cost per study can exceed $pd@Qtatient, which leads to greater expense fpttient and third-party

payer.

. Equipment. The equipment used to perform a traditional NEMG procedure is complex and expensive and typicalhges
in cost from $15,000 to $40,000. For this reasbis, generally only purchased by neurologists dmgsizians in related
specialties, who expect high utilization to offt@s cost.

. Complexity. Traditional procedures require familiarity wituégpment and engineering principles that most pligss do not
acquire during their medical training. This fagiptbined with high equipment cost, has meant thgt @small number of
physicians, such as neurologists and physicianslated specialties, perform testing under trad@lonethods, making this
type of testing not generally widely available.

. Discomfort. The traditional NCS/nEMG procedure is considaredomfortable or painful by most patients. In gadar, the
NEMG component can be very painful because it ve®h physician inserting needles into specificalassof the patient,
often in close proximity to the site of pain. Pateare sometimes therefore reluctant to underggetpbrocedures, and
neuropathies may go undiagnosed.

Current Methods for Treating Neuropathies

Addressing the limitations of traditionaéthods for detecting neuropathies is important bge®f the expanding number of treatments
for common neuropathies currently in use and uddegelopment. We believe earlier and more accuratiecton of neuropathies would allc
more patients to benefit from these treatmentschvhiclude the following:

. Diabetic Peripheral Neuropathy.Optimal clinical management of DPN is based afiesst possible detection so as to limit the
degree of nerve damage. At the present time, nexgilp with diabetes are evaluated for DPN with $énefinical procedures
that generally do not identify the disease in @&dyestages. Although treatment options for DPN@esently limited, there are
interventions designed to slow down the progressfamerve degeneration and to minimize the compboa of the nerve
disease. Current interventions consist primariljnofeased attention to the individual's blood gkethrough monitoring and
administration of insulin and other medicationsatfdition, greater attention to the existence andnession of foot ulcers that
are often triggered by nerve disease has been stwlavaluable in preventing amputation. A nundfgsharmaceutical
companies and researchers are investigating aredlagng drugs specifically designed to treat DPNe Tollowing table
summarizes the leading drug development prograrddM known to us, as described, for each compangyirent publicly
available information released by that company.




Company Name Drug Name Status

Eli Lilly and Company ruboxistaurin mesylat U.S. Phase Il clinical trie
Sanwa Kagaku Kenkyusho C  Fidarestat U.S. Phase Il clinical trial

Ltd., Sankyo Co., Ltd., and N

Curex

Dainippon Pharmaceutical C' AS-3201 U.S. Phase Il clinical trial

Ltd.

Johnson & Johnson Topiramate Approved in the United States

as anticonvulsant; studies be
conducted to determine
efficacy in the treatment of
DPN

Vitaris GmbH a -lipoic acid Approved in Germany; studies
being conducted to determine
efficacy in the treatment of
DPN

. Sciatica. The widespread incidence of low back pain anensé discomfort associated with the condition mékesletection
of true sciatica difficult. However, treatment daons require a clear delineation between thosengatthat have non-
neuropathic back pain, such as muscle strainsasnsg, and those that have underlying neuropatiés sciatica may be
treated with non-steroidal anti-inflammatory drugsNSAIDs, rest and physical therapy. More advdrsmatica is often
treated with steroid injections and eventually aimally invasive or more involved surgical proceglunay be required.

. Carpal Tunnel SyndromeMild CTS is treated conservatively using wrislirsgg, NSAIDs, and physical and occupational
therapy. Moderate to severe CTS is treated bytingsteroids into the carpal tunnel in the immegliacinity of the median
nerve, or ultimately by a surgical procedure callezhrpal tunnel release, or CTR. Most physiciansthird-party payers
require confirmation of median nerve damage byraeneonduction study, like that performed using M@ stat System, prior
to performing CTR. According to the Centers foré2ise Control and Prevention, or CDC, over 350,0DR frocedures were
performed in 1997.




NEUROMetrix Solution

Recognizing the opportunity created bylimétations of traditional diagnostic methods caegblwith the availability of current and
potential new treatments for certain neuropatih#sJROMetrix has developed the NC-stat System fergrformance of noimvasive nerve
conduction studies at the point-of-service. Ouippigary technology provides physicians with aroffiee diagnostic system that enables
physicians to make rapid and accurate diagnoséstbaost-effective for the patient and third-parayer. We believe that the NC-stat
System represents a significant advance in neuabdiagnostics and offers an improvement ovetiti@nal diagnostic procedures with the
following benefits:

. Facilitates performance of nerve conduction studiethe point-of-service.The complexity and high capital cost of tradiabn
diagnostic methods generally has limited theirtoseeurologists and physicians in related speemltVe believe the features
of the NCstat System facilitate the performance of nervedoction studies within the offices of a wide ramf@hysicians. B
allowing nerve conduction studies to be performrethe primary care physician's office, the pateat avoid the expense and
inconvenience of a referral visit to a neurologhgdditionally, the NC-stat System enables primaayecphysicians to retain
greater control over their patients by eliminatthg need to refer them out for a traditional NC$AtEprocedure.

. Provides a cost-effective diagnostic todlVe believe that the NC-stat System should retlueeost to the patient and third-
party payer of many nerve conduction studies. Bblgf is based on our observation that when tpeseedures are performed
by the physician with primary clinical responsityilfor the patient, the study is more directedrsat generally fewer nerves are
tested without compromising the accuracy of thgigeis. As the cost to third-party payers for naeeduction studies is
typically based on the number of nerves testedptiiee NC-stat System can result in lower cosjsaiients and third-party
payers. For example, a nerve conduction study foX Dsing the NC-stat System would typically be perfed by testing four
nerves, whereas a nerve conduction study for tme sadication performed by a neurologist usingitiadal NCS/nEMG
equipment upon referral could involve the testifigin nerves or more.

. Requires minimal capital investmentVe sell the NC-stat System, with equivalent técdirspecifications to the more
expensive traditional instruments, for under $5,8@0ich is less than one third of the cost of tiiadal NCS/nEMG
equipment. We believe the lower capital cost oftiizstat System will aid in the expansion of neceaduction studies
beyond neurologist offices.

. Simple to operate.The NC-stat biosensors are designed for easadement, which allows a wide range of physicidicef
personnel to administer the technical parts ofsthey under supervision of a physician. The NC4stanitor utilizes software
algorithms that perform each step of a nerve comalustudy in a reliable manner, with embedded matiion technology that
addresses and minimizes the technical trainingireanents for performing nerve conduction studiesilevalso ensuring that
the end diagnostic result is accurate and reliable believe that, in combination, these featurkswhccurate and reliable
nerve conduction studies to be performed in 1Mtnhutes on average.

. Patient-friendly, non-invasive procedurélhe NC-stat System allows for reduced patiertafisort during the nerve
conduction study by minimizing the magnitude of éhectrical stimulus to the nerve via a proprietpayient-specific
calibration procedure. In most cases, the sophisticsignal processing and automation capabibifiéise NC-stat System
provide sufficient diagnostic information to eliraite the need for an nEMG procedure. This savepdtient the discomfort,
stress and risk of this invasive procedure. Theingasive nature and convenient
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features of the NC-stat System also facilitate agpesting in patients to demonstrate responseatnent interventions.

We believe point-of-service testing will expand thse of nerve conduction studies to include atinslviduals who may have early-stage
neuropathies but may not be experiencing symptampspulation that would be unlikely to be testederthe current inconvenient,
expensive referral system. Because traditional NEBIG procedures are typically not performed uatiélin patients' care episodes,
permanent nerve damage may have already occurtaech wan limit treatment options. We believe tharenwidespread use of nerve
conduction studies would lead to earlier detectibneuropathies. Clinical studies published in pesiewed medical journals have
demonstrated that nerve conduction studies perfonuith the NC-stat System result in comparable \muto traditional NCS/nEMG
procedures, as described below in "—Clinical SteidiBy incorporating nerve conduction studies earlgatients' care episodes through the
use of the NC-stat System, we expect better long-téinical and economic outcomes will emerge bseaaf the ability to implement
available preventive care based on accurate emyndstic results.

The NC-stat System

The NC-stat System is comprised of: (1pdsable NC-stat biosensors that are placed onatienp's body; (2) the NC-stat monitor and
related components; and (3) the NC-stat dockintipstaan optional device that enables the physitianansmit data to our onCall
Information System. The onCall Information Systemmiulates the data it receives for each test irdetailed report that is sent to the
physician via facsimile or e-mail in three to faninutes on average and aids in the physician'sidgig. The NC-stat System enables the
physician to make rapid and accurate diagnosestkatost-effective for the patient and third-paudyer.

. NC-stat biosensors.The NC-stat biosensors are single use, self-aghagerve-specific, patch-like devices that agept on
the body and connected to the IS¢ monitor. Through the use of a specializechgdla temperature sensor, both of whict
contained within the biosensor, Nstat biosensors convert nerve signals to electmbetia that can be received and displaye
the NC-stat monitor. Currently we sell eight difat types of biosensors:

. Median motor;

. Median motor/sensory;

. Ulnar motor at wrist;

. Ulnar motor/sensory;

. Combination ulnar motor/sensory at wrist and ubtaglbow;
. Peroneal;

. Tibial, and

. Sural

The biosensors are designed to be positioned dogaiml common anatomical landmarks with a confitjorathat facilitates correct
placement. We designed the sensors so that thég bewasily and quickly applied with minimal treig by members of a physician's office
staff. The biosensors are encoded with a uniquerel@c serial number, which allows us to tracklebmsensor throughout the
manufacturing, shipping and end-use stages. Theebswrs also are electronically inactivated afser, thus preventing re-use. This
inactivation is essential since prior use of thesbnsor adhesive and specialized gel would sigmifig degrade the quality of the
measurements. In a typical nerve conduction stomljtiple nerves are evaluated and multiple biosenace used according to general
guidelines established by CMS and physician assoo&




The table below provides sample testingqmals for several common clinical indications.

Total Aggregate
Number of Price of
Biosensors Biosensors
Clinical Indication Specific Biosensors Utilized Utilized Utilized
Diabetic peripheral neuropathy Peroneal Motor (2) 4 3% 134
Median
Motor/Sensory (1)
Sural (2)
Low back pain with bilateral sciatica Peroneal Motor (2) 5 % 14t
Tibial Motor (2)
Sural (1)
Bilateral carpal tunnel syndrome Median 4 3% 18C
Motor/Sensory (2)
Ulnar
Motor/Sensory (2

NC-stat monitor. The NC-stat monitor is designed for efficient aady use by the physician or a member of the playés
clinical staff. The NC-stat monitor can only be mgged with our NC-stat biosensors. This instrumenich is lightweight and
slightly larger than a cordless telephone, custemand calibrates the test for each patient, aeslgeurophysiological signals
collected from the biosensor and displays the penti results on an LCD screen immediately at tmelesion of each nerve
conduction study. It also stores data from multfddients for optional transmission to the onQafibimation System. We also
sell optional related components that allow forté®ing of long nerve segments, such as thosesleetihe elbow and wrist or
the knee and foot. The monitor is powered for sgiv@ionths by two AA batteries. The NC-stat mongontains software that
performs all the control and analysis algorithmsessary to carry out a nerve conduction study. Apalete nerve conduction
study may be performed with just the monitor arellifosensors. An improved point-eérvice nerve conduction testing sys
is currently in development.

NC-stat docking station and onCall Information 8yst The NC-stat docking station is an optional deviwd automatically
transmits data from the NC-stat monitor via anyilabte telephone line, such as those used by falesimachines, to the
onCall Information System that we maintain. Theldlog station has its own data storage so it do¢$ose data if the
telephonic connection to the onCall Information t8ys cannot be established for some time or is piiscuduring transmissio
The data is processed and analyzed by the onQGathtation System and stored in a central datalzaska detailed report is
generated for each patient that is then sent tpltlgsician via facsimile or e-mail in three to foninutes on average. The
report includes the raw waveform data, comparisora age- and height-adjusted normal range padpulagtudy reference
table and text summaries of the study, which fet#i rapid and accurate diagnosis by the phys&amining the patient.
Although the study data presented in the onCabntegan be generated manually by the physiciangu$iea numerical
measurements displayed by the NC-stat monitonepert is a convenient and fast alternative. Whatiseng the information
from the onCall report or the NC-stat monitor désplthe actual clinical interpretation of the N@tgsesults is always
performed by the physician ordering the study. @h€all Information System can also provide dailpnthly and quarterly
reports to customers. These reports provide assista correct submission for third-party reimbunsat and assist in tracking
overall clinical utilization. The onCall InformatioSystem generally is available 24 hours per dawers days per week.
Although purchase of the NC-stat docking statiod atilization of the onCall Information System antirely optional, we
believe substantially all of our customers use $lgistem in all studies they conduct with the NG-sta
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Strategy

System. We currently have a record of over 550i08%idual nerve tests within the onCall informatisystem database. We
believe that this information provides us with Hi#lity to continually improve our products and pide our customers with a
very high level of customer service and value.

Our goal is to become the leading provifeénnovative, proprietary, high margin medical t&s that provide comprehensive solutions
for the diagnosis and treatment of patients withrapathies. To achieve this objective, we are pagsthe following business strategies:

Establish the NC-stat System as a Standard of C&ar primary objective is to establish the dtat System as the standan

care for point-ofservice assessment of neuropathies. To accompisiyaal, we dedicate significant efforts to theelepmen

of marketing and educational materials that engmithe medically appropriate use of the NC-state3ydy a broad range of
physicians. We also support clinical studies thatdesigned to demonstrate the clinical accuradycast-effectiveness of the
NC-stat System.

Expand Sales and Marketing Effort&Ve currently sell our products through 28 reglananagers and two district sales
managers who are our direct employees. We invgsifisiant amounts of time and money in technicihical and business
practices training for our regional managers. Vge alave established a sales network with more36andependent regional
sales agencies employing a total of more than 3@ sepresentatives. Our regional managers usiifss agencies to identify
selling opportunities and to assist in the onga@eryicing of our customers, in order to enhanceleverage their selling
efforts. We intend to hire more direct regional mgers and expand the number of independent satesiag and
representatives selling our products, in ordentogase the market penetration of our products.

Focus on Primary Care MarketWe intend to capitalize on the trend towardsutilization of more sophisticated diagnostic
and therapeutic procedures by primary care physcifio achieve this goal, we have expended andoatinuing to expend
significant resources to establish a physiciarceftiistribution channel. This channel focuses amany care physicians,
comprising general internists, family practice pbis, rheumatologists and endocrinologists. Bgradg our system to
primary care physicians, we are also capitalizinghe trend towards convenient and efficient mddiaee created by having
multiple clinical services provided within one feigi.

Strengthen Our Presence within Selected Speciadikdts. We intend to continue to strengthen our presavittén specific
physician specialty markets that are complemerttaour major focus on the primary care market. €raarkets provide both
revenue opportunities and additional product vailechawithin the marketplace. We believe that thinopedic, neurology, pain
medicine and occupational medicine markets repteébermost suitable specialty markets for expansion

Continue to Introduce New ProductdNe believe that one of our strengths is our ghiti develop and commercialize
innovative products for neurological applicatiovMe have an ongoing program of making enhancemaeuténarovements to
the NC-stat System, including the introduction efwbiosensors and our third generation NC-stat tapand docking station.
We also are in the early stages of designing a deligery system for the minimally invasive treatrhef neuropathies by both
primary care and specialist physicians. These piaterew products build upon our mission of enhagdhe clinical and
business practices of our customers. We beliewdhikae potential new products will improve patieate, allowing us to
generate more revenues at attractive margins fuomexisting customer base, as well as to attrastaestomers.
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Market Size

We estimate that there are approximatetymvillion traditional NCS/nEMG procedures currentigrformed each year in the United
States. This estimate is based on (1) data frol@@ feport in 1996 regarding NCS/nEMG procedureei@d or performed during
ambulatory patient visits and (2) data from a 2QDAS report regarding Medicare reimbursement undereédt Procedural Terminology, or
CPT, codes for nerve conduction studies and assomnspiat Medicare represents 30% of the totatiegjsierve conduction study market
that the average number of CPT codes used per nengiction study is eight. We anticipate thatabeantages and increased availability of
the NC-stat System will significantly increase thenber of nerve conduction studies performed.

. We estimate the potential diabetic peripheral ngatby, or DPN, market for a point-of-service protlaffering such as the
NC-stat System could be as great as six millioruahpatient tests. The number of individuals with diabetes in thetea
States was estimated to be 18.2 million, or 6.3%hefpopulation, in 2002. Among this group, 5.2liorl were undiagnosed.
According to the CDC, there are about 26 milliomaal patient visits to officeased physicians for diabetes. We anticipate
the increasing focus on early detection and prévemtf the chronic complications of diabetes wéladl to increased nerve
conduction studies for DPN. We believe that therested 50% rate of annual foot exams in patientssknto have diabetes is
a reasonable estimate for the addressable tesanieirin diabetes. If these examinations were pepldy a nerve conduction
study, or a nerve conduction study were addedg@iamination, the diabetes arena would represeopportunity for over s
million annual NC-stat patient tests. The numbeffericans with diabetes is projected to more tthamble over the next 40
to 50 years. At the present time, there are neoty marketed pharmaceuticals targeted speciiedlDPN, and therefore
nerve conduction studies are performed on a seéebtisis in order to address specific clinicaléssif a targeted therapy for
DPN were successfully developed and marketed, \weMeethe rate of testing would further increasas®&dI on current clinical
trial activity, we anticipate that drugs for thedatment of DPN will become increasingly availalolehie marketplace over the
next few years, accelerating the need to detect BiRtS earliest stages to allow for earlier thexajr intervention and a
decrease in the adverse clinical and economic m#sassociated with DPN.

. We estimate the potential low back pain marketafpoint-of-service product offering such as the §t&t-System could be as
great as three million annual patient testeow back pain is one of the most common medioaliions in the United States.
Over 63 million people report experiencing at least day of serious low back pain in the prior ge&urthermore, back
disorders account for over one-quarter of all ntaifaccupational injuries and illnesses that reisuttays away from work.
According to the CDC, there are about nine milsmual patient visits to office-based physiciarecsjrally for low back
symptoms. The CDC further estimates that abouttbin@-of office visits are initial visits, at whidime we believe utilization
of the NC-stat System is most likely. We thus apéite that there may be as many as approximatedg tiillion testing
opportunities for nerve conduction testing relatetbw back pain for a point-of-service productesffig such as the NC-stat
System. We believe that the number of testing dppiiies may be even higher, as there are mangmgatthat visit physicians
for symptoms and medical conditions that must lfflerdintiated from sciatica, such as leg and foat#pms, rheumatoid
arthritis and diabetes.

. We estimate the potential carpal tunnel syndromeketdor a point-of-service product offering suchthe NC-stat System
could be as great as 650,000 annual patient te€3.S is a significant occupational issue, as therder results in the most
days away from work among all major disabling wdake injuries and illnesses. In a recent healtk sarvey published in the
Journal of the American Medical Association, apjmmately 14% of adults reported symptoms charadterss CTS. It was
further estimated that 2.5% of adults have true Git8ch could
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be confirmed by clinical examination and nerve agrithn studies. This is equivalent to approximafatg million individuals
in the United States. Over 350,000 surgeries afemmeed annually for CTS. The surgical procedurealed a carpal tunnel
release, or CTR. Most third-party payers requineive conduction study prior to authorizing thegeuy. According to the
CDC, there are more than two million annual visiteffice-based physicians for which CTS is the primary désis; The CD(
further estimates that about one third of CTS-eglaiffice visits are initial visits, at which tinvee believe utilization of the
NC-stat System is most likely. We thus anticipat there may be as many as 650,000 testing opypiesifor the NC-stat
System related to CTS. We further believe thatéstemate is conservative, as there are many psaiieat visit physicians for
hand and wrist pain, or medical conditions withightassociation with CTS such as rheumatoid aithdiabetes and obesity.
We also anticipate that the high costs of CTS-eelatorkers' compensation claims could motivate eggk to increasingly
use a point-of-service product offering such asNfiestat System to pre-screen and monitor emplofeeSTS.

Based on the data outlined above, we estimatdtibgiotential market size for a point-of-servicedurct offering such as the NC-stat System
for nerve conduction studies in the diabetes, laekipain and CTS markets in the aggregate coultslapeat as approximately 9.5 million
annual patient tests in the United States. We astihat the potential market for NC-stat Systemid:be over $1.0 billion annually in the
United States. However, market size is difficulptedict, and we cannot assure you that our estsnaill prove to be correct. We believe t
additional applications of a point-of-service protlaffering such as the NC-stat System, includhgdlinical assessment of patients with
neuropathies caused by or associated with othacalidisorders, could further increase this maskas. Additionally, although we have not
yet quantified the size of the market, we belieymtential international market opportunity exifststhe NC-stat System.

Clinical Studies

The performance of the NC-stat System leas Isubstantiated in clinical studies that we tsagported, the results of which have been
published in peer-reviewed medical journals or @nésd at major medical conferences.

In studies published in the April 2000 issue of dbernal of Occupational & Environmental Medicinthe September 2000
issue ofNeurology and Clinical Neurophysiologand the May 2004 issue of theurnal of Hand Surgerythe correlation
between the results generated by the NC-stat Syatentraditional nerve conduction studies in mdagumerve function of
198 patients was examined. The correlation wasvatgrit to that found between different neurologistsforming traditional
nerve conduction studies.

Two abstracts presented at the American Diabetsediation Meeting in June 2004 outline the reswiits study of 1,000
patients with diabetes. In this study, the NC-Stgttem was found to detect DPN at the same levestage as would have
been expected from traditional NCS/nEMG procedures.

A study published in the December 2002 issugmheevaluated the ability of the NC-stat System to cleteurological
impairment in 25 patients with sciatica, confirnigdMRI and clinical examination. The diagnostic @exy of the NC-stat
System was equivalent to traditional NCS/nEMG pdoces as documented in several other publishedestud

We continue to support well-designed clinical reskatudies utilizing the NC-stat System that asighed to demonstrate its clinical
accuracy and cost-effectiveness. In addition, sgainical studies and trials have been perfornaed, others are underway, in which the NC-
stat System is used to measure changes in nerggdun
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Products Under Development
Devices for the Treatment of Neuropa

In pursuit of our objective to develop neadidevices that provide comprehensive solutionshie diagnosis and treatment of patients
with neuropathies, we are seeking to expand owudymiobase beyond the diagnostic and into the treattierena. We believe that our core
technology can be adapted and extended to proviiienally invasive approaches to treating neuropehin particular, we believe that
neuropathies that are focal, or localized, in ratian be safely and effectively treated if drugs loa delivered near the disease site without
damaging the nerve in the process. Some of thees tyf treatments are performed today, but theparermed manually by a limited
number of physicians. Our product development @gincludes the design of a product that we behlelleeduce the risk involved in
providing these treatments. We are in the earlyestaf designing this product to enable a broad baghysicians to provide this type of
minimally invasive neuropathy therapy at the paifiservice.

NC-stat System

We have an ongoing program of making endarents and improvements to the NC-stat System.rd/developing new NC-stat
biosensors and associated software for the megliapfiropriate testing of additional nerves. We alsodeveloping our third generation NC-
stat monitor and docking station with an improvedninterface, along with new features for the dhi@formation System, that will allow
our customers to perform more complex analysesagfribstic data. In addition, we continually seeksvtb reduce the manufacturing costs
and improve the performance of the NC-stat biosenso

NEUROMetrix®, NC-stat® and onCall™ are teathrks of ours.
Customers

We market our products directly to physisiaThe NC-stat System provides primary care pigrssc who previously were not
performing a nerve conduction study at the poinsafvice or were referring these patients to aalegist for a traditional NCS/nEMG
procedure, with a potential new source of revenfieof December 31, 2004, we had over 2,200 actistomers. No single customer
accounted for more than 10% of our revenues in 220d3 or 2002.

Geographic Information

All of our assets, revenues and expengehéoyears ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and&éf2located at or derived from
operations in the United States.

Sales, Marketing and Distribution

Our sales team is led by our Chief Opegafificer. We presently employ 28 regional salesaggers and two district sales managers
who lead more than 50 independent regional sakescies employing a total of more than 300 indepensiales representatives. At present,
our products are marketed and distributed soletiiiwithe United States. We select our sales agemcid representatives based on their
expertise and experience calling on primary cargpecialty physicians, their reputation within thegeted physician community and their
sales coverage. Each sales agency is assigneeksaesaltory for the NC-stat System and is suliegteriodic performance reviews. Our
current operating practice is to limit coveragertage within most regions. Through this, we beligve gain a more focused sales approach
and more dedicated sales agency organization. @piour independent sales representatives ideptifential customers for us and assist in
monitoring our
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existing customer accounts, and our regional sabasagers complete sales to these customers. Gapandent sales agencies do not act as
distributors of our products.

We invest significant efforts in technicdinical and business practices training for agional managers. We work closely with our
sales agencies and their sales representativeden to provide them with the information and assise that they need in order to
successfully sell our products. We also requirdesates representative to attend periodic salepaottlict training programs. The efforts of
our regional sales managers and independent sgdessentatives are enhanced by proprietary softiwale that are accessed via a secure
website, which we refer to as the sales and saldrgr portals, respectively. These portals givesales personnel access to real time
customer sales and product usage information, wsu@pplications to help identify and close new hess, and marketing materials. The
portals also provide customer relationship managefueactions. Our corporate management and reinginoesit team have access to the s
information, as well as portal usage informatioraliysales personnel.

We market our products directly to physisiaThe NC-stat System provides primary care physsc who previously were not
performing a nerve conduction study at the poinsafvice or were referring these patients to aalegist for a traditional NCS/nEMG
procedure, with a potential new source of reveniésbelieve that this potential revenue streammisssential marketing advantage of the
NC-stat System. We also market our products at vaiiidustry conferences in order to accelerate theket awareness of our products, our
customer accrual efforts and market adoption fermpoaducts.

We invoice products directly to physicidfiags and other customers, typically at list psicEhe independent regional sales agencies an
their sales representatives are compensated by issions that we pay directly to them. Our regianahagers are compensated by a
combination of base salary, commission and goaddbésnus compensation.

As we launch new products and increasemarketing efforts with respect to existing produets intend to expand the reach of our
marketing and sales force. We plan to accomplighiiyrincreasing the number of direct regional nggma and independent sales agencies
and representatives. The establishment and develupofia broader sales force will be expensivetand consuming. Because of the intense
competition for their services, we may be unablertter into agreements with additional qualifieddpendent sales agencies and
representatives on commercially reasonable ternas alf. Even if we are able to enter into agreemerith additional independent sales
agencies, these parties may not commit the negesssources to effectively market and sell our pits or ultimately be successful in sell
our products. Promotion and sales of medical devére also highly regulated not only by the FDA, &lso by the Federal Trade
Commission, and are subject to federal and statelfand abuse enforcement activities.

In March 2005, we entered into an educagioth development program agreement with Eli Lilid &ompany, an Indiana corporation
("Lilly"), pursuant to which the parties agreedaork together to conduct and present up to eigbity-educational and development progr
regarding DPN across the United States. Underdheeanent, each program will focus on educating igheyss regarding diabetic
microvascular complications, DPN, screening andmtiais of DPN, nerve conduction studies, our NESyatem and its application in DPN
and the benefits to physicians and patients ofguia NC-stat System. The agreement also provatespecific marketing rights for Lilly in
relation to any attendee of a program that, witliknmonths of attending a program, purchases arstdCSystem from us. After the
completion of 30 programs, either party may eleatancel its respective participation in the renmgjrprograms.

Lilly will be responsible for costs and exjses associated with the programs arising fromkgpdraining, Lilly-executed physician
recruitment vehicles and related materials. We béllsolely responsible for costs and expensesiassdevith the programs related to our
specific recruiting costs.
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The direct costs and expenses arising from thewwdraf the programs will be shared equally by us kitly and may not exceed $15,000 per
program unless mutually agreed to by the partibs.iffitial term of the agreement will be for 18 tftnand may be renewed for five oyeal
successive terms upon agreement by the partiesagieement provides for early termination (i) bihLor us in the event of a change of
control of our company, (ii) by either party if aatarial breach by the other party has occurredsact breach is not cured within ninety days
of written notification of the breach to the bremchparty and (iii) by Lilly in the event its desgment of ruboxistaurin for, among other
things, DPN and/or its symptoms, is ended or deldgyond the initial term of the agreement or oth&e, in Lilly's judgment, rendered
impractical due to product development issues. Déeiog on how the agreement expires or is termindtedparties' specific marketing rights
and obligations for any attendee of a program thidhin six months of attending a program, purcisaeae NC-stat System from us may
continue in force until December 31, 2010.

Lilly currently has a therapeutic agenPimase Il clinical trials for the treatment of DPNe hope to increase our installed base of
customers using the NC-stat System and hope tblisstahe NC-stat System as a leading diagnosti©feN.

Manufacturing and Supply

We rely on outside contractors for the nfaoture and servicing of our products and their gonents, and we do not currently maintain
alternative manufacturing sources for the NC-stanitor, docking station or biosensors or any ofmeshed goods products. In outsourcing,
we target companies that meet FDA, Internationgla@ization for Standardization, or ISO, and othealiy standards supported by internal
policies and procedures. Supplier performance istaiaed and managed through a corrective actiogram ensuring all product
requirements are met or exceeded. We believe thasefacturing relationships minimize our capitaldstment, provide us with
manufacturing expertise and help control costs.

Following the receipt of products or prodaemponents from our third-party manufacturerscamduct the necessary inspection and
packaging and labeling at our corporate headquafideility. We may consider manufacturing certaioducts or product components
internally, if and when demand or quality requirensemake it appropriate to do so. We currently havglans to manufacture any products
or product components internally.

We seek to obtain products from our martufaes in order to maintain sufficient inventorysatisfy our customer obligations. We did
not experience any inventory shortages on any kstiald products in 2004. We occasionally experidramesient inventory shortages,
typically lasting less than one month, on new patslaluring the initial production ramp-up phase. & currently working with our third-
party manufacturers to increase manufacturing dapedto meet the demand we expect as we increassales efforts. Manufacturers often
experience difficulties in scaling-up productiomcluding problems with production yields and quationtrol and assurance. If our third-party
manufacturers are unable to manufacture our predadteep up with demand, we would not meet extieasafor growth of our business.

Polyflex Circuits, Inc., a wholly owned sidiiary of the Parlex Corporation, has been manufang NC-stat biosensors under general
purchase orders since early 1999. While our reiatigp with Polyflex Circuits is good, we have n@gly agreement in place with Polyflex,
and it could cease manufacturing NC-stat biosersoagy time. We have identified alternative sugrglicapable of manufacturing NC-stat
biosensors should this become necessary. Howéwee, are forced to engage an alternative suppliermay incur additional expense, higher
cost per unit, delays in delivery and quality cohproblems. The Company is currently negotiatirsypply agreement with Polyflex Circui
but there is no assurance that an agreement wallibeessfully negotiated, or if negotiated, it Wil on reasonable terms.
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Advanced Electronics, Inc., or AEl, hasmesanufacturing our NC-stat monitors and dockimgishs since November 2002. In
October 2003, we entered into a one-year contraciufacturing agreement with AEI that automaticadigews each year unless either party
elects not to renew the agreement upon 90 days'ritten notice. The current term of the agreensxpires in November 2005. Both AEI
and NEUROMetrix have been performing to the terfrth® agreement; however, AEI could cease manufiactINC-stat monitors and
docking stations for us when the current term efdgreement expires. We have identified alternatiygpliers capable of manufacturing the
NC-stat monitor and docking station should this beearacessary. However, if we are forced to engagsdtamative supplier, we may incur
additional expense, higher cost per unit, delaydelivery and quality control problems.

We and our third-party manufacturers agestered with the FDA and subject to compliancéniADA quality system regulations. We
are also I1SO registered and undergo frequent gualétem audits by European agencies. Our prodwetsleared for market within the
United States and Canada, and are also approvelisfabution in the European Union, although téedae have sales only in the United
States. Our facility and the facilities of our méauiurers are subject to periodic unannounced tigpes by regulatory authorities, and may
undergo compliance inspections conducted by the BBd\corresponding state agencies. We experiemcE®A inspection in May 2003.
During its inspection, the FDA issued a Form 48Bich is a notice of inspection observations. Twaanitems were identified and the
corrective action for both were initiated priorthe completion of the audit. The responses providdetle FDA were deemed adequate and no
further action has been requested. As a registireide manufacturer, we and our manufacturersumiflergo regularly scheduled FDA
quality system inspections; however, additional FR$pections may occur if deemed necessary by e F

Information Technology Infrastructure

Our information technology infrastructusediesigned to support the requirements of our dri@fakrmation System. The onCall
Information System employs a high performance agalplatform consisting of standard hardware, petgry and off-the-shelf system
software components, database servers, proprigpgrjcation servers, a modem bank and desktopcgijains. The in-bound infrastructure
consists of telephone lines and proprietary comoatitins gateway software to collect data from #raate NC-stat Systems. The gateway
assembles the data sent from each remote NC-stkingostation, stores it and queues it for procesbly our proprietary software. The
processing infrastructure consists of proprietafjwgare to process each nerve conduction study olitdound infrastructure consists of a
proprietary report server application and a fax email server that is an off-the-shelf product.

The onCall Information System utilizes sisgibated expert system technology to provide tisaé quality control monitoring and
reporting of nerve conduction study results. on€alpplications include:

. a communications gateway for receiving test filed apdating the software of remote NC-stat Systems;
. a relational database server to store and retriem&e conduction studies;

. an application server to analyze and maintain grgenconduction study data;

. an application server to format and produce neovelaction reports;

. a fax and email server to send reports to remaesuand

. a client application that is designed to monitoalgy and service customer requests.
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The application servers and client appiiceg use a common set of software components diait the onCall class library.

The onCall Information System is physicagcured in our restricted-access computer roamrdacilities in Waltham, Massachusetts.
Our computer facility's electrical power is backgrdwith auxiliary power in the event of a poweramg. Automated backups of the databases
and computer files are maintained both on- andibéf-We also maintain a lock box at an off-siteakion that contains copies of the business
continuity plan and application server softwarahib the operation of the onCall Information Systhat would be needed in a disaster
recovery situation.

Research and Development

Our research and development efforts areded in the near term on further enhancing owstiexi products and developing the third
generation NC-stat monitor and docking station ment NC-stat biosensors, as well as designing a dieligery system for the minimally
invasive treatment of neuropathies by both printame and specialist physicians. Our research anela@ment staff consists of 19 people,
including four who hold Ph.D. degrees. Our researuhdevelopment group has extensive experiengeurophysiology, biomedical
instrumentation, signal processing, biomedical senand information systems. These individuals waolsely with our marketing group, our
clinical support group (led by a board-certifiediriogist), our scientific advisors and our custosrte design products that are intended to
improve clinical and economic outcomes.

Customer Service and Clinical Support

Our customer service group consists ofgdresentatives. These representatives are awabghielephone 12 hours per day, five days
per week to address a wide range of technical mursstrom customers on the use of the NC-stat 8ystespond to customer requests for
product and clinical materials that have been sslddy our marketing department, take orders, amde customers with order status
information. Our customer service representatieesive specialized ongoing product and clinicahing. We also maintain a clinical supg
group consisting of four individuals. Our cliniclpport group is available to address questioma fror customers relating to test results and
use of our products. This group is led by a boa&ndifted neurologist, who is a full-time employee.

Competition

We consider the primary competition for pupducts to be traditional NCS/nEMG procedures. $iigccess depends in large part on
convincing physicians to adopt the NC-stat Systewrder to perform nerve conduction studies apttiat-of-service.

There are a number of companies thatisallttonal NCS/nEMG equipment, typically to neumgikts. These companies include the
Nicolet Biomedical division of Viasys Healthcarelnthe Functional Diagnostics division of Medtimrinc., Oxford Instruments, Plc., a
Cadwell Laboratories, Inc. Viasys Healthcare, Mediit and Oxford Instruments have substantially grefinancial resources than we do,
they have established reputations as worldwideibligton channels for medical instruments to neag@dts and other physicians. We do not
know if these companies are engaged in researcHarelopment efforts to develop products to perfpoimt-of-service nerve conduction
studies that would be competitive with the [Ntat System. We are aware of one company, Neunwedtiat markets a nerve conduction st
system to the point-of-service market.

We believe that among systems marketegddiormance of nerve conduction studies today, tmyNC-stat System provides both the
level of diagnostic accuracy and the ease of upained for successful penetration of the point-@fvice market. We also believe that the
reporting and data repository functions providedh®syonCall Information System, although entirghyional, provide our
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customers who use this service with significanteaticdlinical and economic value that is not matdmedther currently marketed products.
We further believe that the expanding databasenferconduction study data captured by the on@#drination System facilitates our abil
to improve the performance of the NC-stat Systera.b&lieve that the size of our database and ongwmipgovements provide us with a
significant competitive advantage.

Intellectual Property

We rely on a combination of patents, tradeks, copyrights, trade secrets and other intelldgiroperty laws, nondisclosure agreements
and other measures to protect our proprietary t@oly, intellectual property rights and know-howe\WWold issued utility patents covering a
number of important aspects of our NC-stat Sysi#im believe that in order to have a competitive athuge, we must develop and maintain
the proprietary aspects of our technologies. Ctigrewe require our employees, consultants andsaigito execute confidentiality
agreements in connection with their employmentsatiing or advisory relationships with us, whergmpriate. We also require our
employees, consultants and advisors who we expeebitk on our products to agree to disclose anigjass us all inventions conceived
during the work day, developed using our propertwlich relate to our business. Despite any measaken to protect our intellectual
property, unauthorized parties may attempt to agpects of our products or to obtain and use irditiomn that we regard as proprietary.

Patents

As of December 31, 2004, we had 11 issu& phatents, two issued foreign patents (one irtrAlig and one in Canada) and 18 pending
patent applications, including 12 U.S. applicatiansl six foreign national applications. We alsadrenh exclusive license to two issued U.S.
patents, one issued foreign patent (Europe) anghending foreign national patent application. T¢sued and pending patents that we own
and license cover, among other things:

. Nerve conduction biosensors and related methods;

. Nerve conduction hardware;

. Algorithms for performing and analyzing nerve coctibon studies; and
. NC-stat System industrial design.

Our issued design patents begin to expi0il5, and our issued utility patents begin tarexim 2017. In particular, seven of our issued
U.S. utility patents covering important aspectswif current products will expire on the same dat2d17. Although the patent protection for
material aspects of our products covered by thenslaf the patents will be lost at that time, wedadditional patents and patent applicat
directed to other novel inventions that will havaent terms extending beyond 2017.

In general terms, a utility patent protebes way an article is used or works, while a degigtent protects the way an article looks. More
particularly, utility patents are provided for amaonobvious and useful process, machine, anicteanufacture, composition of matter or
improvement of any of the foregoing. Design patemésprovided for a new, nonobvious and useful mergtal design of an article of
manufacture. In a design patent application, thgest matter which is claimed is the design embwdtieor applied to an article of
manufacture, or a portion thereof, and not thelaritself. Both design and utility patents maydiained on an article if invention resides
both in its utility and ornamental appearance.

The medical device industry is charactetilag the existence of a large number of patentsfraagient litigation based on allegations of
patent infringement. Patent litigation can invobgmplex
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factual and legal questions, and its outcome i®taim. Any claim relating to infringement of patethat is successfully asserted against us
may require us to pay substantial damages. Ewsa ifiere to prevail, any litigation could be costhyd time-consuming and would divert the
attention of our management and key personnel fonbusiness operations. Our success will alsorakjpepart on our not infringing pate!
issued to others, including our competitors anepiél competitors. If our products are found tiriiige the patents of others, our
development, manufacture and sale of these polt@ntiducts could be severely restricted or probihitn addition, our competitors may
independently develop similar technologies. Becadiske importance of our patent portfolio to ousimess, we may lose market share tc
competitors if we fail to protect our intellectyabperty rights.

As the number of entrants into our marketéases, the possibility of a patent infringenodaitn against us grows. Although we have
received notice of any claims, and are not awhed,dur products infringe other parties' patents @noprietary rights, our products and
methods may be covered by U.S. patents held bgampetitors. In addition, our competitors may astet future products we may market
infringe their patents.

A patent infringement suit brought agaimsimay force us or any strategic partners or lieesso stop or delay developing,
manufacturing or selling potential products that elaimed to infringe a third party's intellectpabperty, unless that party grants us rights to
use its intellectual property. In such cases, wg bearequired to obtain licenses to patents or netary rights of others in order to continus
commercialize our products. However, we may nodlie to obtain any licenses required under anynpate proprietary rights of third
parties on acceptable terms, or at all. Even ifwgee able to obtain rights to the third party'eliectual property, these rights may be non-
exclusive, thereby giving our competitors accedbeosame intellectual property. Ultimately, we nb@yunable to commercialize some of our
potential products or may have to cease some adbasiness operations as a result of patent infnirege claims, which could severely harm
our business.

Trademarks

We hold domestic and certain foreign traddamegistrations for the marks NEUROMETRIX and I[SCAT. The U.S. registration for
NEUROMETRIX is on the Supplemental Register. We aise onCall as a trademark but have not sougtegistration in the United Stat
or any foreign countries.

Third-Party Reimbursement

We anticipate that sales volumes and pofesir products will continue to be dependentirgé part on the availability of
reimbursement for our customers from third-partygra. Third-party payers include governmental progg such as Medicare and Medicaid,
private insurance plans, and workers' compensatiems. These third-party payers may deny reimbuesgiior a diagnostic procedure if they
determine that the diagnostic test was not megiegdpropriate or necessary. The third-party pagerg also place limitations on the types of
physicians that can perform specific types of dasgic procedures. Also, thinolarty payers are increasingly challenging the priciearged fo
medical products and services. In internationalkets; reimbursement and healthcare payment systamsignificantly by country, and
many countries have instituted price ceilings oac#fjr product lines and procedures. There candassurance that procedures using our
products will be considered medically reasonabteraacessary for a specific indication, that oudpiats will be considered cost-effective by
third-party payers, that procedures performed usimgoroducts will be reimbursed as separate puoesdunder existing CPT codes, that an
adequate level of reimbursement will be availablthat the third-party payers' reimbursement pesiavill not adversely affect our ability to
sell our products profitably.
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A key component in the reimbursement denifiy most private insurers and CMS, which adméngssMedicare, is the assignment of a
CPT code. This code is used in the submissionaiingl to insurers for reimbursement for medicalises; CPT codes are assigned,
maintained and revised by the CPT Editorial Boatchiaistered by the American Medical AssociationAdtA. According to present
Medicare guidelines, nerve conduction studies nepdrformed by medical doctors, or M.D.s, and dmotd osteopathic medicine, or D.O.s,
and are reimbursable under the three CPT code§099%903, and 95904. We believe that the nervdweiion measurements performed by
the NC-stat System meet the requirements stipulattte code descriptions published by the AMA #mat these codes are currently used by
physicians performing nerve conduction studies wWithNC-stat System. If the CPT codes that appthégrocedures performed using our
products are changed, reimbursement for perfornsaoicthese procedures may be adversely affected.

In the United States, some insured indigigare receiving their medical care through madagee programs, which monitor and often
require pre-approval of the services that a memililereceive. Some managed care programs are pak&igproviders on a per capita basis,
which puts the providers at financial risk for $e¥vices provided to their patients by paying theesiders a predetermined payment per
member per month, and consequently, may limit thiéngness of these providers to use our products.

We believe that the overall escalating odshedical products and services has led to, alidentinue to lead to, increased pressures on
the healthcare industry to reduce the costs ofymtsdand services. There can be no assurancéifthpairty reimbursement and coverage
will be available or adequate, or that future ligien, regulation, or reimbursement policies afdkparty payers will not adversely affect the
demand for our products or our ability to sell #apsoducts on a profitable basis. The unavailghiditinadequacy of third-party payer
coverage or reimbursement could have a materiadradweffect on our business, operating resultdinadcial condition.

FDA and Other Governmental Regulation
FDA Regulatior

Our products are medical devices subjeektensive regulation by the FDA under the U.S.d;d@rug, and Cosmetic Act, as well as
other regulatory bodies. FDA regulations governpagnother things, the following activities that eeour contract manufacturers perform
and will continue to perform to ensure that meddmlices distributed domestically or exported im&tionally are safe and effective for their
intended use:

. product design and development;
. product testing;

. product manufacturing;

. product labeling;

. product safety;

. product storage;

. pre-market clearance or approval;
. advertising and promotion;

. production; and

. product sales and distribution.
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The FDA classifies medical devices into ohéhree classes on the basis of the controls dderacessary to reasonably ensure their
safety and effectiveness:

. Class I, requiring general controls, including lag device listing, reporting and, for some proth) adherence to good
manufacturing practices through the FDA's qualitstem regulations and pre-market notification;

. Class Il, requiring general controls and speciatticds, which may include performance standardsposd-market
surveillance; and

. Class Ill, requiring general controls and pre-maggproval.

Before being introduced into the markert, products must obtain market clearance throudteethe 510(k) pre-market notification
process, thee novareview process or the pre-market approval process.

510(k) Pre-Market Natification Process

To obtain 510(k) clearance, we must sulanuitemarket notification demonstrating that the propodedce is substantially equivalent
intended use, safety and effectiveness to a legadiiketed Class | or || medical device or to a €léisdevice marketed prior to May 28, 19
for which the FDA has not yet required the subnoissif a pre-market approval application. In somsesawe may be required to perform
clinical trials to support a claim of substantiglesalence. It generally takes from three to twetvenths from the date of submission to ob
510(k) clearance, but it may take longer.

After a medical device receives 510(k) deae, any modification that could significantlyeat its safety or effectiveness, or that would
constitute a significant change in its intended vsguires a new 510(K) clearance or could reqiléraovoclassification or pre-market
approval. The FDA allows each company to makedbtgrmination, but the FDA can review the decislbthe FDA disagrees with a
company's decision not to seek FDA authorizatioe, RDA may retroactively require the company tckseE0(k) clearancaje novo
classification or pre-market approval. The FDA aao require the company to cease marketing thécaletkevice in question until 510(Kk)
clearancede novcclassification or pre-market approval is obtainedbée other action.

De NovoReview Process

If a previously unclassified medical devitzes not qualify for the 510(k) pre-market notfion process because there is no predicate
device to which it is substantially equivalent, afithe device may be adequately regulated thrayegteral controls or special controls, the
device may be eligible fate novcclassification through what is called the novareview process. In order to use thenovoreview process,
a company must receive a letter from the FDA ggattirat, because the device has been found notasitiadlty equivalent to a legally market
Class | or Il medical device or to a Class Il aevimarketed prior to May 28, 1976 for which the FB&s not yet required the submission
pre-market approval application, it has been plactmClass Ill. After receiving this letter, thermapany, within 30 days, must submit to the
FDA a request fode novcclassification into Class | or 1. The FDA then Hedays in which to approve or deny tleenovcoclassification
request. If the FDA grante novcclassification, the device will be placed into eitiClass | or Class Il, and allowed to be markelteal.
product is classified into Class | or 1l througle the novareview process, then that device may serve asdicate device for subsequent 510
(k) pre-market notifications.

Pre-Market Approval Process

If a medical device does not qualify foe t10(k) pre-market notification process and isaligiible for clearance through tide novo
review process, a company must file a pre-marketaal
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application. The pre-market approval process géigesgjuires more extensive pre-filing testing thamequired in the 510(k) pre-market
notification process and is more costly, lengthgt ancertain. The pre-market approval process dandae to three years or longer. The pre-
market approval process requires the company teepte safety and effectiveness of the devicead-bA's satisfaction through extensive
submissions, including pre-clinical and clinicadkidata, and information about the device, itdgigananufacture, labeling and components.
Before granting pre-market approval, the FDA gelheedso performs an on-site inspection of manufaoy facilities for the product to
ensure compliance with the FDA's quality systenulaipns. After any pre-market approval, a new miaket approval application or
application supplement may be required in the es&ntodifications to the device, its labeling, intled use or indication, or its manufactu
process.

Clinical Studies

A clinical study is almost always requitedsupport a pre-market approval application argbraetimes required to obtain 510(k)
clearance. These trials generally require submissighe FDA of an application for an investigatdbdevice exemption, or IDE, if a medical
device presents a "significant risk" as definedi®y/FDA. The IDE application must be supported jpyrapriate data, such as animal and
laboratory testing results, showing that it is daftest the device in humans and that the tegtiagpcol is scientifically sound. If a medical
device is considered a "non-significant” risk, Biiclapplication to the FDA is not required. Insteawly approval from the Institutional
Review Board overseeing the clinical trial is reqdi The IDE application must be approved in adedncthe FDA for a specified number of
patients, unless the product is deemed a non-gigntfrisk device and eligible for more abbreviatecbstigational device exemption
requirements. Clinical trials for a significantkiidevice may begin once the investigational deeiemption application is approved by the
FDA and the appropriate institutional review boaatithe clinical study sites. All clinical studiesist be conducted in accordance with FDA
regulations and federal regulations concerning husudoject protection and healthcare privacy. Tlaltg of our clinical testing may not
support or may not be sufficient to obtain apprafabur product.

NC-stat System

The NCstat System has received five 510(k) clearancesGass Il medical device, the first of which wasaived in 1998, and the m
recent (K041320) in August 2004. The NC-stat Sydtesthe following intended use:

The NEUROMetrix NGitat is intended to measure neuromuscular sigmelsdre useful in diagnosing and evaluating syste
and entrapment neuropathies.

We believe that this intended use is caestawvith the manner in which the Nstat System is marketed and used by our custoiBerse
we received our most recent 510(k) clearance ®NB-stat System in August 2004, we have enhareedI€C-stat System by making
changes to the software it employs. We do not belibat these changes require new 510(k) clearaded$urther believe that the addition of
new indications and enhancements to the NC-staeByim the future either will not require new FDAtlorization or will be able to be
cleared using the 510(k) pre-market notificatioogass.

Post-Market Regulation
After a device is placed on the market, atous regulatory requirements apply. These include:

. quality system regulations, which require manufemtto follow design, testing, control, documeiotatind other quality
assurance procedures during the manufacturing gspce

23




. labeling regulations, which prohibit the promoti@inproducts for unapproved or "¢label” uses and impose other restricti
on labeling; and

. medical device reporting regulations, which reqtfir@ manufacturers, which term includes compasieé as us that create
the specifications for the regulated products, refwothe FDA if their device may have caused artdbuted to a death or
serious injury or malfunctioned in a way that wolik&tly cause or contribute to a death or seriojgry if it were to recur.

Also, we are subject to unannounced inspectionts®yDA, and these inspections may include the faatwring facilities of our contractor
manufacturers.

Failure to comply with applicable regulatoequirements can result in enforcement actiothey=DA, which may include any of the
following sanctions:

. warning letters, fines, injunctions, consent desi@ed civil penalties;

. repair, replacement, refund, recall or seizurewfproducts;

. operating restrictions, suspension or shutdowrradypction;

. refusing our request for 510(k) clearance or preketaapproval of new products, new intended usesatlifications to

existing products;
. withdrawing 510(k) clearance or pre-market apprevhaht already have been granted; and

. criminal prosecution.

International Regulation

International sales of medical devicessagject to foreign governmental regulations, whiahy substantially from country to country.
The time required to obtain approval by a foreigartry may be longer or shorter than that requioed-DA approval, and the requirements
may differ.

The primary regulatory environment in Ewgap that of the European Union, which consist8®€ountries encompassing most of the
major countries in Europe. Other countries, sucBwitzerland, have voluntarily adopted laws anditagpns that mirror those of the
European Union with respect to medical devices. Hlm®pean Union has adopted numerous directivestamdiards regulating the design,
manufacture, clinical trials, labeling, and advezsent reporting for medical devices. Devices twahply with the requirements of a relevant
directive are entitled to bear CE conformity magkimdicating that the device conforms with theeesi®l requirements of the applicable
directives and, accordingly, can be commercialitriuted throughout Europe. The method of assgsginformity varies depending on the
class of the product, but may involve self-assessimg the manufacturer, a third-party assessmeut Mgtified Body, which is a third-party
organization appointed by a member of the Europé@aon, or some combination thereof. This third-passessment may consist of an audit
of the manufacturer's quality system and spedafiting of the manufacturer's product. An assessheatNotified Body in one country
within the European Union generally is requireaider for a manufacturer to distribute the prodimhmercially throughout the European
Union. In 2000, we were certified by TUV Product\Bee, a Notified Body, under the European Uniondidal Device Directive allowing tt
CE conformity marking to be applied to the NC-8gstem. We had a successful renewal audit in 2003.

U.S. Anti-Kickback and False Claims Laws

In the United States, there are federalstatk anti-kickback laws that prohibit the paymamnteceipt of kickbacks, bribes or other
remuneration intended to induce the purchase ammatendation of healthcare products and servicedalons of these laws can lead to civil
and criminal penalties,
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including exclusion from participation in federaddithcare programs. These laws are potentiallyiGgpe to manufacturers of medical
devices, such as us, and hospitals, physicianstied potential purchasers of medical devices. Qihavisions of state and federal law
provide civil and criminal penalties for presenting causing to be presented, to third-party paf@reeimbursement, claims that are false or
fraudulent, or which are for items or services thate not provided as claimed. Although we plasttacture our future business relationsl
with purchasers of our products to comply with thaad other applicable laws, it is possible thatesof our business practices in the future
could be subject to scrutiny and challenge by faldar state enforcement officials under these |avss type of challenge could have a
material adverse effect on our business, finargabition and results of operations.

Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Axft1996 and Related Lav

Federal and state laws protect the confidlly of certain patient health information, inding patient records, and restrict the use and
disclosure of that protected information. In parée, the U.S. Department of Health and Human $es/promulgated patient privacy rules
under HIPAA. These privacy rules protect medicabrds and other personal health information bytlirgitheir use and disclosure, giving
individuals the right to access, amend and seetwating of their protected health information amditing most use and disclosures of health
information to the minimum amount reasonably nemgst accomplish the intended purpose. Althougldeaot believe that we are subject
to the HIPAA rules because we receive patient olataur onCall Information System on an anonymousdyavith all patient specific
information de-identified, we nevertheless seekamply with a number of these rules. We believé Weare not in violation of federal or
state health information privacy or confidentiaktatutes or regulations. However, if we are fotmbave violated any of these laws, we
could be subject to civil or criminal penalties.dMibnally, changes in these laws could advers#caour business.

Employees

As of December 31, 2004, we had a tot&@l®€&mployees. Of the total employees, 19 weresearch and development, 31 in sales and
marketing and 18 in general and administrativeisesy Two employees hold both M.D. and Ph.D. degrieair additional employees hold
Ph.D. degrees and one additional employee hold4.Bndegree.

Our employees are not represented by a lation and are not subject to a collective bariggiagreement. We have never experienc
work stoppage. We believe our relations with oupkayees are good.

Available Information

Access to our Annual Report on Form 10-Kia@erly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports @mi8-K and amendments to these
reports filed with or furnished to the Securitiesld&xchange Commission may be obtained throughtrestor Relations section of our
website at www.neurometrix.com/investor as sooreasonably practical after we electronically fitefarnish these reports. We do not che
for access to and viewing of these reports. Infoionaon our Investor Relations page and on our Vtelsnot part of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K or any of our other securities filingdass specifically incorporated herein by referetigeddition, our filings with the Securities
and Exchange Commission may be accessed throu@ethgities and Exchange Commission's Electronte Gathering, Analysis and
Retrieval system at www.sec.gov. All statementsenadany of our securities filings, including adirivard-looking statements or information,
are made as of the date of the document in whielstditement is included, and we do not assumedartake any obligation to update any of
those statements or documents unless we are redaidd so by law.
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ITEM 2: PROPERTIES

Our headquarters is located in a 30,00@rgioot facility in Waltham, Massachusetts, whigd occupy under an office lease expiring
March 2009. We believe that our existing facilgyaidequate for our current needs.

ITEM 3: LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are not currently party to any matdeghl proceedings. However, we may from time taetinecome a party to various legal
proceedings arising in the ordinary course of awgitess.

ITEM 4: SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote ofsmaurity holders during the fourth quarter of tlkaryended December 31, 2004, through the
solicitation of proxies or otherwise.
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PART Il

ITEM 5: MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock is quoted on the NASDAQidteal Market under the symbol "NURQ". The pricaega per share reflected in the
table below is the high and low closing sales grigeour common stock as reported by NASDAQ forgkaods indicated. Our stock first
started trading on July 22, 2004.

High Low
Year ended December 31, 200«
First quartel N/A N/A
Second quarte N/A N/A
Third quartel $ 1108 $ 7.3¢
Fourth quarte $ 11.78  $ 8.2C

On March 16, 2005, there were approximaddlgtockholders of record of our common stocksThimber does not include stockholc
for whom shares were held in a "nominee" or "streate. On March 16, 2005, the last reported sé@be per share of our common stock on
the NASDAQ National Market was $9.47.

We have never declared or paid any casbefids on our common stock. We currently intencetain future earnings, if any, to finance
the expansion and growth of our business and dexpect to pay any cash dividends in the foresedablre. Payment of future cash
dividends, if any, will be at the discretion of dasard of directors after taking into account vasidactors, including our financial condition,
operating results, current and anticipated castisnaed plans for expansion.

On July 21, 2004, the Securities and Exgeabommission declared effective our registratiatesnent on Form S-1 (File No. 333-
115440), relating to the initial public offering ofir common stock. We expect to continue to usenétgroceeds from the initial public
offering for general corporate purposes, includmgxpand our selling and marketing and servicgarrations, develop new distribution
channels, expand our research and developmentsfiimprove our operational and financial systent far other working capital purposes.
We may also use a portion of the net proceedsduoiacor invest in complementary businesses, prsdurctechnologies. We have no specific
understandings, commitments or agreements withleotsp any such acquisition or investment. Exceed forth below, we have not
allocated any portion of the net proceeds for greciic purpose. The aggregate price of the offeamount registered on our behalf was
$27.6 million. In connection with the offering, ywaid approximately $1.9 million in underwriting daunts and commissions to the
underwriters and incurred an estimated $1.7 miliroather offering expenses. None of the underagitliscounts and commissions or
offering expenses were incurred or paid to directrofficers of ours or their associates or tespes owning 10 percent or more of our
common stock or to any affiliates of ours. Afteddeting the underwriting discounts and commissims offering expenses, we received net
proceeds from the offering of approximately $24i0iom. From July 21, 2004, the effective date loé tregistration statement, to
December 31, 2004 we have used (i) $3.1 milliothefnet proceeds to repay in full the outstandisgrce under our secured line of credit
with Lighthouse Capital Partners, (ii) an estima$dcll 33,000 of the net proceeds to fund cash spgmafiour research and development
activities, (iii) an estimated $383,000 of the priceeds to fund the expansion of our sales anllatiag efforts and (iv) an estimated $42,!
for the purchase of capital equipment. The remainfiéhe net proceeds have been invested in mdregtmvestment grade, interest-bearing
securities pending their use. Our use of the preieé®m our initial public offering does not repees a material change from the description
provided in our prospectus.

See Part I, Item 12 for information redjaig securities authorized for issuance under gguitnpensation plans.
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ITEM 6: SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

You should read the data set forth belowanjunction with Item 7, "Management's Discussaon Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations", Item 7A, "Quantitative &whlitative Disclosures About Market Risk" and financial statements and related notes
appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on FODAK1The selected statement of operations dattbogétbelow for the years ended
December 31, 2004, December 31, 2003, Decemb&@0BP, and the consolidated balance sheet dataResoceimber 31, 2004 and
December 31, 2003 are derived from our auditechired statements that are included elsewhere sW/4hnual Report on Form 10-K. The
selected statement of operations data for the yated December 31, 2001 and December 31, 200tharzhlance sheet data as of
December 31, 2002, December 31, 2001 and Decemb@080 are derived from our financial statememds &re not included in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

(In thousands, except share and per share data)

(Unaudited)
Statement of Operations Data
Revenue: $ 17,92( % 9,16¢ $ 422 $ 3,46/ $ 97¢
Cost of revenue 4,85: 2,70 1,37( 1,42¢ 634
Gross margin Operating expens 13,06 6,461 2,85¢ 2,04( 34k
Research and development 3,26¢ 2,391 2,14¢ 2,561 1,984
Sales and marketing( 8,48¢ 4,76¢ 2,87( 5,30¢ 3,471
General and administrative( 4,84~ 2,85( 2,67 3,22¢ 2,32¢
Total operating expens 16,60: 10,01¢ 7,68¢ 11,09: 7,78¢
Loss from operation (3,539 (3,559 (4,839 (9,059) (7,447
Interest income (expense), | (750) (113 41 33¢€ 45¢
Net loss (4,289 (3,667 (4,799 (8,717) (6,9872)
Accretion of dividend on redeemable
convertible preferred stoc (1,386 (2,009 (1,899 (1,75%) (1,109
Deemed dividend on redeemable converti
preferred stocl (78¢) — (6,877%) — —
Beneficial conversion feature associated \
redeemable convertible preferred st (7,057) — — — —
Net loss attributable to common stockholc  $ (13,509 $ (5,67¢ $ (13,559 $ (10,474 $ (8,08¢)

Net loss per common sha

Basic and dilutes $ (2.3 $ (5.46) $ (13.1%) $ (10.47) $ (8.3€)
Weighted average basic and diluted comr
shares outstandir 5,747,57! 1,038,81 1,029,211 1,000,32. 967,43!

(1) Non-cash stock-based compensation expense is ettindhese amounts as follows:

Research and developmte $ 24¢ 3 35 $ 7 % 8 $ 5
Sales and marketir 357 37 6 15 10
General and administrati 422 24 37 33 37
Total nor-cash stoc-based compensatic $ 1,02¢ $ 9% $ 50 $ 56 $ 52
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As of December 31,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

(In thousands, except share and per share data)

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and cash equivale $ 193¢ $ 1,62 $ 2,701 $ 539% $ 5,38¢
Shor-term investment 18,57¢ — — — —
Working capital 22,50( 2,75¢ 3,724 6,38( 4,99¢
Long-term investment 9,491 — — — —
Total asset 37,95: 7,21¢ 7,058 9,89¢ 7,15¢
Long-term debt and other lo-term liabilities 18¢ 2,23 124 331 964
Warrants for redeemable convertible

preferred stocl — 45( — — —
Redeemable convertible preferred st — 47,69 45,68 34,99 20,81¢
Accumulated defici (57,479 (44,90) (39,860) (26,32) (15,857
Total stockholders' equity/(defici 34,05¢ (45,507 (39,929 (26,43) (16,019

Item 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion of ouarficial condition and results of operations in cargtion with our selected financial
data, our financial statements and the accompangistgs to those financial statements included éisesvin this Annual Report on Form 10-
K. This discussion contains forwelooking statements that involve risks and uncettes. As a result of many factors, such as thesésth
under the section entitled "Important Factors Th&ty Affect Future Operating Results" and elsewtieithis Annual Report on Form 10-K,
our actual results may differ materially from thasticipated in these forward-looking statements.

Overview

NEUROMetrix was founded in June 1996. Weigle, develop and sell proprietary medical devicssd to diagnose neuropathies. Our
proprietary technology provides physicians withimoffice diagnostic system, the NC-stat Systerat tmables physicians to make rapid and
accurate diagnoses of neuropathies. The NC-st&18yis comprised of: (1) disposable NC-stat biosenthat are placed on the patient's
body; (2) the NC-stat monitor and related compasieamid (3) the NC-stat docking station, an optiaiealice that enables the physician's
office to transmit data to our onCall Informatiops§m. Each component of the NC-stat System issallgbseparately. The sensitivity of the
nervous system to metabolic and mechanical dantagapounded by its limited regenerative ability,ates a market opportunity for a
medical device that can assist in point-of-serdiegnoses of neuropathies in a manner that iseftesttive for the patient and third-party
payer. We believe the ease of use, accuracy ancgeon@nce provided by the NC-stat System positida lecome a standard of care for the
assessment of neuropathies at the point-of-service.

From our inception until May 1999, we hagldted substantially all of our efforts to designand developing the NC-stat System and
other potential products, raising capital and riticrgi personnel. We believe that one of our strbags our ability to develop and
commercialize innovative products for neurologigaplications. In May 1999, we shipped our first Ni@t System. At that time we sold one
type of biosensor, for the testing of the mediaanoerve. In 2000, we introduced an additionakbitsor for the testing of the ulnar motor
nerve. In 2002, we introduced our second-generdiGrstat System, as well as two additional biosesidn 2003, we added to our product
line two biosensors with higher functionality ttnetve the ability to test both motor and sensoryegerin 2004, we introduced two new NC-
stat biosensors as well as components for the BQ¥sinitor to utilize these new biosensors. Th& fiew biosensor is used to test the ulnar
nerve at the elbow and the second to test the saraé. In 2004, our revenues grew over 95% froerpitior year, generating $17.9 million in
revenues, of which 87.6% was attributable to salé$C-stat biosensors. Our gross margin percentagé04 was 72.9%.
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We derive our revenues from the sale of$tt-biosensors, monitors and docking stationstjréo end users, which are generally
physicians. Our NC-stat biosensors are disposabliupts that are used once and inactivated afeerTise NC-stat monitor is an electronic
instrument that is used with the NC-stat biosentmperform nerve conduction studies for the puepafsdiagnosing neuropathies. The NC-
stat monitor displays the pertinent results of reronduction studies on an LCD screen immediatelyeaconclusion of each study. The NC-
stat docking station is an optional device thatsied to transmit to the onCall Information Systeatadyenerated by the nerve conduction ¢
performed with the NC-stat monitor. The onCall imfation System formulates the data it receivegémh test into a detailed report that is
provided to the customer through facsimile or etmai

Diagnostic device revenues include revemigewed from the sale of our NC-stat monitors Ai@istat docking stations. Biosensor
revenues include revenues derived from the salamdus types of disposable biosensors used toenfierve conduction studies with the
NC-stat monitor. Our revenue recognition policy is¢oognize revenue from our monitors and biosengoos shipment if the fee is fixed
and determinable, persuasive evidence of an amaegeexists, collection of the resulting receivablprobable and product returns are
reasonably estimable. Revenues from our dockirigpstare deferred and recognized over the shoftereoestimated customer relationship
period or the estimated useful life of the prodaatrently three years.

Reimbursement from third-party payers israportant element of success for medical prodcetspanies. To date, we believe nearly all
of the nerve conduction studies performed by ogtarers with the NC-stat System have been satisfigctovered by third-party payers.
However, widespread adoption of the NC-stat Sydigrthe medical community is unlikely to occur ifysiicians do not continue to receive
satisfactory reimbursement from third-party payergprocedures performed with the NC-stat System.

One of the primary challenges we face inlusiness is successfully expanding the markendove conduction studies. A successful
market expansion will depend upon, in part, ougeting of primary care physicians who traditiondlbve not been targeted by companies
selling equipment used to perform nerve conduciiadies and our ability to alter physicians' pi@gdirelating to the diagnosis of
neuropathies. In order to successfully implemeistghowth strategy, we plan to continue to incremsesales force and our total headcount
and participate in various industry conferencesrier to accelerate the market awareness and adagftour products. In addition, in
March 2005, we entered into an education and dpuadot program agreement with Eli Lilly and Compahlyrough this agreement, our
Company and Eli Lilly and Company will conduct a&d series of up to 84 educational and developpregtrams across the country over
the next 18 months. Each program will focus on atlng physicians regarding diabetic microvascutanplications, DPN, screening and
diagnosis of DPN, nerve conduction studies, ourgtiE-System and its application in DPN and the fiisrte physicians and patients of us
the NC-stat System. These efforts, as well as Vieeatl expansion of our business, will provide tdradjes to our organization and may
increase the burden on our management and opesatvmare focused on monitoring our business g®ivs and appropriately acquiring ¢
allocating resources to address these issuesawgtial of achieving and sustaining profitability.

Since our inception in 1996, we have inediosses every quarter. We incurred net lossapmoximately $8.7 million in 2001,
$4.8 million in 2002, $3.7 million in 2003 and $48llion in 2004. We do not know whether or when wi#i become profitable. At
December 31, 2004, we had an accumulated defieippfoximately $57.5 million. We have financed operations through the public and
private placement of equity securities and throdgbt facilities including a line of credit. As oeBember 31, 2004, we had received net
proceeds of $43.5 million from the issuance of ezdable convertible preferred stock and $24.0 mniliionet proceeds from our initial public
offering ("IPO").
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Our financial objective is to achieve andtain profitable growth. Our efforts in 2005 witintinue to focus primarily on expanding our
sales and marketing for the NC-stat System andraging our ongoing program of making enhancementsiaprovements to the NC-stat
System, including the introduction of new biosess®Ve are also in the early stages of designingi@ delivery system for the minimally
invasive treatment of neuropathies by both printame and specialist physicians. Executing thesectibgs is expected to require the hiring
of additional sales and administrative personragdjtaonal investments in research and developmedthe introduction of new and enhanced
product offerings, with the goal of increasing ouarket penetration. We believe that the accomplesttrof these combined efforts will hav
positive impact on our progress toward the objectizachieving profitability.

Results of Operations

The following table presents certain staetof operations information stated as a percentdgotal revenues:

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Revenues
Diagnostic devict 12.4% 14.2% 17.1%
Biosensol 87.¢ 85.¢ 82.¢
Total revenue 100.C 100.C 100.C
Cost of revenue 27.1 29.t 32.4
Gross margir 72.€ 70.5 67.€
Operating expense
Research and developmt 18.2 26.1 50.¢
Sales and marketir 47 .4 52.C 67.¢
General and administrati 27.C 31.1 63.3
Total operating expens 92.€ 109.2 182.(
Loss from operation (19.9) (38.9 (114.9
Interest income (expense), | 4.2 1.2 1.C
Net loss (23.9% (40.0% (113.5%
| | |

Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2004 and #cber 31, 2003
Revenue

The following tables present a breakdownwfcustomers, biosensor units used and revenues:

12-Month Period
Ended December 31,

%
2004 2003 Change Change

Customer: 2,20 1,73¢ 471 27.1%
12-Months Ended
December 31,

2004 2003 Change % Change
Biosensor unit: 357,40( 203,00 154,40( 76.1%
(in thousands)
Revenues
Diagnostic devict $ 2,219 $ 13020 % 917.2 70.4
Biosensol 15,700.¢ 7,865.: 7,835.: 99.€
Total revenue $ 17,920.. $ 9,167.¢ $ 8,752. 95.t
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Diagnostic device revenues were $2.2 nmilkmad $1.3 million for the years ended Decembe804 and December 31, 2003,
respectively, representing a year-oyear increase of $917,200, or 70.4%. Of this irmeeapproximately $518,600 is attributable to atgm
number of units sold, primarily as a result of acréase in the number of our regional sales masaget expanded clinical uses for the NC-
stat System, and $398,600 is attributable to arease in the list price of our NC-stat monitors dndking stations. Diagnostic device
revenues accounted for 12.4% and 14.2% of our tet@nues for the years ended December 31, 200Deceimber 31, 2003, respectively.

Biosensor revenues were $15.7 million an® $nillion for the years ended December 31, 20@#Recember 31, 2003, respectively,
representing a year-over-year increase of $7.8amjlbr 99.6%. The increase was primarily due tinareased customer base for our
biosensors, increased frequency of testing by ostoeners, and the introduction in May 2003 of higliactionality biosensors that test both
motor and sensory nerve conduction. These highmatifunality biosensors have an average sellinge@i@-80% higher than motor-only
biosensors. Biosensor revenues accounted for 8arek85.8% of our total revenues for the years efismmber 31, 2004 and
December 31, 2003, respectively.

Our customers used 357,400 biosensor imite year ended December 31, 2004, compared3®Q@0 units for the same period in
2003, an increase of 154,400 units, or 76.1%.

Our total revenues were $17.9 million aBd2dmillion for the years ended December 31, 20@#tBecember 31, 2003 respectively,
representing a year-over-year increase of $8.8amjlbr 95.5%. During the 12-month period ending€&maber 31, 2004, a total of 2,207
customers used our NC-stat System compared to ti&6mers for the same period ending Decembe2(®13. This represents a 27.1%
yearover-year increase in the number of customersubed our NC-stat System.

We expect revenues in 2005 to continuadeeiase as we expand our sales and marketingse#fiodt our customer base and make
enhancements and improvements to our NC-stat Systelading the introduction of new biosensors, Wwatexpect revenues to increase at a
slower rate than in 2004. Our revenues could batherly impacted by a variety of factors, includiing level of demand for nerve conduc
studies, potential for changes in third-party raimsiement for nerve conduction studies, the ovehomy and competitive factors.
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Costs and expenses

The following table presents our costs exjpenses and net loss:

Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 Change % Change

(in thousands)

Cost of revenues

Diagnostic devict $ 7281 % 658.1 $ 70.€ 10.7%
Biosensol 4,124.¢ 2,048.- 2,076.: 101.
Total costs of revenue 4,853.1 2,706. 2,146.¢ 79.5
Gross margin
Diagnostic devict 1,490.¢ 644.2 846.¢ 131.¢
Biosensol 11,576.( 5,816.¢ 5,759.: 99.C
Total gross margi 13,066.! 6,461.( 6,605.¢ 102.z
Gross Margin %
Diagnostic devict 67.2% 49.5%
Biosensol 73.7 74.C
Total gross margi 72.€ 70.5
Operating expense
Research and development 3,268.¢ 2,396.¢ 871.¢ 36.4
Sales and marketing( 8,488.( 4,767.¢ 3,720.¢ 78.C
General and administrative( 4,844 2,850.! 1,993.¢ 70.C
Total operating expens: 16,600. 10,014.¢ 6,585.¢ 65.¢
Loss from operation (3,534.0) (3,553.9 19.¢ -0.€
Interest incom 214.1 23.t 190.¢ 811.1
Interest expens (964.7) (136.9) (827.9) 607.:
Net loss (4,284.0) (3,666.7) (617.9) 16.¢
Accretion of dividend on preferred sto (1,386.9) (2,009.H 623.2 -31.C
Deemed dividend and beneficial conversion featare o
redeemable convertible preferred st (7,838.) — (7,838.Y) —
Net loss available to common stockhold $ (13,509.) $ (5,676.)) $  (7,832.9 138.(

Q) Includes non-cash stock-based compensation of:

Research and developmte $ 249 $ 351
Sales and marketir 356.4 36.¢
General and administratiy 423.( 245

Total nor-cash stoc-based compensati $ 1,028t $ 96.4

Gross Margin

Diagnostic device gross margin percentage 67.2% and 49.5% for the years ended Decemb@084,and December 31, 2003,
respectively. The increase in the gross margingoeagie for the year of 2004 compared to 2003 1ibatable partially to an increase in the
list price of our NC-stat monitor and docking statiand partially to a decrease in the cost ofdiagnostic devices commencing in mid-2003
resulting from a change in our third-party manufiaet.

Biosensor gross margin percentage decraas&l7% for the year ended December 31, 2004 #418% for the same period in 2003.
The small decrease in biosensor gross margin pRgeis
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primarily due to a less favorable mix towards higbaes volume of lower margin biosensors durirgytbar of 2004 when compared to 2003.
Our overall gross margin percentage wa8%Zor the year ended December 31, 2004 comparéd.&6 for 2003.

At the end of 2004, we raised the list @ra¢ our diagnostic devices. The list price inceesisould result in a higher diagnostic device
gross margin percentage in 2005 when compareddé.20e anticipate our overall gross margin peragtaill remain relatively consistent
for 2005. However, if sales volumes do not incredds@osensor revenues as a percent of total nee®do not increase, if there is a change in
the mix of biosensors sold, or if pricing pressunesease, then gross margin may be negativelydtepan future quarters.

Research and Development

Our research and development, or R&D, egpeinclude expenses from research, product dewelap clinical, regulatory and quality
assurance departments.

R&D expenses increased $871,600, or 36td%3.3 million for the year ended December 31,200m $2.4 million for the same peri
in 2003. As a percentage of revenues, R&D expenses 18.2% and 26.1% for the years ended Decenih@084 and December 31, 2003,
respectively. The increase in expenses was due iticeease of $564,400 in employee compensatiorbandfit costs primarily from the
hiring of additional employees in our R&D departrfjemn increase in stock-based compensation of $204nd an increase of $87,400 in
outside consulting costs.

For 2005, we expect our spending on R&D wdrease due to the hiring of additional emplayard increased spending on developi
projects. We expect R&D expenses, as a percenfagéabrevenues, to decrease slightly. This pemBeg may vary, however, depending
primarily on our revenues for the year of 2005.

Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing expenses increasechdiBidn, or 78.0%, to $8.5 million for the yeardsd December 31, 2004 from $4.8 million
for the year ended 2003. As a percentage of regsaées and marketing expenses were 47.4% ant58rGhe years ended December 31,
2004 and December 31, 2003, respectively. The aserin expenses was primarily due to an increa$é.afmillion in sales commissions
paid to our independent regional sales agenciesairicrease of $792,900 in sales commissionstpaidr direct sales force, which were
directly related to our higher revenues in 2004 iwcreases of $741,900, $440,700 and $133,000picyee compensation and benefit
costs, travel expenses and recruiting costs, réspBc which resulted from the addition of sevaamieemployees in our sales and marketing
department. The increase was also partially da@mtiocrease of $189,000 in outside consulting serekpense. Sales and marketing expense
also increased due to an increase in non-cash basgd compensation of $319,600 in 2004 compar2dd8. These increases were partially
offset by a reduction of $113,900 in costs for atising, promotional materials and trade showssThduction was due to the fact that we
performed a significant portion of advertising dgswork in-house during 2004, which resulted indowosts as compared to the previous
year when this design work was contracted to venddlso, during 2003 we incurred advertising anahpotion costs related to tl
introduction of our new motor/sensory biosensors.

We expect to hire additional sales and mtémg personnel during the year of 2005. For 20@5expect sales and marketing expenses, a
a percentage of total revenues, to increase oedettel of the total year of 2004. This percentags vary, however, depending primarily on
our revenues for the year of 2005.
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General and Administrative

Our general and administrative expensdadecexpenses from the executive, finance, admatige, customer services and information
technology departments.

General and administrative expenses inete&2.0 million, or 70.0%, to $4.8 million for thyear ended December 31, 2004 from
$2.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2@33a percentage of revenues, general and administexpenses were 27.0% and 31.1%
for the years ended December 31, 2004 and Dece3db@003, respectively. The increase in expensegwmarily due to an increase of
$349,000 in employee compensation and benefit cestsdting partially from the hiring of four additial employees, an increase of $397,000
in non-cash stock-based compensation related téogeg stock options, an increase of $325,400 isidatconsulting services expense
partially used to assist in the preparation for HredIPO process, an increase of credit card anll tsansaction fees of $97,400 and an
increase of $68,100 to bad debt write-off's duthmgyear of 2004. Also contributing to the increes&&A expense were increases of
$362,300 in our insurance costs, $327,300 incrisaser legal and accounting costs and an increb$2%200 in financial printing costs and
filing fees, all related to fulfilling the requireants of a publicly traded company. Partially oftfiset these increases in G&A expense was a
decrease in recruiting costs of $31,900 resultingifan executive search in 2003 that did not ret@004.

We expect our general and administratiyieeaeses to increase during the year of 2005 asut cdur expected growth and the
additional requirements that we will need to flilfis a publicly traded company, although these es@® as a percentage of total revenue:
likely to continue to decrease as revenues incrddss percentage may vary, however, dependingariiynon our revenues during 2005.

Interest Income

Interest income was $214,100 and $23,50glthe years ended December 31, 2004 and Dece3ib@003, respectively. Interest
income was earned from investments in cash equitslshort-term investments and long-term investmeXil cash invested is designated as
held to maturity, however, the investments heldligied and marketable. Interest income increaagihd the year ended December 31, 2004
compared to the same period in 2003 due primarithé investment of our net proceeds from our relf®@ and the net proceeds from our
sale of Series E-1 redeemable convertible prefestaeck in March 2004. Based on this higher avadddalance of funds for investment, we
expect interest income to increase in 2005 as coedpta 2004.

Interest Expense

Interest expense was $964,100 and $13&|300g the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2883ectively, representing an increase
of $827,700. The increase in interest expense wasply due to full repayment of our borrowing werch credit line entered into in
May 2003 with Lighthouse Capital Partners. We exfitte or no interest expense in 2005.

Deemed Dividend and Beneficial Conversion Featur@®edeemable Convertible Preferred Stock

In the first quarter of 2004, we recorde$7/&7,900 deemed dividend as a result of the M2@€H Series E-1 redeemable convertible
preferred stock financing. The deemed dividendlteddrom an adjustment to the conversion ratioa essult of anti-dilution protection
associated with the Series D redeemable convepiklierred stock. We also recorded a charge of @illibn for a beneficial conversion
feature embedded within the Series E-1 redeemalnieectible preferred stock issued in March 2004eréhwas no deemed dividend or
beneficial conversion charge in 2003 and none drgaa 2005.
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Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2003 and #sber 31, 2002
Revenue

The following table presents a breakdownwfcustomers, biosensor units used and revenues:

Year Ended
December 31,

%

2003 2002 Change Change
Customers 1,73¢ 1,39( 34¢€ 24.%%
Biosensor unit: 203,00( 116,20( 86,80( 74.7
(in thousands)

Revenues

Diagnostic devict $ 13020 $ 7226 $ 579.% 80.z

Biosensol 7,865.: 3,502.: 4,362.¢ 124.¢

Total revenue $ 9,167 $ 42250 $ 4,942 117.C

Diagnostic device revenues were $1.3 mnilbod $722,600 in 2003 and 2002, respectivelyesgpiting a year-over-year increase of
$579,700, or 80.2%. Of this increase, approximab2i0,000 is attributable to a greater number dbwold, primarily as a result of an
increase in the number of our regional sales masagal expanded clinical uses for the NC-stat Sysémd $285,000 is attributable to an
increase in the list price of our NC-stat monitansl docking stations. Diagnostic device revenueswated for 14.2% and 17.1% of our total
revenues in 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Biosensor revenues were $7.9 million ané $3llion in 2003 and 2002, respectively, représena year-over-year increase of
$4.4 million, or 124.6%. The increase was primadilie to an increased customer base for our biosgrisoreased frequency of testing by
our customers, and the introduction in May 2008igher functionality biosensors that test both mated sensory nerve conduction. These
biosensors have an average selling price that-B086 higher than our comparable motor-only biosemd8iosensor revenues accounted for
85.8% and 82.9% of our total revenues in 2003 &9 2respectively.

Our customers used 203,000 biosensor im803, compared to 116,200 units in 2002, arciase of 86,800 units, or 74.7%.

Our total revenues were $9.2 million and2$4illion in 2003 and 2002, respectively, représena year-over-year increase of
$4.9 million, or 117.0%. During 2003, a total 036 customers used our NC-stat System, compare@%0 customers during 2002. This
represents a 24.9% year-over-year increase inuindar of customers that used our NC-stat System.
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Costs and expenses

The following table presents our costs exjpenses and net loss:

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 Change % Change

(in thousands)

Cost of revenues

Diagnostic devict $ 658.1 $ 420.1 $ 238.( 56.7%
Biosensol 2,048.: 950.( 1,098.- 115.¢
Total cost of revenue 2,706.t 1,370.: 1,336.¢ 97.t
Gross margin
Diagnostic devict 644.2 302.t 341.7 113.(
Biosensol 5,816.¢ 2,552.. 3,264.! 127.¢
Total gross margi 6,461.. 2,854.¢ 3,606.: 126.:
Gross margin %
Diagnostic devict 49.5% 41.%
Biosensol 74.C 72.¢
Total gross margin ¢ 70.5 67.€
Operating expense
Research and development $ 2,396.¢ $ 2,146.. $ 250.7 11.7
Sales and marketing( 4,767.¢ 2,869." 1,897.¢ 66.1
General and administrative( 2,850.t 2,672." 177.¢ 6.7
Total operating expens: 10,014.¢ 7,688.! 2,326.¢ 30.:
Loss from operation (3,553.9) (4,833.9 1,279.¢ -26.5
Interest incomi 23.4 80.: (56.9) -70.€
Interest expens (136.9) (40.2) (96.7) 239.1
Net loss (3,666.7) (4,793 1,126.¢ -23.t
Accretion on redeemable convertible preferred s (2,009.9 (1,892.) (116.9 6.2
Deemed dividend on redeemable convertible preferrec
stock — (6,872.9) 6,872.¢ —
Net loss available to common stockhold $ (5,676.9) $ (13,559.) $ 7,882.¢ -58.1

Q) Includes non-cash stock-based compensation of:

Research and developmte $ 351 $ 7.7
Sales and marketir 36.¢ 5.8
General and administratiy 24.F 36.7

Total nor-cash stoc-based compensatic $ 9.4 $ 50.2

Gross Margin

Diagnostic device gross margin percentage 49.5% and 41.9% in 2003 and 2002, respectiVély.increase in the gross margin
percentage in 2003 compared to 2002 is attribusetigliy to an increase in the list price of our #stat monitor and docking station, and
partially to a decrease in the price we paid fardiagnostic devices resulting from a change intbird-party manufacturer.

Biosensor gross margin percentage incre@ms@d.0% in 2003 from 72.9% in 2002. Our motoréxey biosensors, introduced in 2003,
provide improved performance, resulting in loweell warranty costs and higher gross margin.
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Our overall gross margin percentage was%(0dn 2003 compared to 67.6% in 2002. A favorabie towards higher gross margin
biosensor revenues in 2003 contributed to thisimse in overall gross margin percentage, alongtivitbe factors discussed above.

Research and Development

R&D expenses increased $250,700, or 11tG%2.4 million in 2003 from $2.1 million in 200As a percentage of revenues, R&D
expenses were 26.1% and 50.8% in 2003 and 20Q&zatdgely. The increase in expenses was primatily t increases of $21,600 and
$33,800 in compensation expense and recruitingresqyeespectively, which resulted from the hirifigneo additional employees in our R&
department, an increase of $58,800 in outside domgexpense, and an increase of $56,800 in pypéotosts related to new product
development, including the development of two bisees introduced in 2003 and one biosensor intredlire the first half of 2004.

Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing expenses increasecdilli®n, or 66.1%, to $4.8 million in 2003 from $2million in 2002. As a percentage of
revenues, sales and marketing expenses were 5280%720% in 2003 and 2002, respectively. The irsgaéa expenses was primarily due to
an increase of $610,600 in sales commissions paditregional sales managers and an increases8f330 in sales commissions to our
independent regional sales agencies, both of wiarle directly related to our higher revenues in@hd an increase of $479,700 in
compensation and bonus expense, which resultedtfrerhiring of two additional employees in our sa@d marketing department, includ
our chief operating officer in July 2002. Because independent regional sales agencies are coméenseclusively on a commission basis,
their compensation is linked directly to our revesiuThe compensation of our internal sales forpeedominately based upon meeting
internal performance goals and, therefore, aldatirto our revenues. Also contributing to the iase=in sales and marketing expenses w.
increase of $149,700 in advertising and productmtion expense and an increase of $127,500 inlteanklodging expense.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses ineck$477,800, or 6.7%, to $2.9 million in 2003 fr&&h7 million in 2002. As a percentage of
revenues, general and administrative expenses3tet&o and 63.3% in 2003 and 2002, respectively.ifitrease in expenses was primarily
due to an increase of $115,500 in general recgiiosts and an increase of $33,800 in insurands.d@eneral and administrative staffing
levels remained consistent during 2003 and 2002.

Interest Income

Interest income was $23,400 and $80,3@D0O8 and 2002, respectively. Interest income waseelafrom investments in cash
equivalents and short-term investments (with maasriof 90 to 180 days). Interest income decreas2803 compared to 2002 because of
lower average cash balances available for invedtarghlower yields on outstanding investment baganc

Interest Expense

Interest expense was $136,300 and $40r22003 and 2002, respectively, representing arase of $96,100 or 239.1%. The increase
in interest expense was primarily due to increds®dowing under a new credit line obtained in M&p32.
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Deemed Dividend on Redeemable Convertible Prefe3tedk

In 2002, we recorded a $6.9 million deerdwitiend as a result of the December 2002 Serigésdétieemable convertible preferred stock
financing and the anti-dilution provisions assaaibtvith the Series D and Series E redeemable ctilolegpreferred stock. The $6.9 million
deemed dividend resulted from an adjustment t@timversion ratios as a result of anti-dilution poion associated with the Series D and
Series E redeemable convertible preferred stockréltvas no deemed dividend in 2003.

Liquidity and Capital Resource

Our principal source of liquidity is ourreent cash and cash equivalents, and short-terntoaigeterm investments. As of December 31,
2004, weighted average maturity of our short amg fierm investments was 281 days. Our ability toegate cash from operations is
dependent upon our ability to generate revenue fal@s of our diagnostic devices and consumabbeh&ors, as well as our ability to
manage our operating costs and net assets. A dedredemand for our products or unanticipatedeiases in our operating costs would lil
have an adverse effect on our liquidity and castegaed from operations. The following sets fondfoimation relating to our liquidity:

Year Ended December 31,

%

2004 2003 Change Change
Cash and cash equivalel 1,93¢ 1,62: 313 19.2%
Shor-term investment 18,57¢ — 18,57¢ N/A
Working capital 22,50( 2,754 19,74¢ 717.(%
Long-term investment 9,497 — 9,491 N/A

During 2004, our cash and cash equivalshizit-term investments and long-term investmearteeased primarily due to the receipt of
approximately $24.0 million of net proceeds front tRO in July 2004 and approximately $10.6 millmimet proceeds from the sale of our
Series E-1 redeemable convertible preferred stodkarch 2004.

In March 2004, we sold 7,050,771 sharesunfSeries E-1 redeemable convertible preferretkdtmexisting preferred stockholders for
net proceeds of $10.6 million. These shares coedgento 1.8 million shares of common stock upondiesing of our initial public offering.
These shares contained a beneficial conversionrieas the estimated fair value of our commonksabthe date of the sale was in excess of
the conversion price associated with Series E-@aethble convertible preferred stock share price.tdtal value of the beneficial conversion
feature of approximately $7.1 million was recogdize the form of a preferred stock dividend in finst quarter of 2004. In addition, we
recognized a deemed dividend of approximately &Y in the first quarter of 2004 as a result oddjustment in the conversion rate of the
Series D redeemable convertible preferred stoakcieted with anti-dilution provisions in connectiatith the March 2004 Series E-1
redeemable convertible preferred stock sale.

On July 27, 2004 we closed the initial pulblffering of our common stock selling 3.0 millishares at $8.00 per share. On August 19,
2004 we sold a 450,000 common share over-allottoentir underwriters at $8.00 per share. Our infighlic offering, including the over-
allotment shares, provided net proceeds of apprateiy $24.0 million. We repaid approximately $2.8lion of secured debt which was
outstanding at the beginning of the quarter in 2094 using a portion of the proceeds of our ihfigblic offering.
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In managing our working capital, two of fireancial measurements that we monitor are dayssutstanding, or DSO, and inventory
turnover rate, which are presented in the tablevbébr the years ended December 31, 2004 and Dezedib 2003:

Years Ended
December 31,

2004 2003
Days' sales outstanding (da: 50 53
Inventory turnover rate (times per ye 41 2.8

Our customer payment terms are generallgeB@ from invoice date. At December 31, 2004,80 was at 50 days, a decrease of 1
days as compared to December 31, 2003. This decie&SO resulted from a corresponding decreasedounts receivable balances aging
greater than 60 days from invoice. This decreasepsianarily due to adding resources to more aggrelysmanage collections in 2004 and
the significant revenue growth in the fourth quadE2004 relative to the small increase in ourcarits receivable balance during the fourth
guarter. We continue to focus our efforts on redgaur accounts receivable balances over 60 dastsipa. Accounts payable are normally
paid within 30 days from receipt of a vendor's iiceo

Our inventory turnover for the year endezst®mber 31, 2004 was 4.1 times compared to 2.&titagng the year of 2003. The increase
in the inventory turnover rate in 2004 as compaoe2003 was primarily due to the 95% growth in maye during 2004 while managing our
inventory growth to 19%.

The following sets forth information relagito the sources and uses of our cash.

Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002

(in thousands)

Net cash used in operating activit $ (2,652 $ (3,879 $ (4,560
Net cash used in investing activiti $ (28,706 $ (2049) $ (30
Net cash provided by financing activiti $ 31,677 $ 2,99¢ $ 1,89t

Cash used in operating activities was $2llfon in 2004 and $3.9 million in 2003. The majgse of cash was to fund operating losses of
$4.3 million in 2004 and $3.7 million in 2003. I0@4, cash was also used to fund an increase ofrilliGn in accounts receivable resulting
from the significant growth in revenues, an inceeisprepaid expenses of $249,400 resulting frazresises in prepaid insurance, and an
increase of $205,900 in inventories to supportaniicipated sales volume increase and new prodhictsluced during the year. These uses
of cash in 2004 were patrtially offset by increaseasccrued expenses, accounts payable, and defewedue and costs of $998,300, $464
and $341,200 respectively.

Cash used in investing activities was $28illilon and $203,600 in 2004 and 2003, respedfiviel 2004, $31.0 million of proceeds from
equity financings was invested in short-term amdjferm investments. In 2004 and 2003 cash was usddd@urchase of fixed assets, in
amount of $545,200 and $203,600, respectively, gnilgnrepresenting additional computer equipmentiar expanded operations in 2004
and tooling costs for the new manufacturer of oGr$iat monitor and docking station in 2003.

Cash provided by financing activities w84 ¥ million and $3.0 million in 2004 and 2003,pestively. The cash from financing
activities in 2004 was primarily generated from ibsguance of common stock through our initial publfifering of 3.4 million shares at $8.00
per share and issuance of preferred stock in aterpplacement prior to the initial public offerinthe cash generated from these financing
activities was partially offset by the repaymen#8f0 million in long-term debt to
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Lighthouse Capital Partners in 2004. The cash fiioamcing activities in 2003 primarily representadceeds from the issuance of long-term
debt provided by Lighthouse Capital Partners, asrileed below.

In May 2003, we entered into a loan andiggcagreement with Lighthouse Capital Partneet firovided us with a secured line of cr
of up to $3.0 million. This line of credit was seed by all of our tangible and intangible assets.0@cember 31, 2003, we had a total
outstanding balance of $3.0 million under this seddine of credit as a result of several advamecade between August 2003 and
December 2003. This line of credit was repaid 1hifu2004.

In connection with our property lease thatentered into with a term beginning January D12@e are required to maintain, for the
benefit of the lessor, an irrevocable standby letteredit stating the lessor as the beneficiarthe amount of $1,860,000 over the term of
lease, which is secured by a certificate of deppsih amount equal to 102% of the letter of crelie lease expires in March 2009. The
certificate of deposit is renewable in 30-day imecemts. The amount is classified as restricted tagie balance sheet.

During 2005, we will be expending fundsannection with our efforts to expand our sales madketing for the NC-stat System and
continue our ongoing program of making enhancemamisimprovements to the NC-stat System, inclutiegintroduction of new
biosensors. We also expect to expend funds ondsigml of a drug delivery system, which is in itdyeatages of development, for the
minimally invasive treatment of neuropathies bytbptimary care and specialist physicians. We belignat the combination of funds
available from cash and cash equivalents and famdiable from our short and lorigkm investments will be adequate to finance ooy
operations for at least two years, including theesditures anticipated for 2005 described above.

As of December 31, 2004, we have federdlsiate net operating loss carryforwards availablafset future taxable income of
$32.0 million and $31.3 million, respectively, afiedleral and state research and development cafdpd77,000 and $237,000, respectively,
available to offset future taxes. The net operaliisg and research and development credit carrgi@isvexpire at various dates beginning in
2011 for federal and 2003 for state. Ownership gkarin our company, as defined in the Internal RegeCode, may limit the amount of net
operating loss and research and development @aditforwards that can be utilized annually to effiuture taxable income and taxes.
Subsequent changes in our ownership could furttiectahe limitation in future years.

To date, inflation has not had a materigact on our financial operations.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements, Contractual Ohiligeand Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
As of December 31, 2004, we did not havedffibalance sheet financing arrangements.

The following table summarizes our printipantractual obligations as of December 31, 20@d the effects such obligations are
expected to have on our liquidity and cash flowRiinre periods.

Payments due in

Aft
Contractual Obligations Total 2005 2006 and 2007 2008 and 2009 2082)
Operating lease obligatiol $ 3,952,501 $ 930,00 $ 1,860,000 $ 1,162,500 $ —
Purchase order obligatio $ 723,900 $ 723,900 $ — $ - $ —
Total contractual obligatior $ 4,676,400 $ 1,653,900 $ 1,860,000 $ 1,162,500 $ —

In addition to the above-listed items, wiséeeed into two separate license agreements. T$tdifiense agreement is with the
Massachusetts Institute of Technology, or M.1.T. kiéee obtained a right to use certain technologyuph the term of the M.I.T.'s patent
rights on such technology, which is exclusive faregiod of 15 years from the date of the licenseagent. In exchange, we issued shares
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of common stock to M.I.T. and are required to payaities of 2.15% of net sales of products incoagiag the licensed technology. In
addition, we are required to pay royalties randmogn 25% to 50% of payments received from sublieess depending on the degree to wi
the licensor's technology was incorporated intopiteelucts sublicensed by us. In addition, we atgated to pay M.I.T. annual license
maintenance fees. On or before December 31, 200hawe paid M.I.T. annual license maintenance tfgtating $50,000 in the aggregate.
For each year after 2004, we are obligated to pdyfMannual license maintenance fees of $75,0@8@nimum sales requirements are not
met. All annual license maintenance fees that wecpa be used to offset future royalties payableunthe agreement. We have the right to
terminate this license agreement at any time upomenths' notice. Through the year ended Decer8be2004, we have not incorporated
this licensed technology into our products.

The second license agreement is with aalated third party. We obtained the right to ustade proprietary technology of this third
party. This technology is used in the manufactidireuo NC-stat biosensors. The term of this agreénsgperpetual, subject to rights of
termination. In exchange, we were required to paylicensor $50,000 every year for the first threars of the agreement. In subsequent
years, we are required to pay $10,000 per yearagsds we continue to use the licensed technolMgypaid $10,000 during the year en
December 31, 2004. We have the right to termiraselicense agreement upon written notice not tditan 30 days prior to any anniversary
date.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our financial statements are based ondlexton and application of generally accepted anting principles, which require us to make
estimates and assumptions about future eventaffeat the amounts reported in our financial statets and the accompanying notes. Future
events and their effects cannot be determined edttainty. Therefore, the determination of estima#zuires the exercise of judgment.
Actual results could differ from those estimates] any such differences may be material to ouniiied statements. We believe that the
policies set forth below may involve a higher degoé judgment and complexity in their applicatibam our other accounting policies and
represent the critical accounting policies useth@preparation of our financial statements. Ifegiént assumptions or conditions were to
prevail, the results could be materially differéim our reported results. Our significant accougpolicies are presented within Note 2 to
our Financial Statements.

Revenue Recognitic

Our revenue recognition policy is to recagrrevenues from our monitor and biosensors upgoneent if the fee is fixed and
determinable, persuasive evidence of an arrangeexests, collection of the resulting receivableprisbable and product returns are
reasonably estimable. Revenues from our dockirtgpatand access to the onCall Information Systesncansidered one unit of accounting
and are deferred and recognized over the shortbeastimated customer relationship period oestenated useful life of the product,
currently three years.

When multiple elements are contained imgls arrangement, the Company allocates revenireeke the elements based on their
relative fair value, provided that each elementts\éee criteria for treatment as a separate uracobunting. An item is considered a separate
unit of accounting if it has value to the custorera stand-alone basis and there is objective éiable evidence of the fair value of the
undelivered items. Fair value is determined bagexhuhe price charged when the element is soldratga

Revenue recognition involves judgmentsluding assessments of expected returns, allowanadoiibtful accounts and expected
customer relationship periods. We analyze variagofs, including a review of specific transactioms historical returns, average customer
relationship periods, and market
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and economic conditions. Changes in judgmentstonates on these factors could materially impaettiming and amount of revenues and
costs recognized. Should market or economic cardittdeteriorate, our actual return or bad debtréspee could exceed our estimate.

Warranty Costs

We accrue for device and biosensor warraasgs at the time of sale. While we engage inresxée product quality programs and
processes, our warranty obligation is affected toglpct failure rates, user error, variability inyglology and anatomy of customers' patients,
material usage and delivery costs. Should actwalymt failure and user error rates, material usagkelivery costs differ from our estimates,
the amount of actual warranty costs could matgrigiffer from our estimates.

Asset Valuatiot

Asset valuation includes assessing therdecbvalue of certain assets, including accoumtsivable, inventories and fixed assets. We
a variety of factors to assess valuation, dependjpun the asset. Accounts receivable are evallrteeld upon our historical experience, the
age of the receivable and current market and ecmnoonditions. Should current market and econoroiwd@tions deteriorate, our actual bad
debt experience could exceed our estimate. Thizabd value of inventories is based upon the tygmeklevels of inventory held, forecasted
demand, pricing, competition and changes in teagylShould current market and economic conditabeteriorate, our actual recovery cc
be less than our estimate.

Accounting for Income Tax

As part of the process of preparing ouafiicial statements, we are required to estimaténcome taxes in each of the jurisdictions in
which we operate. This process involves estimatingactual current tax exposure, including assgg$ia risks associated with tax audits,
together with assessing temporary differences tisgurom the different treatment of items for taxd accounting purposes. These
differences, together with cumulative net operatosses, result in deferred tax assets and liegsijitvhich are included within our balance
sheet. We assess the likelihood that our defeeveddsets will be recovered from future taxablenne and, to the extent we believe that
recovery is not more likely than not, establishaustion allowance. In the event that actual reddiffer from these estimates, our provision
for income taxes could be materially impacted.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2003, the Financial Accountitgn8ards Board issued FIN No. 46, Consolidatiodafable Interest Entities, an
Interpretation of ARB No. 51 (FIN No. 46). The pamy objectives of FIN No. 46 are to provide guidawoa the identification of entities for
which control is achieved through means other thaough voting rights (variable interest entitiasd to determine when and which business
enterprise should consolidate the variable intezasties. The new model for consolidation appteean entity which either (1) the equity
investors (if any) do not have a controlling finadnterest or (2) the equity investment at risknsufficient to finance the entity's activities
without receiving additional subordinated finanaapport from the other parties. FIN No. 46 alsquies enhanced disclosures for variable
interest entities. FIN No. 46 applies immediat@lywariable interest entities created after Jan8arn2003, and to variable interest entities in
which an enterprise obtains an interest afterdhtt. The standard as amended by FIN 46R, applibe tfirst fiscal year or interim period
beginning after March 15, 2004 to variable inteptities in which an enterprise holds a variabteriest that it acquired before February 1,
2003. The adoption of FIN No. 46 did not have aariat impact on our financial position, resultsopierations, or cash flows.
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In November 2004, the FASB issued FASBedtant No. 151, "Inventory Costs—an Amendment of ARB 43, Chapter
4" ("FAS 151"). FAS 151 amends ARB 43, Chapten4larify that abnormal amounts of idle facilitypense, freight, handling costs, and
wasted materials (spoilage) should be recognizediasnt-period charges. In addition, this Statemequires that allocation of fixed
production overheads to the costs of conversiobased on the normal capacity of the productiorifiesi. The provisions of this Statement
are effective for inventory costs incurred duriisgél years beginning after June 15, 2005. The tiatopf the provisions of FAS 151 is not
expected to have a material impact on our finarpzaition or results of operations.

In December 2004, the FASB issued FASBeStant No. 123 (revised 2004), "Share-Based PaynfdS 123(R)"). FAS 123(R)
replaces FASB Statement No. 123, "Accounting facktBased Compensation”, and supersedes APB OpiNoo25, "Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees”. FAS 123(R) requires thattmpensation cost relating to share-based paymag&ctions be recognized in financial
statements. That cost will be measured based diaithealue of the equity or liability instrumerigsued. The provisions of this Statement are
effective for the first interim or annual reportipgriod that begins after June 15, 2005. We anmently evaluating the method of adoption
the impact of FAS 123(R) on our financial positemd results of operations. We are also evaluaktiaddrm of any stock based incentive
compensation we may offer in the future.

In December 2004, the FASB issued FASBeBtant No. 153, "Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assetapsndment of APB Opinion
No. 29, Accounting for Nonmonetary Transaction$"AS 153"). FAS 153 requires that exchanges of naratasy assets be measured bz
on the fair value of the assets exchanged. Fuithexpands the exception for nonmonetary exchan§esnilar productive assets to
nonmonetary assets that do not have commerciatasutes The provisions of this Statement are effedtr nonmonetary asset exchanges
occurring in fiscal periods beginning after June 285. The adoption of the provisions of FAS 1680t expected to have a material impact
on our financial position or results of operations.
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Important Factors That May Affect Future Operating Results

You should carefully consider the following riskelall other information contained in this annuaport on Form 10-K and our other
public filings before making any investment decisiwith respect to our common stock. If any offdHewing risks occurs, our busines
prospects, reputation, results of operations oaficial condition could be harmed. In that case,ttiagling price of our common stock col
decline, and our stockholders could lose all ortpzrtheir investment. This annual report also eams$ forward-looking statements that
involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual resaisild differ materially from those anticipatedtire forward-looking statements as a result
of specific factors, including the risks descriltdow and elsewhere in this annual report.

We have incurred significant operating losses sindaception and cannot assure you that we will achie profitability.

Since our inception in 1996, we have inediosses every quarter. We began commercial shtag products in May 1999 and we have
yet to demonstrate that we can generate suffisi@gles of our products to become profitable. Thereaf our future operating losses and
timing of profitability are highly uncertain, andewnay never achieve or sustain profitability. Weehancurred significant net losses since our
inception, including net losses of approximately7&8illion in 2001, $4.8 million in 2002, $3.7 nidh in 2003 and $4.3 in 2004. At
December 31, 2004, we had an accumulated defigippfoximately $57.5 million. It is possible tha¢ will never generate sufficient
revenues from product sales to achieve profitgbilit

If physicians or other healthcare providers are unale to obtain sufficient reimbursement from third-party healthcare payers for
procedures performed using the NC-stat System, thedoption of the NC-stat System and our future prodat sales will be severely
harmed.

Widespread adoption of the NC-stat Systgrthb medical community is unlikely to occur if @igians do not receive sufficient
reimbursement from third-party payers for perforghirerve conduction studies using the NC-stat Sysifephysicians are unable to obtain
adequate reimbursement for procedures performadg tise NC-stat System, we may be unable to selNtbestat System and our business
would suffer significantly. Additionally, even iheése procedures are reimbursed by third-party pageverse changes in payers' policies
toward reimbursement for the procedures would haumability to market and sell the NC-stat Syst&@imird-party payers include those
governmental programs such as Medicare and Medisaitkers' compensation programs, private healtrigrs and other organizations.
These third-party payers may deny coverage if theggrmine that a procedure was not reasonablecesssary, for example, if its use was not
considered medically appropriate, or was experialeat was performed for an unapproved indicatioraddition, some health care systems
are moving towards managed care arrangements thwiney contract to provide comprehensive health@ra fixed cost per person,
irrespective of the amount of care actually prodidehese providers, in an effort to control healtieccosts, are increasingly challenging the
prices charged for medical products and servicdsiarsome instances, have pressured medical guppdi lower their prices. If we are
pressured to lower our prices, our revenues malngeand our profitability could be harmed. The @erior Medicare and Medicaid Servic
or CMS, guidelines set the reimbursement rateprimcedures covered by Medicare. Future regulatctipmby CMS or other governmental
agencies or negative clinical results may dimima&mbursement payments to physicians for performpirogedures using the NC-stat System.
Medicaid reimbursement differs from state to state] some state Medicaid programs may not reimtahrgsicians for performing
procedures using the NC-stat System in an adeaqnabent, if at all. Additionally, some private pagelo not follow the CMS and Medicaid
guidelines and may reimburse for only a portiothese procedures or not at all. We are unabledadigtrwhat changes will be made in the
reimbursement methods used by private or goverrah#ritd-party payers.
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We may be unable to expand the market for the NC-at System, which would limit our ability to increase our revenues.

We believe that the drawbacks of traditlorexve conduction studies, including those relatetihe referral process, and the limited
treatment options for diabetic peripheral neuropabih DPN, have limited the number of nerve coniucstudies that are performed. For our
future growth, we are relying, in part, on increhsse of nerve conduction studies. A number obigotould limit the increased use of nerve
conduction studies and the NC-stat System, inctudin

. third-party payers challenging, or the threat aftiparty payers challenging, the necessity oféased levels of nerve
conduction studies;

. third-party payers reducing or eliminating reimtameent for procedures performed by physicians ugiadNC-stat System;

. unfavorable experiences by physicians using thesNESystem;

. physicians' reluctance to alter their existing pcas; and

. the failure of other companies' existing drug depeient programs to produce an effective treatnmmDPN, which may limit

the perceived need and the actual use of the NGGgttiem in connection with this disease, and thelienit or delay our
growth in the DPN market, which we have estimatela our largest potential market for our NC-stadt&m.

If we are unable to expand the market for the N&E-System, our ability to increase our revenuekbeilimited and our business prospects
will be adversely affected.

We may not be able to accurately predict the sizef the market for our NC-stat System.

We may not be able to accurately predietdize of the market for products used to diagmeseopathies, such as our NC-stat System.
Neuropathies traditionally have been diagnosedbM@S/nEMG procedure, performed by a neurologigthysician in a related special
We estimate that there are approximately two millimditional NCS/nEMG procedures performed eadr yethe United States; however,
we anticipate that the advantages and increaseéldlaility of the NC-stat System will significantipcrease the number of nerve conduction
studies performed. Based on our analysis of cudata, we estimate that the potential market sie¢hie NC-stat System in the diabetes, low
back pain and carpal tunnel syndrome markets imd¢iggegate could be as great as 9.5 million anpatént tests. This represents a more
four-fold increase in the size of the market forveeconduction studies and is based upon a nunitessamptions and estimates, which
themselves may not be accurate. For example, we &dssumed that all initial office visits for lowdkapain may represent an opportunity for
use of the NC-stat System, and we have estimattdthannual testing rate of 50% for all individudlagnosed with diabetes represents the
potential addressable market in diabetes. Marketisidifficult to predict, and we cannot assura fltat our assumptions or estimates will
prove to be correct. The industry and market dathis annual report on Form 10-K, including théustry data on which we base our
assumptions and estimates of future market sizg,manaccurate or incomplete, and we have notgeddently verified those data. If our
estimate of the size of the market for our NC-Stggtem is incorrect, our potential revenue growdly ioe limited.

If we are unable to successfully sell the NC-statyStem to primary care physicians, our ability to ircrease our revenues will be limited.

We are focusing our sales and marketingrisffor the NC-stat System on primary care phgsisi As these physicians traditionally have

not been targeted by companies selling equipmest tesperform nerve conduction studies, we may €hfeulties in selling our products to
them. Particularly,
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we may be unable to convince these physicianghleatiC-stat System provides an effective altereativuseful supplement to existing
testing methods. In addition, these physicians bwageluctant to make the capital investment tolpase the NC-stat System and alter their
existing practices. If we are unable to successhdll the NC-stat System to primary care physiiamr ability to increase our revenues will
be severely limited.

We are dependent on two single source manufacturets produce all of our current products, and any clange in our relationship with
either of these manufacturers could prevent us frontlelivering products to our customers in a timely mnner and may adversely
impact our future revenues or costs.

We rely on two third-party manufacturersrianufacture all of our current products. In thergwthat either of our manufacturers ceases
to manufacture sufficient quantities of our produata timely manner and on terms acceptable tawvesyould be forced to locate an alternate
manufacturer. Additionally, if either of our manafarers experiences a failure in its productiorcpss, is unable to obtain sufficient
guantities of the components necessary to manuaotur products or otherwise fails to meet our ifpabquirements, we may be forced to
delay the manufacture and sale of our producteaaté an alternative manufacturer. We may be urtabteeate suitable alternative
manufacturers for our products, particularly our-si&t biosensors, for which the manufacturing pseds relatively specialized, on terms
acceptable to us, or at all. Currently, we relyasingle manufacturer, Polyflex Circuits, Inc., Bolly owned subsidiary of Parlex
Corporation, for the manufacture of the M@t biosensors, and a single manufacturer, AdvbB&rtronics, Inc., or AEI, for the manufact
of our NC-stat monitors and docking stations. Waeorll of our products from Polyflex on a purchasger basis. Because we do not have a
supply agreement in place with Polyflex, Polyfleayntease manufacturing our products or increasprtbe it charges us for our products at
any time. We do have a one-year, automaticallywaine contract manufacturing agreement with AElweweer, under the agreement, either
party may elect not to renew the agreement upote98' written notice prior to the end of the cutitenm. Accordingly, AEI could cease
manufacturing NC-stat monitors and docking statifmnsis when the current term of the agreementrezpn November 2005. We have not
experienced any significant problems in the pat thie quality or quantity of products delivereddither AEI or Polyflex. We do
occasionally experience transient inventory shasatypically lasting less than one month, on nevdpcts during the initial production
ramp-up phase. If any of the changes in our redatigps with these manufacturers as described atae's, our ability to supply our
customers will be severely limited until we areeatl engage an alternate manufacturer or, if agiplé; resolve any quality issues with our
existing manufacturer. This situation could prevaemfrom delivering products to our customers timeely manner, lead to decreased sales or
increased costs, or harm our reputation with ostaruers.

If our manufacturers are unable to supply us with @ adequate supply of products as we expand our maeks, we could lose customers,
our growth could be limited and our business couldbe harmed.

In order for us successfully to expand lmusiness within the United States and internatlgnalr contract manufacturers must be ab
provide us with the products that comprise the N&Z-System in substantial quantities, in compliawite regulatory requirements, in
accordance with agreed upon specifications, atabe cost and on a timely basis. Our anticipgtedvth may strain the ability of our
manufacturers to deliver an increasingly large suppproducts and obtain materials and componinssifficient quantities. Manufacturers
often experience difficulties in scaling up prodact including problems with production yields amaility control and assurance. If we are
unable to obtain sufficient quantities of high dqtyabroducts to meet customer demand on a timedysbave could lose customers, our growth
may be limited and our business could be harmed.
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We currently rely entirely on sales of the productghat comprise the NC-stat System to generate revaas, and any factors that
negatively impact our sales of these products coukignificantly reduce our ability to generate revenes.

We introduced the NC-stat System to theketan May 1999. We derive all of our revenues freates of the products that comprise the
NC-stat System, and we expect that sales of theskipi®will continue to constitute the substantiajanity of our sales for the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, our ability to generate revesus entirely reliant on our ability to market @l the products that comprise the NC-stat
System, particularly the higher- margin disposdtitesensors, sales of which accounted for approxin®7.6% and 85.8% of our total
revenues in 2004 and 2003, respectively. Our sdl®ese products may be negatively impacted byynfestors, including:

. changes in reimbursement rates or policies relatiraur products by third-party payers;

. the failure of the market to accept our products;

. manufacturing problems;

. claims that our products infringe on patent right®ther intellectual property rights owned by otparties;
. adverse regulatory or legal actions relating toppoducts;

. competitive pricing and related factors; and

. results of clinical studies relating to our product our competitors' products.

If any of these events occurs, our ability to gaterevenues could be significantly reduced.

The patent rights we rely upon to protect the intdectual property underlying our products may not beadequate, which could enable
third parties to use our technology and would harmour ability to compete in the market.

Our success will depend in part on ourightib develop or acquire commercially valuablegpatrights and to protect these rights
adequately. Our patent position is generally uadernd involves complex legal and factual questidine risks and uncertainties that we
face with respect to our patents and other relaggnds include the following:

. the pending patent applications we have filed awhiach we have exclusive rights may not resulissuied patents or may take
longer than we expect to result in issued patents;

. the claims of any patents that are issued may mvige meaningful protection;

. we may not be able to develop additional proprietachnologies that are patentable;

. other parties may challenge patents, patent clampsitent applications licensed or issued to ud; an
. other companies may design around technologiesawe patented, licensed or developed.

We also may not be able to protect our patentsigffectively in some foreign countries. For a egriof reasons, we may decide not to file
for patent protection. Our patent rights underlying products may not be adequate, and our coropett customers may design around our
proprietary technologies or independently developlar or alternative technologies or products ttug equal or superior to our technology
and products without infringing on any of our pateghts. In addition, the patents licensed or éskto us may not provide a competitive
advantage. If any of these events were to occuralbility to compete in the market would be harmed.
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Other rights and measures we have taken to protectur intellectual property may not be adequate, whib would harm our ability to
compete in the market.

In addition to patents, we rely on a comabion of trade secrets, copyright and trademarls Jaenfidentiality, nondisclosure and
assignment of invention agreements and other atotrhprovisions and technical measures to pratecintellectual property rights. In
particular, we have sought no patent protectioritfertechnology and algorithms we use in our onldédirmation System, and we rely on
trade secrets to protect this information. Whileauerently require employees, consultants and dtiiet parties to enter into confidentiality,
non-disclosure or assignment of invention agreesena combination thereof where appropriate, drigefollowing could still occur:

. the agreements may be breached;

. we may have inadequate remedies for any breach;

. trade secrets and other proprietary informatioriccbe disclosed to our competitors; or

. others may independently develop substantially\edent proprietary information and techniques ¢reolvise gain access to

our trade secrets or disclose such technologies.

If, for any of the above reasons, our intellecfualperty is disclosed or misappropriated, it wouédm our ability to protect our rights and our
competitive position.

We may need to initiate lawsuits to protect or enfice our patents and other intellectual property rights, which could be expensive ant
if we lose, could cause us to lose some of our iifeetual property rights, which would harm our ability to compete in the market.

We rely on patents to protect a portiowf intellectual property and our competitive piosit Patent law relating to the scope of claims
in the technology fields in which we operate ifl strolving and, consequently, patent positionthie medical device industry are generally
uncertain. In order to protect or enforce our patights, we may initiate patent litigation agaittstd parties, such as infringement suits or
interference proceedings. Litigation may be necgsea

. assert claims of infringement;

. enforce our patents;

. protect our trade secrets or know-how; or

. determine the enforceability, scope and validityhaf proprietary rights of others.

Any lawsuits that we initiate could be expensiaket significant time and divert management's dtiaritom other business concerns.
Litigation also puts our patents at risk of beingalidated or interpreted narrowly and our patgmligations at risk of not issuing.
Additionally, we may provoke third parties to assaims against us. We may not prevail in any latgsthat we initiate and the damages or
other remedies awarded, if any, may not be commigraialuable. The occurrence of any of these eveatild harm our business, our ability
to compete in the market or our reputation.

Claims that our products infringe on the proprietary rights of others could adversely affect our abity to sell our products and
increase our costs.

Substantial litigation over intellectuabperty rights exists in the medical device industée expect that our products could be
increasingly subject to third-party infringemendiohs as the number of competitors grows and thetifumality of products and technology in
different industry segments overlap. Third partiesy currently have, or may eventually be issuetgmia on which our products or
technologies may infringe. Any of these third pestmight make a claim of infringement against usy Atigation regardless of its impact
would likely result in the expenditure of signifidefinancial
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resources and the diversion of management's timieéemources. In addition, litigation in which we accused of infringement may cause
negative publicity, adversely impact prospectivetomers, cause product shipment delays or reqgsite develop non-infringing technology,
make substantial payments to third parties, orrénte royalty or license agreements, which mayb®available on acceptable terms, or at
all. If a successful claim of infringement were raajainst us and we could not develop non-infrigdéthnology or license the infringed or
similar technology on a timely and cost-effectiasis, our revenues may decrease substantially arsbuld be exposed to significant
liability.

We are subject to extensive regulation by the U.$o0od and Drug Administration, which could restrict the sales and marketing of the
NC-stat System and could cause us to incur signifiat costs.

We sell medical devices that are subjeettensive regulation in the United States by thed=and Drug Administration, or FDA, for
manufacturing, labeling, sale, promotion, distribotand shipping. Before a new medical device, new use of or claim for an existing
product, can be marketed in the United Statesugtrfirst receive either 510(k) clearance, grara @& novcoclassification or pre-marketing
approval from the FDA, unless an exemption appli¢s.may be required to obtain a new 510(k) clearamde novaclassification or pre-
market approval for significant post-market modifions to our products. Each of these processebeanpensive and lengthy. The FDA's
process for obtaining 510(k) clearance usuallygdkem three to twelve months, but it can last Em@he process for obtainimg novo
classification involves a level of scrutiny simitarthe 510(k) clearance process. The procesdfiairong pre-market approval is much more
costly and uncertain and it generally takes frora tmthree years, or longer, from the time theigppbn is filed with the FDA.

Medical devices may be marketed only feritidications for which they are approved or cldaWe have obtained 510(k) clearance for
the current clinical applications for which we metrour products. However, our clearances can bekeslif safety or effectiveness problems
develop. Further, we may not be able to obtaintamfdil 510(Kk) clearances or premarket approvalsi&v products or for modifications to,
additional indications for, our existing produatsai timely fashion, or at all. Delays in obtainfogure clearances would adversely affect our
ability to introduce new or enhanced products fimely manner which in turn would harm our reveiamnel future profitability. We have ma
modifications to our devices in the past and mageradditional modifications in the future that wadiéve do not or will not require
additional clearances or approvals. If the FDA glisas, and requires new clearances or approvaikdanodifications, we may be requiret
recall and to stop marketing the modified devit#¥s.also are subject to numerous post-marketingaisgy requirements, including quality
system regulations, which relate to the manufaetuof our products, labeling regulations and mddieaice reporting regulations. Our
failure or either contract manufacturer's failwebmply with applicable regulatory requirementaldaesult in enforcement action by the
FDA, which may include any of the following sanctio

. warning letters, fines, injunctions, consent desi@ed civil penalties;

. requiring repair, replacement, refunds, recalledzre of our products;

. imposing operating restrictions, suspension ordsiwih of production;

. refusing our requests for 510(k) clearance or pagket approval of new products, new intended usesodifications to

existing products;
. withdrawing 510(k) clearance or pre-market apprevaht have already been granted; and
. criminal prosecution.

If any of these events were to occur, they couldnhaur reputation, our ability to generate reveramss our profitability.
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If we or our contract manufacturers fail to comply with the FDA's quality system regulations, the mantacturing and distribution of
our products could be interrupted, and our productsales and operating results could suffer.

We and our contract manufacturers are redubd comply with the FDA's quality system regigias, which is a complex regulatory
scheme that covers the procedures and documentdtiba design, testing, production, control, qyadissurance, labeling, packaging,
sterilization, storage and shipping of our devidédse FDA enforces its quality system regulationstigh periodic unannounced inspections.
We cannot assure you that our facilities or ourtreart manufacturers' facilities would pass any rfeitguality system inspection. If our or any
of our contract manufacturers' facilities failsuality system inspection, the manufacturing orribistion of our products could be interrupted
and our operations disrupted. Failure to take aalfegand timely corrective action in response tadvrerse quality system inspection could
force a suspension or shutdown of our packagindaeling operations, the manufacturing operatmfnsur contract manufacturers or a
recall of our products. If any of these events oscwe may not be able to provide our customers thié quantity of products they require on
a timely basis, our reputation could be harmed,w@dould lose customers and suffer reduced reseaing increased costs.

Our products are subject to recalls even after redeing FDA clearance or approval, which would harm arr reputation, business and
financial results.

We are subject to the medical device répgmegulations, which require us to report to BI¥A if our products cause or contribute to a
death or serious injury, or malfunction in a wagtttvould likely cause or contribute to a deathearias injury. The FDA and similar
governmental bodies in other countries have thieaaity to require the recall of our products if eour contract manufacturers fail to
comply with relevant regulations pertaining to mi@aeturing practices, labeling, advertising or preimal activities, or if new information is
obtained concerning the safety or efficacy of awdpicts. A government-mandated or voluntary remalis could occur as a result of
manufacturing defects, labeling deficiencies, pgok@defects or other failures to comply with apable regulations. Any recall would divi
management attention and financial resources amd bar reputation with customers. A recall involyithe NC-stat System would be
particularly harmful to our business and financédults because the products that comprise thet&lCSgstem are currently our only
products.

We are subject to federal and state laws prohibitig "kickbacks" and false or fraudulent claims, which, if violated, could subject us to
substantial penalties. Additionally, any challengéo or investigation into our practices under thesdaws could cause adverse publicity
and be costly to respond to, and thus could harm awbusiness.

A federal law commonly known as the Medéigktedicaid anti-kickback law, and several simil@ts laws, prohibit payments that are
intended to induce physicians or others eitheeterrpatients or to acquire or arrange for or reoemd the acquisition of healthcare products
or services. These laws constrain our sales, magkahd other promotional activities by limitingetkinds of financial arrangements,
including sales programs, we may have with hospitgysicians or other potential purchasers of oadievices. Other federal and state |
generally prohibit individuals or entities from kmimgly presenting, or causing to be presentedirddor payment from Medicare, Medicaid
or other third-party payers that are false or frdedt, or for items or services that were not piledi as claimed. Because we may provide
some coding and billing information to purchasdrewr products, and because we cannot assurehigolvernment will regard any billing
errors that may be made as inadvertent, thesedesvgotentially applicable to us. Anti-kickback datse claims laws prescribe civil and
criminal penalties for noncompliance, which carshbstantial. Even an unsuccessful challenge ostigation into our practices could cause
adverse publicity, and be costly to respond to,thnd could harm our business and results of opesat
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If we are found to have violated laws protecting th confidentiality of patient health information, wecould be subject to civil or
criminal penalties, which could increase our liabities and harm our reputation or our business.

There are a number of federal and state [@atecting the confidentiality of certain pati@ealth information, including patient records,
and restricting the use and disclosure of thatgeted information. In particular, the U.S. Depamtnaf Health and Human Services
promulgated patient privacy rules under the Helaislurance Portability and Accountability Act of B®r HIPAA. These privacy rules
protect medical records and other personal heafitiirhation by limiting their use and disclosureyigg individuals the right to access, am
and seek accounting of their own health informatiod limiting most use and disclosures of healtbrination to the minimum amount
reasonably necessary to accomplish the intendgmbper Although we do not believe that we are sulbgethe HIPAA rules because we
receive patient data in our onCall Information $yston an anonymous basis, the exact scope of thiesehas not been clearly established. If
we are found to be in violation of the privacy sulender HIPAA, we could be subject to civil or cifi@ penalties, which could increase our
liabilities and harm our reputation or our business

The use of the NC-stat System could result in proa liability claims that could be expensive, damageur reputation and harm our
business.

Our business exposes us to an inherenbfipktential product liability claims related teet manufacturing, marketing and sale of
medical devices. The medical device industry histdlly has been litigious, and we face financigb@sure to product liability claims if the
use of our products were to cause or contributejtwy or death. In particular, the NC-stat Systeray be susceptible to claims of injury
because it involves the electric stimulation oftignt's nerves. Although we maintain product ligbinsurance for our products, the
coverage limits of these policies may not be adexjeacover future claims. As sales of our prodirntsease, we may be unable to maintain
sufficient product liability insurance on acceptat#rms or at reasonable costs, and this insuraagenot provide us with adequate coverage
against potential liabilities. A successful clainolght against us in excess of, or outside of imaurance coverage could have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition and ressof operations. A product liability claim, reghesk of its merit or eventual outcome, could
result in substantial costs to us, a substantiedrdion of management attention and adverse ptbligiproduct liability claim could also
harm our reputation and result in a decline in nexs and an increase in expenses.

Our products are complex in design, and defects mayot be discovered prior to shipment to customersyhich could result in warranty
obligations or product liability claims, reducing our revenues and increasing our costs and liabilite

We depend upon third parties for the mactuf@ of our products. Our products, particulany BNC-stat biosensors, require a significant
degree of technical expertise to produce. If ounufiacturers fail to produce our products to speatfon, or if the manufacturers use defec
materials or workmanship in the manufacturing psscéhe reliability and performance of our prodwelsbe compromised.

If our products contain defects that carbtepaired quickly, easily and inexpensively,may experience:

. loss of customer orders and delay in order fuliir

. damage to our brand reputation;

. increased cost of our warranty program due to prbokpair or replacement;
. inability to attract new customers;
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. diversion of resources from our manufacturing asskarch and development departments into our setlejgartment; ar

. legal action.

The occurrence of any one or more of the foregomgd harm our reputation and materially reducereuenues and increase our costs and
liabilities.

If we lose any of our officers or key employees, oumanagement and technical expertise could be weatked significantly.

Our success largely depends on the skiiserience and efforts of our officers, includingaBN. Gozani, M.D., Ph.D., our founder and
President and Chief Executive Officer; Gary L. Gngg our Chief Operating Officer; Guy Daniello, dsenior Vice President of Information
Technology; Michael Williams, Ph.D., our Senior ¥iPresident of Engineering; W. Bradford Smith, €Rieancial Officer; and our other
key employees. We maintain a $5.0 million key per§fe insurance policy on Dr. Gozani, but do natintain key person life insurance
policies covering any of our other employees. s lof any of our officers or key employees coudtiken our management and technical
expertise significantly and harm our business.

If we are unable to recruit, hire and retain skilled and experienced personnel, our ability to managend expand our business will be
harmed, which would impair our future revenues andprofitability.

We are a small company with only 68 empésyas of December 31, 2004, and our ability tarretar skilled labor force and our succ
in attracting and hiring new skilled employees W#l a critical factor in determining our future feemance. We may not be able to meet our
future hiring needs or retain existing personned Will face challenges and risks in hiring, tragyimanaging and retaining engineering and
sales and marketing employees, as well as indepenelgional sales agencies and sales represestatiast of whom are geographically
dispersed and must be trained in the use and beoéfur products. Failure to attract and retarspnnel, particularly technical and sales
marketing personnel, would materially harm ourigbtb compete effectively and grow our business.

If we do not effectively manage our growth, our buisiess resources may become strained, we may notddge to deliver the NC-stat
System in a timely manner and our results of operadns may be adversely affected.

We expect to increase our sales force amdodal headcount significantly during the nexagerhis growth, as well as any other growth
that we may experience in the future, will provahallenges to our organization and may strain camagement and operations. We may
misjudge the amount of time or resources thatlvélfequired to effectively manage any anticipatednanticipated growth in our business or
we may not be able to attract, hire and retaini@efit personnel to meet our needs. If we canralesour business appropriately, maintain
control over expenses or otherwise adapt to amtiegpand unanticipated growth, our business ressunaly become strained, we may not be
able to deliver the NC-stat System in a timely nearand our results of operations may be advergtdgtad.

If we are unable to successfully expand, develop dmetain our sales force, our revenues may declinepr future revenue growth may
be limited and our expenses may increase.

We presently employ 28 regional sales marsagsho lead more than 50 independent regionas sajencies employing a total of more
than 300 sales representatives. We are highly digpe¢on our regional sales managers to generateoeeimues. We currently intend to
increase our existing sales
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force significantly using part of the net proce&dsn this offering. Our ability to build and devela strong sales force will be affected by a
number of factors, including:

. our ability to attract, integrate and motivate sglersonnel;

. our ability to effectively train our sales force;

. the ability of our sales force to sell an increasethber of products;

. the length of time it takes new sales personnbkttome productive;

. the competition we face from other companies imbiand retaining sales personnel;

. our ability to effectively manage a multi-locatisales organization;

. our ability to enter into agreements with prospectnembers of our sales force on commercially measie terms; and
. our ability to get our independent sales ageneibs, may sell products of multiple companies, to oohthe necessary

resources to effectively market and sell our présluc

If we are unable to successfully build, develop egtdin a strong sales force, our revenues mayngedur revenue growth may be limited
and our expenses may increase.

Failure to develop products other than the NC-staBystem and enhance the NC-stat System could have aaverse effect on our
business prospects.

All of our current revenues are derivedirselling the NC-stat System. Our future businessfanancial success will depend, in part, on
our ability to continue to introduce new produats aipgraded products into the marketplace. Devetppew products and upgrades to
existing and future products imposes burdens onesgarch and development department and our mawesgeT his process is costly, and
cannot assure you that we will be able to succgsfavelop new products or enhance the NC-statéBy®r any future products. In addition,
as we develop the market for point-of-service neweduction studies, future competitors may develegirable product features earlier than
we do, which could make our competitors' produess lexpensive or more effective than our produsdscauld render our products obsolete
or unmarketable. If our product development effarts unsuccessful, we will have incurred signiftaarsts without recognizing the expected
benefits and our business prospects may suffer.

We currently compete, and may in the future need teompete, against other medical device companiestivreater resources, more
established distribution channels and other competive advantages, and the success of these compettmay harm our ability to
generate revenues.

We currently do, and in the future may needompete directly and indirectly with a numbéother companies that enjoy significant
competitive advantages over us. Currently, in thiatpof-service market, we indirectly compete wittmpanies that sell traditional
NCS/nEMG equipment. In this market, these compaamiesndirect competitors because the equipmewtdbk traditionally has been used
neurologists, who rely upon and seek to obtairrrafefrom primary care physicians to perform tame types of tests that may be performed
by primary care physicians using the NC-stat Systedditionally, in selling the NC-stat System tounelogists, which is not a market we
historically have focused on, we compete directiywthe companies that sell traditional NCS/nEMGipment. There are a number of
companies that sell traditional NCS/nEMG equipmealuding the Nicolet Biomedical division of Viasyealthcare Inc., the Functional
Diagnostics division of Medtronic, Inc., Oxford tnsments, Plc., and Cadwell Laboratories, Inc. Addally, we are aware of one company,
Neumed Inc., that markets a nerve conduction ssydtem to the poi-of-service market. Of these
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companies, Viasys Healthcare, Medtronic and Oxfostruments, in particular, enjoy significant cortifpee advantages, including:

. greater resources for product development, sakksramketing

. more established distribution networks;

. greater name recognition;

. more established relationships with health caréegsionals, customers and third-party payers; and

. additional lines of products and the ability toesffebates or bundle products to offer discountacentives.

Other than Neumed, we do not know if these compami@thers are engaged in research and develogfieris to develop products to
perform point-of-service nerve conduction studres ivould be directly competitive with the NC-sEtstem. As we develop the market for
point-of-service nerve conduction studies, we mayazed with competition from these companies berst that decide and are able to enter
this market. Some or all of our future competitiorghe point-of-service market may enjoy compegitadvantages such as those described
above. If we are unable to compete effectively mgfagxisting and future competitors, our sales @éitline and our business will be harmed.

We are dependent upon the computer and communicatis infrastructure employed and utilized by our onCdl Information System,
and any failures or disruptions in this infrastructure could impact our revenues and profit margins otharm our reputation.

We are dependent upon the computer and ecmieations infrastructure employed and utilizedoly onCall Information System. Our
computer and communications infrastructure consiStéandard hardware, off-the-shelf system sofwamponents, database servers,
proprietary application servers, a modem bank @&stkip applications. Our future success in setlimgNC-stat System will depend, in part,
upon the maintenance and growth of this infrastmectAny failures or outages of this infrastructasea result of a computer virus, intentional
disruption of our systems by a third party, mantifdng failure, telephone system failure, fire,retoflood, power loss or other similar eve
could prevent or delay the operation of our on@dthirmation System, which could result in increasedts to eliminate these problems and
address related security concerns and harm outatiuwith our customers. In addition, if our ia$tructure fails to accommodate growth in
customer transactions, customer satisfaction coelmnpaired, we could lose customers, our abititgdd customers could be impaired or our
costs could be increased, any of which would hannmbosiness.

If future clinical studies or other articles are published, or physician associations or other organ&ions announce positions, that are
unfavorable to the NC-stat System, our sales eff@tand revenues may be negatively affected.

Future clinical studies or other articlegarding our existing products or any competinglpots may be published that either support a
claim, or are perceived to support a claim, thedbmpetitor's product is more accurate or effedtas our products or that our products are
not as accurate or effective as we claim or previnical studies have concluded. Additionallyysgigian associations or other organizations
that may be viewed as authoritative could endorsdycts or methods that compete with the NC-state®y or otherwise announce positions
that are unfavorable to the NC-stat System. Anthe$e events may negatively affect our sales sffort result in decreased revenues.
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Our future capital needs are uncertain and we may @ed to raise additional funds in the future, and tbse funds may not be available
on acceptable terms or at all.

We believe that our current cash and casiivalents together with our short-term and Idegn investments and the cash to be gene
from expected product sales, will be sufficientrieet our projected operating requirements foramtlthe next 12 months. However, we may
seek additional funds from public and private stoffkrings, borrowings under credit lines or oteeurces. Our capital requirements will
depend on many factors, including:

. the revenues generated by sales of the NC-statiByad any other products that we develop;

. the costs associated with expanding our sales amkleting efforts;

. the expenses we incur in manufacturing and setlimgproducts;

. the costs of developing new products or technokgied enhancements to existing products;

. the cost of obtaining and maintaining FDA appravatiearance of our products and products in devetnt;
. costs associated with any expansion;

. the costs associated with capital expenditures; and

. the number and timing of any acquisitions or oftesitegic transactions.

As a result of these factors, we may need to radslitional funds, and these funds may not be dvailan favorable terms, or at all.
Furthermore, if we issue equity or debt securitiesaise additional funds, our existing stockhoddmay experience dilution, and the new
equity or debt securities may have rights, prefezsrand privileges senior to those of our exissiagkholders. In addition, if we raise
additional funds through collaboration, licensingther similar arrangements, it may be necessarglinquish valuable rights to our
potential products or proprietary technologiesgi@nt licenses on terms that are not favorablestdfwve cannot raise funds on acceptable
terms, we may not be able to develop or enhanceraglucts, execute our business plan, take advauatafyiture opportunities, or respond to
competitive pressures or unanticipated customarimeaents. If any of these events occurs, ourtgidi achieve our development and
commercialization goals would be adversely affected

If we choose to acquire or invest in new businessgsoducts or technologies, instead of developingpém ourselves, these acquisitions
or investments could disrupt our business and couldesult in the use of significant amounts of equitycash or a combination of both.

From time to time we may seek to acquiraeest in businesses, products or technologisteau of developing them ourselves.
Acquisitions and investments involve humerous rigksluding:

. the inability to complete the acquisition or invasnt;

. disruption of our ongoing businesses and diversfamanagement attention;

. difficulties in integrating the acquired entitiggpducts or technologies;

. difficulties in operating the acquired businessfiaibly;

. the inability to achieve anticipated synergiest savings or growth;

. potential loss of key employees, particularly thoSthe acquired business;

. difficulties in transitioning and maintaining keystomer, distributor and supplier relationships;
. risks associated with entering markets in whichhaee no or limited prior experience; and
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. unanticipated cost:

In addition, any future acquisitions or@stments may result in one or more of the following

. issuances of dilutive equity securities, which rbaysold at a discount to market price;

. the use of significant amounts of cash;

. the incurrence of debt;

. the assumption of significant liabilities;

. increased operating costs or reduced earnings;

. financing obtained on unfavorable terms;

. large one-time expenses; and

. the c_reation of certain intangible assets, inclgdjoodwill, the write-down of which may result iigsificant charges to
earnings.

Any of these factors could materially harm our Etpdce, our business or our operating results.

If we expand, or attempt to expand, into foreign mekets, we will be affected by new business risks #h may adversely impact our
financial condition or results of operations.

If we expand, or attempt to expand, inteefgn markets, we will be subject to new businésssy including:

. failure to fulfill foreign regulatory requirements market the NC-stat System or other future presjuc

. availability of, and changes in, reimbursement imitbrevailing foreign health care payment systems;

. adapting to the differing business practices and lia foreign countries;

. difficulties in managing foreign relationships amgerations, including any relationships that walsth with foreign

distributors or sales or marketing agents;

. limited protection for intellectual property rights some countries;

. difficulty in collecting accounts receivable anadr collection periods;

. costs of enforcing contractual obligations in fgrejurisdictions;

. recessions in economies outside of the United State

. political instability and unexpected changes inatipatic and trade relationships;
. currency exchange rate fluctuations; and

. potentially adverse tax consequences.

If we are successful in introducing our products fforeign markets, we will be affected by thesditidnal business risks, which may
adversely impact our financial condition or resalt®perations. In addition, expansion into foreigarkets imposes additional burdens on
executive and administrative personnel, researdtsales departments, and general managerial reso@ar efforts to introduce our prodt
into foreign markets may not be successful, in Witiase we may have expended significant resouritkswrealizing the expected benefit.
Ultimately, the investment required for expansiotoiforeign markets could exceed the revenues g&tfrom this expansion.
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Our operating results may fluctuate due to varioudactors and, as a result, period-to-period comparisns of our results of operations
will not necessarily be meaningful.

Factors relating to our business make oturé operating results uncertain and may cause thdluctuate from period to period. These
factors include:

. changes in the availability of third-party reimbemsent in the United States or other countries;
. the timing of new product announcements and intttdns by us or our competitors;

. market acceptance of new or enhanced versionsrgiroducts;

. in manufacturing costs or other expenses;

. competitive pricing pressures;

. the gain or loss of significant distribution outl@tr customers;

. increased research and development expenses;

. the timing of any future acquisitions; or

. general economic conditions.

Because our operating results may fluctuate froartguto quarter, it may be difficult for us or dnvestors to predict our future performance
by viewing our historical operating results.

Our principal stockholders have significant votingpower and may take actions that may not be in thedst interests of our other
stockholders.

Based on most recent information, our eff; directors and principal stockholders togetioatrolled a significant portion of our
outstanding common stock. If some or all of thasekolders act together, they will be able to comur management and affairs in all
matters requiring stockholder approval, including €lection of directors and approval of significeorporate transactions. This concentre
of ownership may have the effect of delaying ovpraging a change in control and might adverselgaiffhe market price of our common
stock. In addition, this significant concentratiminshare ownership may adversely affect the traginge of our common stock because
investors often perceive disadvantages to owningksh companies with controlling stockholders.

The sale or expected sale of a substantial numbef ghares of our common stock may cause the price ofir common stock to decline.

Sales or the expectation of sales of atankial number of shares of our common stock inpthiglic market could harm the market price
of our common stock. As additional shares of ounemn stock become available for resale in the publirket, the supply of our common
stock will increase, which could decrease the piitereover, the holders of 7,488,758 shares ofcounmon stock, comprised of shares
issued upon conversion of our preferred stock,thadholder of a warrant to purchase 100,000 shafresmmon stock, have rights, subject to
various conditions and limitations, to require adile registration statements covering their skareto include their shares in registration
statements that we may file for ourselves or osheckholders. Also, shares of common stock thatag issue under our existing Amended
and Restated 1998 Equity Incentive Plan, our 2@64k3SOption and Incentive Plan and 2004 EmployeelSPurchase Plan may be freely
sold. If any of these holders cause a large nurmbsecurities to be sold in the public market, $hkes could reduce the trading price of our
common stock. These sales also could impede olitygbiraise future capital.
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We will incur increased expenses as a result of retly enacted laws and regulations affecting publicompanies.

Recently enacted laws and regulations affggublic companies, including the provisiongted Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and rules
adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commissiditoy the National Association of Securities Deslémc., will result in increased
expenses to us. The new rules could make it mdfieudi or more costly for us to obtain some tym#snsurance, including directors' and
officers' liability insurance, and we may be for@éedaccept reduced policy limits and coverage ouirsubstantially higher costs to obtain the
same or similar coverage. The impact of these evadab could make it more difficult for us to attrand retain qualified persons to serve on
our board of directors, on our board committeeasoexecutive officers. We will incur increased exqes in order to comply with these new
rules, and we may not be able to accurately prédéctiming or amount of these expenses.

Anti-takeover provisions in our organizational docunents and Delaware law may discourage or prevent@hange of control, even if an
acquisition would be beneficial to our stockholderswhich could affect our stock price adversely angrevent attempts by our
stockholders to replace or remove our current managment.

Our certificate of incorporation and bylagesntain provisions that could delay or prevenhange of control of our company or changes
in our board of directors that our stockholdershmigpnsider favorable. Some of these provisions:

. authorize the issuance of preferred stock whichbeaareated and issued by the board of directdarsowi prior stockholder
approval, with rights senior to those of our comrstotk;

. provide for a classified board of directors, witdth director serving a staggered three-year term;
. prohibit our stockholders from filling board vacées; calling special stockholder meetings, or tgkaation by written consent;
. provide for the removal of a director only with sauand by the affirmative vote of the holders dfo/& more of the shares

then entitled to vote at an election of our direstand

. require advance written notice of stockholder psgt® and director nominations.

In addition, we are subject to the provisiof Section 203 of the Delaware General Corpamdtaw, which may prohibit certain
business combinations with stockholders owning t%nore of our outstanding voting stock. These athér provisions in our certificate of
incorporation, bylaws and Delaware law could makaare difficult for stockholders or potential agguis to obtain control of our board of
directors or initiate actions that are opposed tnytben-current board of directors, including a geer tender offer, or proxy contest involving
our company. Any delay or prevention of a changeouttrol transaction or changes in our board afalors could cause the market price of
our common stock to decline.

We do not intend to pay cash dividends.

We have never declared or paid cash didg@m our capital stock. We currently intend tairetll available funds and any future
earnings for use in the operation and expansia@muobusiness and do not anticipate paying any dagtiends in the foreseeable future. In
addition, the terms of any future debt or crediilfey may preclude us from paying any dividends. #&result, capital appreciation, if any, of
our common stock will be our stockholders sole sewf potential gain for the foreseeable future.
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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT S

The statements contained in this annuairtep Form 10-K, including under the section ttl&lanagement's Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations ather sections of this annual report, includevézd-looking statements within the
meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 398s amended, and Section 21E of the Securitiesdfige Act of 1934, as amended,
including, without limitation, statements regardimgy or our management's expectations, hopesffdlgentions or strategies regarding the
future. The words "believe,” "may," "will," "estirtg" "continue," "anticipate,” "intend,"” "expectglan" and similar expressions may iden
forward-looking statements, but the absence ofethesrds does not mean that a statement is not fdrl@aking. The forward-looking
statements contained in this annual report aredbas@ur current expectations and beliefs concgrhiture developments and their potential
effects on us. There can be no assurance thaefdawelopments affecting us will be those that exchanticipated. These forward-looking
statements involve a number of risks, uncertairf§eme of which are beyond our control) or othsuasptions that may cause actual results
or performance to be materially different from th@xpressed or implied by these forward-lookingest@nts. These risks and uncertainties
include, but are not limited to, those factors dibgd in the section titled "Management's Discussind Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations-Important Factors that MafeétfFuture Operating Results." Should one or nobitbese risks or uncertainties
materialize, or should any of our assumptions piogerrect, actual results may vary in materiapeeds from those projected in these
forward-looking statements. We undertake no obiligetio update or revise any forward-looking statetegwhether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise, excepinay be required under applicable securities laws.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures &out Market Risk

We do not use derivative financial instrumsan our investment portfolio and have no foreggiechange contracts. Our financial
instruments consist of cash, cash equivalentsi-$&ion investments, accounts receivable, accowuaytalgje, accrued expenses and long-term
investments. We consider investments that, wheahased, have a remaining maturity of 90 days artled®e cash equivalents. The primary
objectives of our investment strategy are to prasprincipal, maintain proper liquidity to meet opiéing needs, and maximize yields. To
minimize our exposure to an adverse shift in irgerates, we invest mainly in cash equivalentsttsieom investments and long-term
investments with a maturity of 18 months or less araintain an average maturity of twelve monthkess. We do not believe that a 10%
change in interest rate percentages would haveteriaampact on the fair value of our investmeattfolio or our interest income.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The information required by this item magyfbund on pages F-1 through F-23 of this ForniKibith the exception of quarterly financ
information which is presented below:

Year Ended December 31, 2004

First

Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter Total
Revenue! $ 3,030,26° $ 4,296,01! $ 4,819,31¢ $ 5,774,48' $ 17,920,08
Gross margir $ 2,203,060 $ 3,125,59. $ 3,529,07" $ 4,209,031 $ 13,066,76
Net loss attributable to commq
shareholder $ (9,153,07) $ (1,956,93) $ (1,563,76) $ (835,17) $ (13,508,94)
Net loss per common share (be
and diluted $ (8.7¢) $ (1.85) $ (0.1¢) $ (0.0 $ (2.35
Weighted average shares used t
compute basic and diluted net lo
per common shai 1,042,99 1,055,99: 8,819,55! 12,025,22 5,747,57!
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Year Ended December 31, 2003

First

Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter Total

Revenue: $ 1,621,000 $ 2,089,52° $ 2,586,69. $ 2,870,33. $ 9,167,55
Gross margir $ 1,144,35" $ 1,451,18" $ 1,827,600 $ 2,037,86! $ 6,461,01!
Net loss attributable to commu

shareholder $ (1,542,72) $ (1,395,36) $ (1,283,61) $ (1,454,45) $ (5,676,15)
Net loss per common share (be

and diluted] $ (1.49) $ (1.39 $ (1.29 $ (1.40 $ (5.4¢€)
Weighted average shares used

compute basic and diluted net Ic

per common shai 1,037,00 1,038,18 1,038,61! 1,041,42: 1,038,81

Item 9. Disagreements with Accountants on Accountmand Financial Disclosure

There have been no changes or disagreemvéhtaccountants on accounting of financial disol@ matters in the last fiscal year.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
(&) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedes.

Our management carried out an evaluatidth, thve participation of our Chief Executive Officand our Chief Financial Officer, of the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and pracesi(as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) or 15d-15(deuthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended (the "Exchange Act")) as of Decembe?2(®14. Based upon that evaluation, our Chief Exeeudfficer and our Chief Financial
Officer concluded that they believe that our disal@ controls and procedures are reasonably eféeictiensure that information required to
be disclosed by us in reports that we file or sulhunder the Exchange Act, is recorded, processedigrized and reported, within the time
periods specified in the Securities and Exchangar@ission's rules and forms. In designing and evalgaur disclosure controls and
procedures, we and our management recognize thatosrols and procedures, no matter how well dexicgand operated, can provide only
reasonable assurance of achieving the desiredot@tfectives, and our management necessarily a@sned to apply its judgment in
evaluating and implementing possible controls ammt@dures. We continue to review and document meiasure controls and procedures,
including our internal controls and proceduresfifmancial reporting, and may from time to time makeanges aimed at enhancing their
effectiveness and to ensure that our systems ewitheour business.

(b) Changes in internal control over financial rgporting.

There was no change in our internal corgvelr financial reporting identified in connectiaiith our evaluation of our disclosure contr
and procedures that occurred during the fiscaltguanded December 31, 2004 that has materiakyctd, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over finaaareporting.

Item 9B. Other Information
None.
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PART Il
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Rgistrant

The response to this item is containedlinRroxy Statement relating to our 2005 Annual Megbf Stockholders (the "Proxy
Statement") and is incorporated herein by reference

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The response to this item is incorporateckim by reference from the discussion responsieeeto in the Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @vners and Management and Related Shareholder Matter

The response to this item is incorporateckim by reference from the discussion respon$ieeeto in the Proxy Statement

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa&ns

The response to this item is incorporatexim by reference from the discussion respons$igeeto in the Proxy Statement.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The response to this item is incorporatexim by reference from the discussion responsigeeto in the Proxy Statement.

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(@ 1. Financial Statements
The consolidated financial statementsiated in the accompanying index to financial staets on page F-1.
2. Financial Statement Schedules
The Schedule on page S-1 is filed as gaHis report.

3. Exhibit Index:

Exhibit
Number Description

3.1 Form of Second Amended and Restate-laws of NeuroMetrix, Inc.(1
3.2 Form of Third Amended and Restated Certificatenebrporation of NeuroMetrix, Inc. (.
4.1 Specimen certificate for shares of common stocl
10.1 Lease Agreement dated October 18, 2000 between-Auenue LLC and NeuroMetrix, Inc. (
10.z  Amended and Restated 1996 Stock Option/Restridisck®lan (1]
10.2  Amended and Restated 1998 Equity Incentive Pla
10.4 First Amendment to Amended and Restated 1998 Etnigntive Plan (1
10.5 2004 Stock Option and Incentive Plan
10.€ 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan
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10.7
10.€
10.¢
10.1(
10.11
10.1%
10.1:
10.1¢4
110.1¢
10.1¢

10.15
10.1¢

10.1¢
10.2(
10.21
10.22
10.2:
10.2¢
10.2¢
10.2¢
10.23
10.2¢

*23.1

Series E-1 Convertible Preferred Stock Purchageément by and among NeuroMetrix, Inc. and
the purchasers thereto, dated as of December 2@, #ith amendments dated as of May 21,
2003 and March 12, 2004 (

Form of Indemnification Agreement between Neuroleinc. and each of its directors (
Employment Agreement, dated June 21, 2004, bybahseen NeuroMetrix, Inc. and Shai N.
Gozani, M.D., Ph.D. (1

Letter Agreement, dated June 19, 2002, by anddsat NeuroMetrix, Inc. and Gary L.

Gregory (1)

NeuroMetrix, Inc. Stock Option Agreements (1998pldated as of July 1, 2002 and April

2004 by and between NeuroMetrix, Inc. and Gary teddry(1)

NeuroMetrix, Inc. Confidentiality and N-Compete Agreement, dated as of June 28, 2002, by
and between Gary L. Gregory and NeuroMetrix, 14§

NeuroMetrix, Inc. Confidentiality & Nc-Compete Agreement dated as of June 21, 2004, dy an
between Shai N. Gozani, M.D., Ph.D. and NeuroMetrig.(1)

Preferred Stock Purchase Warrant, dated May @13,4ssued to Lighthouse Capital Partners 1V,
L.P. (1)

Contract Manufacturing Agreement, dated as ofévoler 20, 2002, by and between Advanced
Electronics, Inc. and NeuroMetrix, Inc. (

NeuroMetrix, Inc. No-Statutory Stock Option Agreement (1998 Plan) dawdf June 21, 2004,
by and between Shai N. Gozani M.D., Ph.D., and bidetrix, Inc. (1)

Second Amendment to Amended and Restated 1998yHquéntive Plan (1

NeuroMetrix, Inc. No-Statutory Stock Option Agreement (1998 Plan) datedf June 21, 2004
by and between Gary Gregory and NeuroMetrix, |hE

Indemnification Agreement dated June 21, 20041y between Shai N. Gozani, M.D., Ph.D.,
and NeuroMetrix, Inc. (1

Consent, Waiver and Amendment dated as of Jun2QB8l by and among NeuroMetrix, Inc. and
the parties listed on the signature pages theigt

NeuroMetrix, Inc. Confidentiality & Nc-Compete Agreement, dated as of May 1, 2000, by and
between Michael Williams and NeuroMetrix, Inc.

NeuroMetrix, Inc. Confidentiality & Nc-Compete Agreement, dated as of October 13, 1998, b
and between Guy Daniello and NeuroMetrix Inc.

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement, undher NeuroMetrix, Inc. 2004 Stock Option And
Incentive Plan (2

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement Bampany Employees, under the
NeuroMetrix, Inc. 2004 Stock Option And Incentiviaf® (2)

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement Ram-Employee Directors, under the
NeuroMetrix, Inc. 2004 Stock Option And Incentivia® (2)

Letter Agreement, dated February 7, 2005, bykmtdleen NeuroMetrix, Inc. and W. Bradford
Smith (3)

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement, undher NeuroMetrix, Inc. 2004 Stock Option and
Incentive Plan, by and between NeuroMetrix, Ina ¥ Bradford Smith(3

NeuroMetrix, Inc. Confidentiality & No-Compete Agreement, dated as of February 7, 2005, b
and between W. Bradford Smith and NeuroMetrix, (B

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers |
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*31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer purant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002
*31.2  Certification of Principal Financial Officer purant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.
*32  Certification of Principal Executive Officer afuincipal Financial Officer pursuant to Section
906 of the Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002

* Filed herewith.

T Portions of this exhibit have been omitted pursutart request for confidential treatment

Q) Incorporated herein by reference to NeuroMetrig, 'thRegistration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333440).

(2) Incorporated herein by reference to NeuroMetrix, thQuarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on Novenide 2004.

?3) Incorporated herein by reference to NeuroMetrig, thCurrent Report on Form 8-K filed on Februaty 2005.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioariB15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1984 registrant has duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, théoedmly authorized.

NEUROMETRIX, INC.

By: /sl SHAI N. GOZANI, M.D. PH.D.

Shai N. Gozani, M.D. Ph.D.
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Off

Date: March 22, 2005

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beeresidrelow by the following persons on bel
of the registrant on March 22, 2005 in the capasiitndicated below.

Name Title

s/ SHAI'N. GOZANI, M.D., PH.D. Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

Shai N. Gozani, M.D., Ph. [

/s/ W.BRADFORD SMITH Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Office

and Principal Accounting Officer)

W. Bradford Smitt

/s/ DAVID E. GOODMAN, M.D.

Director
David E. Goodman, M.C
/s/ CHARLES E. HARRIS
Director
Charles E. Harri:
/s/ CHARLES R. LAMANTIA
Director
Charles R. LaManti
/sl WILLIAM LAVERACK, JR.
Director
William Laverack, Jr
/s/ W. MARK LORTZ
Director

W. Mark Lortz
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
NeuroMetrix, Inc.

In our opinion, the financial statemenssdd in the index appearing under Item 15 (a) (@3ent fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of NeuroMetrix, Inc. at Decemi&dr, 2004 and 2003, and the results of its operatimd its cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2004, ifoocmity with accounting principles generally acasgin the United States of America.
addition, in our opinion, the financial statemecttedule listed in the index appearing under itef@{3) presents fairly in all material
respects, the information set forth therein wher@ conjunction with the related financial staggns. These financial statements and
financial statement schedule are the responsilufithe Company's management. Our responsibility express an opinion on these financial
statements and financial statement schedule basedrcaudits. We conducted our audits of thesemstants in accordance with the standards
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boarai(eld States). Those standards require that wegndmerform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the finanatehsénts are free of material misstatement. Antancudes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosuréigifinancial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates
made by management, and evaluating the overaldiahstatement presentation. We believe that adits.provide a reasonable basis for
opinion.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
January 25, 2005
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Assets
Current asset:

Cash and cash equivalel
Shor-term investment

NeuroMetrix, Inc.

Balance Sheets

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#fttounts of $300,000 at

December 31, 2004 and 2003, respecti'

Inventory

Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Current portion of deferred cos

Total current asse

Restricted cas

Long-term investment

Fixed assets, ni
Deferred cost

Total asset

Liabilities, Warrants for Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock,
Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock and Stockhdérs' Equity/(Deficit)

Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Accrued expense

Accrued compensatic
Current portion of lon-term debt
Current portion of deferred reven

Total current liabilities

Long-term debi
Deferred revenu

Other lon¢-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note

Warrants for redeemable convertible preferred s
Redeemable convertible preferred stock (liquidapoeference $55,657,459 at

December 31, 200:

Stockholders' equity (defici
Common stock, $0.0001 par value; 50,000,000 an@080000 authorized at
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively; 12,084a68 1,042,990 share:

issued and outstanding at December 31, 2004 ang| 28§pectivel

Additional paic-in capital
Subscriptions receivab
Deferred compensatic
Accumulated defici

Total stockholders' equity/(defici
Total liabilities, warrants for redeemable convaddipreferred stock, redeemalk
convertible preferred stock and stockholders' g¢(di¢ficit)

F-3

December 31,

2004 2003
$ 1,936,24. $ 1,622,511
18,574,59 —
3,126,56! 1,851,98.
1,284,26. 1,078,391
672,97( 217,16
140,71¢ 115,97¢
25,735,34 4,886,03;
1,897,201 1,897,201
9,497,15: —
679,35¢ 339,22
143,46: 95,32t
$ 37,952,552 $ 7,217,78.
| |
$ 899,29: $ 434,38t
593,42 444,59
1,343,201 492,48:
— 515,23
399,46t 245,44
3,235,38! 2,132,14:
— 2,046,98
471,73 211,67(
189,09: 185,45:
3,896,21! 4,576,25
— 450,10
— 47,693,74
1,20¢ 104
92,278,37 —
— (2,149
(745,08f) (598,93)
(57,478,17) (44,901,34)
34,056,31 (45,502,32)
$ 37,952,552 $ 7,217,78.
| |

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements.






NeuroMetrix, Inc.

Statements of Operations

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Revenues
Diagnostic devict $ 2,219,48' $ 1,302,301 722,64!
Biosensoil 15,700,60 7,865,25! 3,502,36:
Total revenue 17,920,08 9,167,55 4,225,00
Cost of revenue 4,853,32 2,706,53! 1,370,15!
Gross margir 13,066,76 6,461,01 2,854,841
Operating expense
Research and development 3,268,36. 2,396,77. 2,146,06!
Sales and marketing( 8,488,04 4,767,641 2,869,73
General and administrative( 4,844,37! 2,850,45! 2,672,66!
Total operating expens 16,600,78 10,014,86 7,688,45!
Loss from operation (3,534,02) (3,553,84) (4,833,611
Interest incom 214,09. 23,48 80,32:
Interest expens (964,05¢) (136,34() (40,17Y)
Net loss (4,283,98) (3,666,701 (4,793,46))
Accretion of redeemable convertible preferred st (1,386,30) (2,009,45) (1,892,74)
Deemed dividend on redeemable convertible preferre
stock (787,88") — (6,872,92)
Beneficial conversion feature associated with retsdse
convertible preferred stoc (7,050,77) — —
Net loss attributable to common stockholc $ (13,508,94) $ (5,676,15) $ (13,559,13)
I I I
Net loss per common share (basic and dilu $ (2.35) $ (5.46) $ (13.17%)
Weighted average shares used to compute basic anc
diluted net loss per common shi 5,747,57! 1,038,81 1,029,21i
Q) Non-cash stock-based compensation expense incindedse amounts are as follows:
Research and developmte $ 249,13. $ 35,12t $ 7,738
Sales and marketir 356,42: 36,79( 5,75¢
General and administratiy 423,04. 24,53¢ 36,754
Total nor-cash stoc-based compensatic $ 1,028,59° $ 96,45( $  50,24¢
I NN —

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements.
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NeuroMetrix, Inc.
Statements of Changes in Redeemable Convertible Peered Stock and Changes in Stockholders' (DeficitEquity

Redeemable Convertibl¢

Preferred Stock Common Stock
Additional
Number Number Paid-In Subscriptions Deferred Accumulated
of Shares  Amount of Shares  Amount Capital Receivable Compensation Deficit Total
Balance at December 31, 2001 16,164,76 $34,994,93 1,027,42i $ 102 $ — $ (2,149 $ (108,52 $ (26,320,81) $ (26,431,38)
Issuance of common stock upon exercis
stock options — — 9,96/ 1 11,78¢ — — — 11,78¢
Purchase of treasury sto — — (1,250) — (20) — — — (20)
Issuance of Series E-1 redeemable
preferred stock, net of issuance costs of
$76,312 1,333,33 1,923,68: — — — — — — —
Deemed dividend on Series D and E
redeemable convertible preferred stock — 6,872,92! — — — — — (6,872,92) (6,872,92)
Compensation expense associated with
stock options — — — — 21,44* — — — 21,44*
Accretion of redeemable convertible
preferred stock to redemptit — 1,892,74 — — (20,027 — — (1,872,72) (1,892,74)
Adjustment to deferred compensation — — — — (13,199 — 13,19 — —
Amortization of deferred compensation — — — — — — 28,801 — 28,801
Net loss — — — — — — — (4,793,46) (4,793,46)
Balance at December 31, 20 17,498,09 45,684,29 1,036,14: 104 — — (66,539  (39,859,91)  (39,928,49)
Issuance of common stock upon exercis
stock options — — 8,72¢ — 5,89 — — — 5,89/
Purchase of treasury sto — — (1,879 — (15 — — — (15)
Accretion of redeemable convertible
preferred stock to redemption — 2,009,45( — — (634,729 — — (1,374,72) (2,009,45I)
Adjustment to deferred compensation
associated with terminated employees — — — — (2,05)) — 2,051 — —
Deferred compensation associated with
stock option: — — — — 630,90( — (630,900 — —
Amortization of deferred compensation — — — — — — 96,45( — 96,45(
Net loss — — — — — — — (3,666,70) (3,666,70)
Balance at December 31, 2003 17,498,09 $47,693,74 1,042,99( 104 — (2,149 (598,93)  (44,901,34)  (45,502,32)
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NeuroMetrix, Inc.

Statements of Changes in Redeemable Convertible Peered Stock and Changes in Stockholders' (DeficitiEquity (Continued)

Redeemable Convertible
Preferred Stock

Common Stock

Additional

Number Number Paid-In Subscriptions Deferred Accumulated

of Shares Amount of Shares  Amount Capital Receivable Compensation Deficit Total
Issuance of Series E-1 redeemable
preferred stock, net of issuance costs
$22,672 7,050,77. 10,553,48 — — — — — — —
Issuance of common stock upon exerc
of stock option: — — 49,621 5 44,92¢ — — — 44,931
Purchase of treasury stock — — (6,25]) @) (1,249 — — — (1,250
Cash received from subscriptions
receivable — — — — — 2,147 — — 2,14:
Beneficial conversion feature associat
with redeemable convertible preferred
stock — 7,050,77. — — — — — (7,050,77)  (7,050,77)
Deemed dividend on Series D
redeemable convertible preferred stoc — 787,88! — — — — — (787,889 (787,889
Accretion of redeemable convertible
preferred stock to redemption — 1,386,30: — — (932,11¢) — — (454,18 (1,386,30)
Initial public offering of common stock — — 3,450,001 345 24,005,71 — — —  24,006,06
Conversion of redeemable convertible
preferred stocl (24,548,87)  (67,472,18) 7,488,75! 74 67,471,43 — — —  67,472,18
Conversion of warrant to purchase
common stock — — — — 450,10( — — — 450,10(
Deferred compensation associated wit
stock options — — — — 1,187,17 — (750,56¢) — 436,61
Adjustment to deferred compensation
associated with terminated employ: — — — — (12,429 — 12,42¢ — —
Amortization of deferred compensatiot — — — — — — 591,98 — 591,98
Issuance of common stock under
employee stock purchase pl — — 9,532 1 64,817 — — — 64,81¢
Net loss — — — — — — — (4,283,98) (4,283,98)
Balance at December 31, 2004 — $ — 12,034,65 $ 1,20 $92,278,37 $ — $ (745,080 $ (57,478,17) $ 34,056,31

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements.

F-6




NeuroMetrix, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Cash flows for operating activities:
Net loss $ (4,283,98) $ (3,666,70) $ (4,793,46)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating
activities:
Depreciation and amortizatic 205,02: 214,58¢ 261,22:
Compensation expense associated with stock of 1,028,59! 96,45( 50,24¢
Accrued payments on lo-term deb — 12,22: —
Allowance (recoveries) for doubtful accou — 100,00( (100,000
Accrued interest on investmet (206,43) — —
Loss on disposal of fixed assi — — 2,77:
Accretion of debt issuance discot 437,77¢ — —
Changes in operating assets and liabilii
Accounts receivabl (1,274,58) (1,121,589 (166,259
Inventory (205,87)) (216,079 186,47(
Prepaid expenses and other current a: (160,19) (33,979 (32,767
Accounts payabl 464,90¢ 329,40: (237,35
Accrued expenses and compensa 998,30: 334,27! 222,24.
Other lon¢-term liabilities 3,631 61,81¢ 61,81¢
Deferred revenue and co: 341,20: 16,217 (14,919
Net cash used in operating activit (2,651,63) (3,873,37) (4,559,98)
Cash flows for investing activities:
Purchases of fixed asst (545,15%) (203,61) (29,927
Purchases of investmer (30,954,41) — —
Maturities of investment 2,793,49 — —
Net cash used in investing activiti (28,706,08) (203,61) (29,927
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from exercise of stock optir 47,074 5,87¢ 11,77¢
Proceeds from issuance of redeemable convertibfeped stock
net of issuance cos 10,553,48 — 1,923,68!
Proceeds from initial public offering, net of offfiey costs of
$3,572,90¢ 24,006,06 — —
Issuance of common stock under employee stock peecplar 64,81¢ — —
Proceeds from lor-term debt and related warrau — 3,000,101 —
Payments on lor-term debr (3,000,001 (7,139 (40,420)
Net cash provided by financing activiti 31,671,44 2,998,84! 1,895,04.
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 313,72¢ (1,078,14) (2,694,85)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of 1,622,511 2,700,65! 5,395,51
Cash and cash equivalents, end of $ 1,936,24. $ 1,622,511 $ 2,700,65!

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Cash paid for intere: $ 497,40 $ 152,99 $ 40,17t
Fair value of warrant issued in connection withengayable $ — 3 450,10 $

Accretion of redeemable convertible preferred s! $ 1,386,30. $ 2,009,451 $ 1,892,74
Deemed dividend on redeemable convertible prefesteck $ 787,88! $ — 3 6,872,97!
Beneficial conversion feature associated with retse convertibls

preferred stocl $ 7,050,77. $ — $ —
Conversion of redeemable convertible preferredks $ 67,472,188 $ — $ —

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statement
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NeuroMetrix, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements
1. Nature of the Business

NeuroMetrix, Inc. (the "Company"), a Madsasetts corporation, was formed in June 1996 tzeiproprietary or licensed biomedical
engineering and neurophysiology technology develapé¢he Harvard-M.I.T. Division of Health Sciencasd Technology. In May 2001, the
Company reincorporated in Delaware.

The Company designs, develops and sellsrigtary medical devices used to diagnose neur@satNeuropathies are diseases of the
peripheral nerves and parts of the spine that &etjyare caused by or are associated with diabetesack pain and carpal tunnel
syndrome, as well as other clinical disorders.

On July 27, 2004, the Company completethdial Public Offering ("IPO") of 3,000,000 sharesits common stock at $8.00 per share,
for gross proceeds of $24 million. All of the shareere sold by the Company. The Company grantedrtHerwriters a 30-day option to
purchase up to an additional 450,000 shares of emmstock from the Company, which the underwritesereised in full on August 17, 2004.
The total net proceeds to the Company of approxin&24.0 million, after expenses, will be usedtfe expansion of sales and marketing
activities, research and development activitieatid) to potential new products, capital expendsyrepayment of outstanding debt
obligations and other general corporate purposes.dompany's shares trade on The Nasdaq Nationm&keiMaystem under the symbol
"NURO."

On July 27, 2004, upon completion of therpany's IPO, all shares of the Company's redeencableertible preferred stock outstanc
on that date converted into 7,488,758 shares ofrtmmstock and the outstanding warrant to purchedeemable convertible preferred stock
converted into a warrant to purchase common stock.

Reverse Stock Split

On June 2, 2004, the Company's Board addars approved a 1-farreverse stock split of the Company's issued comshack, subjec
to stockholder approval, to be effected prior t8 @ompany's proposed initial public offering. Ondd8, 2004, the Company's stockholders
approved this reverse stock split. This reversekssplit became effective on July 15, 2004 uporfiliveg by the Company of an amended :
restated certificate of incorporation with the Dredaie Secretary of State. Common share and comnara-glguivalents have been restated to
reflect this reverse split for all periods presente

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Significant accounting policies appliedthg Company in the preparation of its financiatestzents are as follows:
Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquidéstments with an original maturity of three monthgess to be cash equivalents. Cash
equivalents are recorded at cost, plus accruecksttevhich approximates fair value. The Compangsits cash primarily in a money market
investment which management believes is subjectitmal credit and market risk.
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I nvestments

The Company's investment portfolio is diéesd as held-to-maturity, and such investmentsséated at amortized cost. Interest earned or
investments held-to-maturity is included in intéi@some. The amortized cost of investments in ¢hiegory is adjusted for amortization of
premiums and accretion of discounts to maturitychSamortization and accretion are included in egeincome.

Restricted Cash

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Compaaiyntained restricted cash in the amount of $1B3Y associated with a facility lease.
Note 11.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially expdhe Company to concentrations of credit riskstprimarily of cash and cash equivalents
in bank deposits accounts and trade receivables Cimpany has not experienced significant losdateteto cash and cash equivalents and
does not believe it is exposed to any significaatlit risks relating to its cash and cash equivalen

The Company distributes its products thioitg own regional sales managers who lead indepershles agencies. At December 31,
2004 and 2003 and for the years ended Decemb&084, 2003 and 2002, no single customer accountetidére than 10% of accounts
receivable or revenue.

Inventories

Inventories, consisting primarily of purekd components, are stated at the lower of casidket. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out method. The Company writes down inventrjts net realizable value due to excess or @bsahventory.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of the Company's fai@rinstruments, which include cash and cash edeits, short-term and long-term
investments, accounts receivable, accounts pagall@ccrued expenses which approximate their &iirevat December 31, 2004 and 2003.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when th@sfilg criteria have been met: persuasive evideri@n arrangement exists, delivery has
occurred and risk of loss has passed, the sqtlécs to the buyer is fixed or determinable andemtion is reasonably assured.

When multiple elements are contained imgls arrangement, the Company allocates revenireeka the elements based on their
relative fair value, provided that each elementtsméee criteria for treatment as a separate uracobunting. An element is considered a
separate unit of accounting if it has value todhstomer on a stand-alone basis and there is olgemtd reliable evidence of the fair value of
the undelivered elements. Fair value is determbssd upon the price charged when the elemenidissparately.
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Diagnostic device revenues consist of safl@$C-stat monitors and NC-stat docking statidResvenues associated with the sale of the
NC-stat monitors are recognized upon shipment pravtat the fee is fixed and determinable, evidefae persuasive arrangement exists,
collection of receivables is probable, product mesiare reasonably estimable and no continuingjatitins exist. The revenues from the sale
of a NCstat docking station and access to the onCall im&tion System are considered one unit of accouratimbdeferred and recognized
a straight line basis over the estimated peridihwé the Company provides the service associatddthve onCall Information System, which
is the shorter of the estimated customer relatipnsériod or the estimated useful life of the dockstation, currently 3 years. The deferred
revenue and costs are presented as separateelimedn the accompanying balance sheet.

Biosensor revenues consist of sales obdeple NC-stat biosensors and are recognized uppment provided that the fee is fixed and
determinable, evidence of a persuasive arrangeexésts, collection of receivables is reasonablyigstand product returns are reasonably
estimable.

Software upgrades are delivered througbraated processes over data lines and are soldaselyaRevenue is recognized upon deli
since no post-delivery obligations exist.

The Company recognizes revenues associatiednstallation and training upon completion bétservice. The Company determines the
fair value of installation and training based omthp service billing rates.

Certain product sales are made with ayttay right of return. Since the Company can reabbnestimate future returns, the Company
recognizes revenues associated with product da¢sdntain a right of return upon shipment antthatsame time reduces revenue by the
amount of estimated returns under the provisiori§imdincial Accounting Standards Board Statement48pRevenue Recognition When
Right of Return Exisl.

Proceeds received in advance of produpinséint are recorded as deferred revenues. Shippihandling costs are included in cost of
revenues net of amounts invoiced to the custommeedhe amounts are immaterial for all periodsgmesd.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Trade accounts receivable are recorddukeant/oiced amount and do not bear interest. Tlogvahce for doubtful accounts is the
Company's best estimate of the amount of probablditdosses in its existing accounts receivablee Tompany reviews its allowance for
doubtful accounts monthly and determines the alfmgabased on an analysis of customer past payrstoityh product usage activity, and
recent communications between the Company andusterner. Past due balances over 90 days are raviediwidually for collectibility.
Account balances are charged off against the aloeavhen the Company feels it is probable the vabée will not be recovered. The
Company does not have any off-balance sheet argdsure related to its customers.

Income Taxes

The Company uses the asset and liabilitthageof accounting for income taxes. Deferred tssets and liabilities reflect the impact of
temporary differences between amounts of assetfiailities for financial reporting purposes angth amounts as measured under enacted
tax laws, operating losses and tax credit carryéods. A valuation allowance is required to offsgt aet
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deferred tax assets if, based upon the availalitferee, there is reasonable uncertainty as toethlezation of the deferred tax assets.
Research and Development

Cost incurred in the research and developmiethe Company's products are expensed as ggtumcluded in research and developn
costs are wages, benefits and other operating sostsas facilities, supplies and overhead direellgted to the Company's research and
development efforts.

Product Warranty Costs

The Company accrues estimated product wiri@sts at the time of sale which are includedast of sales in the statements of
operations. The amount of the accrued warrantyliiais based on historical information such astpexperience, product failure rates,
number of units repaired and estimated cost of niaghnd labor. The liability is reviewed for reasdoleness at least quarterly.

The following is a rollforward of the Compgs accrued warranty liability for the years en@etember 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002:

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Balance at beginning of peri $ 22,15. $ 2,711 $ —
Accrual for warrantie: 187,17t 117,69! 78,34
Settlements mac (149,45) (98,25%) (75,630)
Balance at end of peric $ 59,87¢ $ 22,15. % 2,711

Fixed Assets and Long-Lived Assets

Fixed assets are recorded at cost and clafed using the straight-line method over thengestgd useful life of each asset. Expenditures
for repairs and maintenance are charged to ex@eseurred. On disposal, the related assets anohadated depreciation are eliminated
from the accounts and any resulting gain or logsdided in income. Leasehold improvements arertined over the shorter of the useful
life of the improvement or the remaining term of thase.

The Company periodically evaluates the vecability of its property and equipment and otloeig-lived assets when circumstances
indicate that an event of impairment may have aeclin accordance with the provisions of SFAS NBi, Accounting for the Impairment of
Disposal of Lon-Lived Asset§'SFAS No. 144"). This periodic review may resultan adjustment of estimated depreciable lives@asset
impairment. When indicators of impairment are pn¢sthe carrying values of the asset are evaluateelation to their operating performar
and future undiscounted cash flows of the undewjrusiness. If the future undiscounted cash flargdess than their book value, an
impairment exists. The impairment is measured aslifierence between the book value and the fairevaf the underlying asset. Fair values
are based on estimates of the market prices andhasions concerning the amount and timing of estahduture cash flows and assumed
discount rates, reflecting varying degrees of geeckrisk. No impairment was identified in the yeanded December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002.
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Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

Employee stock awards granted under thepg@oyis compensation plans are accounted for inrdanoe with Accounting Principles
Board Opinion No. 25Accounting for Stock Issued to Employg€@d’B 25"), and related interpretations. The Comphas not adopted the
fair value method of accounting for stock-based pensation prescribed by SFAS 123. Accordingly, censation expense is recorded for
options issued to employees to the extent thafaihenarket value of the Company's common stocleesls the exercise price of the option at
the date granted and all other criteria for fixedaunting have been met. All stock-based awardstgdato non-employees are accounted for
at their fair value in accordance with SFAS No. ,J@&8amended, and Emerging Issues Task Force ("EI3$ue No. 96-18Accounting for
Equity Instruments that are Issued to Other Tharplegrees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Sedii Goods or Service, under which
compensation expense is generally recognized begperiod of service.

The Company provides the disclosure requargts of SFAS No. 14&ccounting for Stock Based Compensation—Transéiah
Disclosure—an amendment of FASB Statement No.(12BAS 148"). If compensation expense for the Camfsastock-based compensation
plan had been determined based on the fair valtheagjrant dates as calculated in accordance WA&SINo. 123, the Company's net loss
attributable to common stockholders and net lospsmmon share would approximate the pro forma artsobelow:

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Net loss attributable to commu
stockholders, as report $ (13,508,94) $ (5,676,15) $ (13,559,13)
Add employee stock based compensatio
expense included in reported net | 1,028,59! 96,45( 50,24¢
Less stock-based compensation expenst
determined under fair value meth (1,503,18) (209,329 (81,087
Net los—pro forma $ (13,983,53) $ (5,789,03) $  (13,589,97)
Net loss per common share (basic
diluted)
As reportec $ (2.35) $ (5.4¢) $ (13.19)
I I I
Pro forma $ (2.49 $ (.57 $ (13.20)
I I

Prior to the July IPO, the Company estalglisthe fair value of common stock by referencia¢opreviously issued redeemable
convertible preferred stock and by reference texpected IPO price. Prior to the IPO, assumed Nibfatas zero percent. The Company has
estimated the fair value of its granted stock opgtiby applying the following weighted average agsiions:

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Risk-free interest rat 3.5% 3.C% 3.%%
Expected dividend yiel 0 0 0
Expected option terr 5 year: 5 year: 5 year:
Volatility 65.(% 0.C% 0.C%
Weighted average fair value of options grar $ 52t % 56( $ 0.4C
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The weighted average fair value of optigremted prior to and subsequent to the IPO was$&hnd $5.74, respectively

Since options vest over several years dddianal option grants are expected to be madatirre years, the pro forma effects of
applying the fair value method may be materiakfoorted net income or loss in future years.

Net Income (Loss) Per Common Share

The Company accounts for and discloseggetne (loss) per common share in accordance VAhSSNo. 128 Earnings Per Share
("SFAS No. 128"). Basic net income (loss) per comrabare is computed by dividing net income (lossibaitable to common stockholders
by the weighted average number of common sharasamaling. Diluted net income (loss) per commoneligcomputed by dividing net
income (loss) attributable to common stockholdgrthie weighted average number of common sharesliauitve potential common share
equivalents then outstanding. Potential commonesheonsist of shares issuable upon the exercisck options and warrants (using the
treasury stock method), unvested restricted sta@kds and the weighted average conversion of thieped stock into shares of common
stock (using the if-converted method).

The following potentially dilutive, commaare equivalents were excluded from the calculaifaliluted net loss per common share
because their effect was antidilutive for eachhefperiods presented:

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Options 1,132,57. 450,41 381,65:
Warrants 100,00( 100,00( —
Convertible preferred stoc — 5,647,28! 5,647,28!

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incuidgertising expense was approximately $215,30Q9$30 and $230,000 in the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Other Comprehensive | ncome (L 0ss)

SFAS 13®Reporting Comprehensive Incomsablishes standards for reporting and displagamgprehensive income and its compon
in a full set of general-purpose financial statetaefRor the years ended December 31, 2004, 2002@0®) the Company had no components
of comprehensive income or loss other than net loss

Segments
The Company is in the business of desigriegeloping and selling proprietary medical desicEhe Company evaluates its business

activities that are regularly reviewed by the Cligbcutive Officer for which discrete financial émfmation is available. As a result of this
evaluation, the Company determined that it hasopegating segment with operations in one geograplication which is the United States.
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statementsdnformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assas et affect the reported amounts of assetsiabitities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date effittencial statements and the reported amountsvehues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those psites.

Risks and Uncertainties

The Company is subject to risks commonoimganies in the medical device industry, includimgt, not limited to, development by the
Company or its competitors of new technologicabwations, dependence on key personnel, protecfiproprietary technology, and
compliance with regulations of the U.S. Food anddAdministration.

Reclassification
Certain prior year amounts have been rsiflad to conform with the current year presentatio
Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN Nq.@d@nsolidation of Variable Interest Entities, atelpretation of ARB No. 51 ("FIN
No. 46"). The primary objectives of FIN No. 46 &oeprovide guidance on the identification of eestifor which control is achieved throu
means other than through voting rights (variabtergst entities) and to determine when and whidineass enterprise should consolidate the
variable interest entities. The new model for cdidstion applies to an entity which either (1) #wguity investors (if any) do not have a
controlling financial interest or (2) the equitwastment at risk is insufficient to finance theitgrg activities without receiving additional
subordinated financial support from the other partFIN No. 46 also requires enhanced disclosaresfiable interest entities. FIN No. 46
applies immediately to variable interest entitie=ated after January 31, 2003, and to variabledstentities in which an enterprise obtain
interest after that date. The standard as amend&tN\o46R, applies to the first fiscal year or inite period beginning after March 15, 200
variable interest entities in which an enterprisklk a variable interest that it acquired beforerigary 1, 2003. The adoption of FIN No. 46
did not have a material impact on the Companyaniinal position, results of operations, or castvélo

In November 2004, the FASB issued FASBedt&nt No. 151, "Inventory Costs—an Amendment of ARB 43, Chapter
4" ("FAS 151"). FAS 151 amends ARB 43, Chapten4larify that abnormal amounts of idle facilitypense, freight, handling costs, and
wasted materials (spoilage) should be recognizediasnt-period charges. In addition, this Statemequires that allocation of fixed
production overheads to the costs of conversidodsed on the normal capacity of the productiorif@s. The provisions of this Statement
are effective for inventory costs incurred durirggél years beginning after June 15, 2005. The tiatopf the provisions of FAS 151 is not
expected to have a material impact on our finarpmaition or results of operations.

In December 2004, the FASB issued FASBeStant No. 123 (revised 2004), "Share-Based PaynfdS 123(R)"). FAS 123(R)
replaces FASB Statement No. 123, "Accounting facktBased Compensation”, and supersedes APB OpNo25, "Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees".
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FAS 123(R) requires that the compensation costimgléo share-based payment transactions be repegjim financial statements. That cost
will be measured based on the fair value of theteaqu liability instruments issued. The provisiooisthis Statement are effective for the first
interim or annual reporting period that beginsralimne 15, 2005. We are currently evaluating théhatkof adoption and the impact of

FAS 123(R) on our financial position and result®pérations. We are also evaluating the form ofstogk based incentive compensation we
may offer in the future.

In December 2004, the FASB issued FASBeStant No. 153, "Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assetapsndment of APB Opinion
No. 29, Accounting for Nonmonetary Transaction$"AS 153"). FAS 153 requires that exchanges of norataoy assets be measured bz
on the fair value of the assets exchanged. Furithexpands the exception for nonmonetary exchangissnilar productive assets to
nonmonetary assets that do not have commercialasuies The provisions of this Statement are effedor nonmonetary asset exchanges
occurring in fiscal periods beginning after June 285. The adoption of the provisions of FAS 1680t expected to have a material impact
on our financial position or results of operations.

3. Inventories

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, inventonysesis of the following:

December 31,

2004 2003

Purchased componer $ 293,26. $ 238,75

Finished good 990,99¢ 839,63:

$ 1,284,26. $ 1,078,39

I I

4. Held-to-Maturity Securities
Held-to-Maturity securities as of DecemB#r 2004 are as follows:
Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Estimated Fair
Amortized Cost Gains Losses Value

Commercial paper and bank no $ 1,476,82! $ 23,178 % — $ 1,500,001
U.S. agency obligatior 9,625,22! 20,71 (12,607 9,633,34.
Corporate bond 13,477,69 — (180,929 13,296,77
Certificates of depos 3,492,001 — (2,756 3,489,24.
$ 28,071,75 $ 43,88¢ $ (196,28) $ 27,919,35
I I I I
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The amortized cost and fair value of fixedturity securities at December 31, 2004, by coiued maturity, are shown below:

December 31, 2004

Amortized Cost Fair Value
Due in one year or le: $ 18,574,59 $ 18,529,59
Due after one year through five ye 9,497,15! 9,389,76!

$ 28,071,75 $ 27,919,35

| |
5. Fixed Assets

Fixed assets consist of the following:

December 31,

Estimated
Useful Life
(Years) 2004 2003

Computer and laboratory equipmt 3 % 1,195,811 $ 847,02
Furniture and equipme 3 188,85¢ 186,66«
Production equipmet 7 620,51: 352,81«
Construction in progres — 7,54¢ 81,06¢
Leasehold improvemen * 19,44 19,44
2,032,17! 1,487,001
Les—accumulated depreciatic (1,352,81)) (1,147,79)
$ 679,35¢ $ 339,22

*—| esser of life of lease or useful life
Depreciation expense was $205,023, $214258%261,222 for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2002, respectively.
6. Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses consist of the followiogthe fiscal years ended December 31, 2004 and:200

December 31,

2004 2003

Licenses $ — $ 100,00(
Professional service 164,70: 79,86¢
Other 428,71¢ 264,72¢

$ 593,42( $ 444,59
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7. Long-Term Debt

In March 1999, the Company obtained a camemt from a bank for a $300,000 equipment term Ffaaility (the "Equipment Line").
On February 28, 2000, the bank increased the Eariplrine to $400,000 and extended the maturity ttakeebruary 27, 2003. Advances
under the Equipment Line bore interest at the Isgokme rate, plus 0.75% and were repayable ingg@lenonthly installments. In
February 2003, the equipment line was repaid inafiudl terminated.

On May 21, 2003, the Company entered intagreement with Lighthouse Capital Partners IV, I("Lighthouse") to establish a line of
credit for $3,000,000 (“Line of Credit"). The Conmyadrew down $3.0 million through December 31, 208Bborrowings under the line of
credit were collateralized by substantially all Hesets of the Company. Borrowings bore interesbatinal rate of 11% per annum. Upon the
final maturity date or the earlier prepayment affeadvance, the Company was required to pay, iitiaddo the principal and interest, an
additional amount equal to 11% of the original pipal, or $330,000. This additional amount was beincreted over the applicable
borrowing period as additional interest expense.

On July 29, 2004, the Company paid $3,12B6 Lighthouse. This amount represented paynmefullli of all outstanding obligations
under the line of credit with Lighthouse.

In connection with the Line of Credit, tBiempany issued Lighthouse warrants to purchase 4pQ,000 shares of Series E-1 preferred
stock at an exercise price of $1.50 per shareg ferm of seven years. The fair value of the wasraalculated using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model was estimated to be $450,100, andreezded as a debt discount. This discount wamleicreted over the repayment terr
36 months as additional interest expense. Upon =iiop of the Company's IPO, this warrant conveited a warrant to purchase common
stock.

8. Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock

The Company's redeemable convertible predestock was mandatorily redeemable by the holoessd on facts and circumstances not
in the Company's control. The carrying value waadaccreted to redemption value over the ternméorédemption date. These adjustments
were affected through charges first against reth@anings, then against additional paid-in capitdil it was reduced to zero and then to
accumulated deficit. Accretion for the years enBedember 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $1,386,3000%250 and $1,892,747,
respectively.

The Company's 875,000 shares of Seriesi@emable convertible preferred stock, 625,000 shafr8eries B redeemable convertible
preferred stock, 3,998,100 shares of Series C ctbleepreferred stock, of which 2,850,000 sharesendesignated as Series C-1 redeemable
convertible preferred stock and 1,148,100 sharee designated as Series C-2 nonvoting redeemabledible preferred stock, 6,222,220
shares of Series D redeemable convertible prefetardk, 7,111,110 shares of Series E convertitdéepred stock and 2,333,333 shares of
Series E-1 convertible preferred stock automaticadnverted into 7,488,758 shares of common stpckihe completion of the Company's
initial public offering in July 2004.

In December 2002, the Company sold 1,33BsB@res of Series E-1 preferred stock at a pfi&d.®0 per share, resulting in gross
proceeds of approximately $2,000,000. As a reduti@anti-dilution provisions associated with Beries D and Series E preferred stock, the
Company recorded a charge in the form of a deenvidiedd of $6,872,920 in the year ended DecembeRBQ2. This charge
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resulted from an adjustment to the conversion priacea result of anti-dilution protection associatéth the Series D and Series E preferred
stock, described above.

In March 2004, the Company sold 7,050, #vdres of Series E-1 preferred stock at a priceldd®per share, resulting in gross proceeds
of $10,576,157. The conversion rate associated Setfies E-1 preferred stock resulted in a 14f@xchange or a conversion price of $6.0(
share. The Series Epreferred stock contained a beneficial converfgature as the estimated fair value of the Comgarommon stock we
in excess of the $1.50 per share conversion phiceordingly, the Company recorded a charge of $F,08L as a beneficial conversion
feature in March 2004. Also, as a result of thise3eE-1 preferred stock financing and the aliitition provisions associated with the Serie
preferred stock, the Company recorded a chardeeiorm of a deemed dividend of $787,885 in Mar@d4£ This charge resulted from an
adjustment to the conversion price as a resulhtifdilution protection associated with the Seflepreferred stock.

9. Common Stock and Stock Option Plans

As of December 31, 2004, the Company ha@@0000 shares of common stock authorized andB4880 shares issued and
outstanding. As of December 31, 2004, the Compasyréserved 100,000 shares of common stock invéire éhat the warrant to purchase
100,000 shares of common stock is exercised. litiaddthe Company has reserved 1,132,571 sharesmimon stock for future issuance
upon exercise of common stock options. There weregasury shares outstanding at December 31, 2002003, as all treasury shares have
been issued upon employee stock option exercises.

Each share of common stock entitles thddrdio one vote on all matters submitted to a wbtbe Company's stockholders. Common
stockholders are not entitled to receive dividemdgss declared by the Board of Directors.

During 1996, the Company's Board of Direst@dopted the 1996 Stock Option/Restricted Stdak @he "1996 Stock Plan"). The 1996
Stock Plan provides for the granting of incentind aon-qualified stock options and stock bonus dw/éw officers, directors and employees
of the Company. The maximum number of shares tlzgtine issued pursuant to the 1996 Stock Plan i2%86If any options granted under
the 1996 Stock Plan are forfeited, such shareratravailable for future grant and revert backhe founder. As of December 31, 2004, 6,250
shares were subject to outstanding options at ghtexl average exercise price of $0.20 per shai®962 shares had been issued under the
1996 stock plan and no shares were available fardigrant.

During 1998, the Company adopted the 199t¥ Incentive Plan (the "1998 Stock Plan™). TI9898 Stock Plan also provides for
granting of incentive and nonqualified stock opténd stock bonus awards to officers, consultardseamployees of the Company. As of
December 31, 2004, 1,250,000 shares of common sterk authorized for issuance under the 1998 egqlaty, of which 177,282 shares had
been issued and 1,006,121 shares were subjectsiaioding options at a weighted average price &f45per share. The 1998 equity plan was
closed to any future grants at the time of ouiahjiublic offering and therefore we will not masey additional grants under our 1998 equity
plan.

During 2004, the Company adopted the 2G64KSOption and Incentive Plan (the "2004 StockiPlaThe 2004 Stock Plan also provii
for granting of incentive and nonqualified stockiop and stock bonus awards to officers, consudtantd employees of the Company. As of
December 31, 2004, 894,928 shares of common steok authorized for issuance under the 2004 staok pif which no
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shares had been issued, 120,200 shares were stabjedstanding options at a weighted average fi®.18 per share and 704,800 shares
were available for future grant. Also, on DecemBikof each year an additional number of sharesaléqul5% of the annual net increase in
the total number of our outstanding shares of comatock during the year, will be added to the shasailable for the issuance of awards
under the 2004 stock plan.

The exercise price of each stock optionggsunder the 1996 and 1998 Stock Plans was sgitii the Board of Directors at the time of
grant. However, incentive stock options may noglanted at less than the fair market value of the@any's common stock as determine
the Board of Directors at the date of grant oradderm in excess of 10 years. The exercise prictook options awarded under the 2004 stock
plan may not be less than the fair market valu®@icommon stock on the date of the option grattiéncase of incentive stock options and
no less than 85% of the fair market value of th@iwmn stock on the date of the option grant in tieemf non-qualified stock options. For
holders of more than 10% of the Company's totallsioed voting power of all classes of stock, incemstock options may not be granted at
less than 110% of the fair market value of the Canyfs common stock at the date of grant and ferra tot to exceed five years. All optic
granted under the 1996 and 1998 Stock Plans beegareisable at such time as the Board of Directpexifies and expire 10 years from the
date of grant.

A summary of activity under the Companyg98, 1998 and 2004 Stock Plans for the years eDdedmber 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 is
presented below:

Weighted

Number of Exercise Price Average
Shares Range Exercise Price

Stock Option Awards

Outstanding at December 31, 2( 306,58t $ 0.008- 2.25(C 1.172¢
Granted at fair valu 143,25( 2.25( 2.250(
Exercisec (9,964 0.008- 1.35(C 1.1817
Forfeited (58,22) 0.900- 2.25( 1.502(
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 381,65! 0.008 — 2.25( 1.526¢
Granted at fair valu 120,21! 2.25( 2.250(
Exercisec (8,729 0.008- 1.35(C 0.673¢
Forfeited (42,73) 0.900- 2.25( 1.395:
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 450,41 0.200 — 2.25( 1.748t
Granted at fair valu 657,34 8.000- 10.42( 8.161¢
Granted below fair valu 90,90( 0.900- 4.48( 2.66(
Exercisec (49,62) 0.200- 2.25( 0.905¢
Forfeited (16,464 0.900- 8.53( 2.820¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 1,132,57. $ 0.200- 10.42( 5.627¢
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The following table summarizes informatamout stock options outstanding at December 314:200

Weighted average

Number of Options remaining contractual Number of Options
Exercise Price Outstanding life (years) Exercisable
$0.20 — 37,50( 34 37,50(
0.40
$0.90 — 85,61¢ 5.8 85,32¢
1.35
$1.69 — 335,36¢ 8.0 146,77(
2.25
$4.48 18,75( 9.3 10,00¢(
$8.00 — 592,30( 9.5 —
9.00
$9.40 — 63,03’ 9.8 4,50(
10.42
1,132,57 284,09¢

The Company recorded deferred compensafi®i38,137, $630,900 and $0, in the years endegmber 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively, related to stock option grants to leyges and non-employees. The deferred compensatiwesents the difference between the
estimated fair value of common stock on the datgraft and the exercise price associated withtdek ®ptions. The deferred compensation
is amortized to operations over the vesting peoibtthe related stock options. The Company recomtadpensation expense for the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 of $1,028%3%,450 and $50,246, respectively. Includedhédompensation expense recorded
by the Company is $436,612 and $21,445 of compmmsexpense associated with the modification oflstaptions in the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2002, respectively.

Unamortized deferred compensation on ftefedptions is recorded as a reduction to additipaia-in capital.
10. Income Taxes

The Company's effective income tax ratéediffrom the statutory federal income tax ratéoflews for the years ended December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002.

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002

Federal tax benefit ra (34.0% (34.0% (34.0%
State tax benefit, net of federal bene (3.5 (5.5 (6.3
Permanent item 4.2 iL& 0.t
Federal research and development cre (1.8 (1.5 (1.2
Valuation allowanct 35.1 39.7 41.C

Effective income tax rat 0.C% 0.C% 0.C%
| | |
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The Company's deferred tax assets corfsisedollowing:

December 31,

2004 2003
Deferred tax asse
Net operating loss carryforwar $ 12,853,45 $ 11,485,74
Research and development credit carryforw 533,82( 455,64(
Accrued expense 606,06: 477,75t
Other (41,799 30,33¢
Total gross deferred tax as: 13,951,54 12,449,47
Valuation allowanct (13,951,54 (12,449,47)
Net deferred tax ass $ — 8 —

As of December 31, 2004, the Company hddréd and state net operating loss carryforwad®(") of approximately $32,025,000
and $31,339,000, respectively, as well as fedemhlstate research and experimentation creditsmbapnately $377,000 and $237,000,
respectively, which may be available to reduceriitaxable income and begin to expire in 2011.esgiired by SFAS 109, the Company has
evaluated the positive and negative evidence bgarpon the realizability of its deferred tax assetsich are comprised principally of net
operating losses. Management has determined tisatiore likely than not that the Company will netognize the benefits of federal and
state deferred tax assets and, as a result, atieal@owance of approximately $13,951,540 and,$49,478 has been established at
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Ownership changes, as defined in the latdRevenue Code, may have limited the amount obpetating loss carryforwards that car
utilized annually to offset future taxable incorBelbsequent ownership changes could further affiediritation in future years.

11. Commitments and Contingencies
Operating Leases

In September 2000, the Company enteredaimoncancelable operating lease, commencing Jatud001, for new office and
laboratory space. The lease expires on March 319.20

Future minimum lease payments under noredahle operating leases as of December 31, 200dsdi@lows:

2005 $ 930,00(
2006 930,00(
2007 930,00(
2008 930,00(
2009 232,50(
Total minimum lease paymer $ 3,952,501

I

F-21




Total recorded rent expense was $871,816&oh the years ended December 31, 2004, 2002081 The Company records rent
expense on its facility lease on a straight lingidbaver the term. Accordingly, the Company hasmed a liability for accrued rent expens
December 31, 2004 and 2003 of $247,273 and $185rd5dectively on the accompanying balance sheets.

Restricted Time Deposit

In connection with the Company's faciligase, the Company is required to maintain, fobtveefit of the lessor, an irrevocable standby
letter of credit stating the lessor as the berafycin the amount of $1,860,000 over the term efléase, which is secured by a certificate of
deposit in an amount equal to 102% of the lettareflit as security. The lease expires in MarctD200e certificate of deposit is renewable
in 30-day increments. At December 31, 2004 and 20@3Company has $1,897,200 recorded as restgemguassociated with this lease on
the accompanying balance sheet.

Royalty Agreements

In June 1996, the Company entered intoemiie agreement with the Massachusetts Institukeafnology, ("M.I.T."), a related party,
amended on February 25, 1998, under which the Coynplatained an exclusive right to use certain te@bgy through the term of M.1.T.'s
patent rights on such technology. In exchangeCthmpany is required to pay royalties of 2.15% dfsades of products incorporating the
licensed technology. In addition, the Company tpied to pay royalties ranging from 25% to 50%payments received from sublicensees,
depending on the degree to which M.1.T.'s technplegs incorporated into the products sublicensethbyCompany. Through the year en
December 31, 2004, the Company has not incorpothtedicensed technology into its products anddf@e, no amounts have been accrued
as being owed.

In addition, the Company is obligated tg pal.T. annual license maintenance fees if certainimum net sales requirements are not
met. These payments can be used to offset futyadties payable under the agreement. Under the degeagreement, the Company has a
right to terminate this agreement at anytime upamitien notice and has recorded royalty expentsding $75,000 for each of the years
ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 and $25,000dgreidr ended December 31, 2002 relating to these /¢ December 31, 2004, 2003
2002, M.I.T. owned approximately 4.6%, 9.3% and®.8Bespectively, of the Company's common stocktanting and 0.0%, 5.6% and
5.6%, respectively, of the Company's redeemablegeartible preferred stock outstanding.

In February 1999 the Company entered intileer license agreement with an unrelated thirtypander which the Company obtained
the right to use certain technology through thmtef the licensor's patent right on such technaldgyexchange, the Company is required to
pay the licensor $50,000 annually for the firsethyears of the agreement. In subsequent yearSoti@any is required to pay $10,000
annually as long as it continues to use the licgtsehnology. Under this agreement, the Companyahaght to terminate this agreement at
anytime upon a written notice. During each of tearg ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, f1@&9 paid and recorded as cost of
goods sold.
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12. Retirement Plan

The Company established a 401(k) definedrifmution savings plan for its employees who nesstain service period and age
requirements. Contributions are permitted up tontfaimum allowed under the Internal Revenue Codmaoh covered employee's salary.
The savings plan permits the Company to contributes discretion. For the years ended Decembe?2®14, 2003 and 2002 the Company
made no contributions to the plan.
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NeuroMetrix, Inc.

For the three years ended December 31,, 208 and 2002:

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts:
2004
2003
2002

Deferred Tax Asset Valuation Allowance:

2004
2003
2002

Schedule [l—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Balance at
Beginning of Balance at End
Period Additions Deductions of Period

300,000 $ 235,46« 235,46« 300,00(
200,00( 200,32t 100,32¢ 300,00(
300,00( 35,32( 135,32( 200,00(
12,449,47. 1,502,06: — 13,951,54
10,996,00 1,453,47. — 12,449,47
9,029,50! 1,966,49 — 10,996,00
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Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM.

We hereby consent to the incorporationdfgrence in the Registration Statement on Form(I$e8333-118059) of NeuroMetrix, Inc. of
our report dated January 25, 2005 relating toithential statements and financial statement scleeddlich appears in this Form-K.



PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
March 23, 2005




QuickLinks
Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM.

QuickLinks-- Click here to rapidly navigate through this domnt

Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Shai N. Gozani, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-KNeluroMetrix, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not com@ajnuntrue statement of a material fact or om#itéde a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigtagisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements odimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officers andé aesponsible for establishing and maintainingld&ae controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}5¢r the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidh®ubsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

b) [Paragraph omitted in accordance with SEC transitistructions contained in SEC Release 34-4798&ddiune 5, 2003]

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantsl@lisire controls and procedures and presentedsimgport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regis&anternal control over financial reporting tleacurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaftf, the registrant's internal control over finahcéporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officers and Véalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluafioniesnal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thatauminmittee of the registrant's board of direci@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal contratiofimancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize aport financial information;
and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significémin the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 22, 200

/sl SHAI'N. GOZANI, M.D., PH. D.

Shai N. Gozani, M.D., Ph. D.
Chief Executive Officer and Preside
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Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, W. Bradford Smith, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-KNeluroMetrix, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not com@ajnuntrue statement of a material fact or om#itéde a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigtagisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements odimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officers andé aesponsible for establishing and maintainingld&ae controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}5¢r the registrant and have:

e) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidh®ubsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

f) [Paragraph omitted in accordance with SEC transitistructions contained in SEC Release 34-4798&ddiune 5, 2003]

0) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantsl@lisire controls and procedures and presentedsimgport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

h) Disclosed in this report any change in the regis&anternal control over financial reporting tleacurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaftf, the registrant's internal control over finahcéporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officers and Véalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluafioniesnal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thatauminmittee of the registrant's board of direci@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

C) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal contratiofimancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize aport financial information;
and

d) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significémin the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 22, 200

/sl 'W. BRADFORD SMITH

W. Bradford Smith
Chief Financial Office
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Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION

The undersigned officers of NeuroMetrixg.I{the "Company") hereby certify that the Compamyrinual Report on Form 10-K to which
this certification is attached (the "Report"), Bsd with the Securities and Exchange Commissiotherdate hereof, fully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applésaif the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as atadr{the "Exchange Act"), and that the
information contained in the Report fairly preseimsall material respects, the financial conditaord results of operations of the Company.

Date: March 22, 2005 /sl SHAI N. GOZANI, M.D., PH. D.

Shai N. Gozani, M.D., Ph. D.
Chief Executive Officer and Preside

/sl 'W. BRADFORD SMITH

W. Bradford Smith
Chief Financial Office

This certification is being furnished and not fileshd shall not be incorporated into any documenafy purpose, under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 or the Securities Act of 1933.
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